PHA 5-Year and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban OMB No, 2577-0226

A 1 Pl Development Expires 4/30/2011
nnua . an Office of Public and Indian Housing

1o PHA Information
PHA Name; __The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian PHA Code: _ MS004
PHA Type: [ Small [] High Performing [ Standard [ HCV (Section 8)

PHA TFiscal Year Beginning: (MM/YYYY): 042012

2.0 hrventory (based on ACC units at time of FY beginning in I.OIabove)

Number of PH units: 1215 Number of HCV units: 18

3.0 Submission Type
{] 5-Year and Annual Plan & Annual Plan Only [1 5-Year Ptan Only

40 PHA Consoriia {1 PHA Consortia: (Check box if submitting a joint Plan and complete table below,)

. . Neo. of Units in Each
Paticipating PHAS EI‘-)I:;; Elg)lir;rggs) Included in the lér;lrirz;:}; Neot in the Program
PH HCV
PHA L.
PHA Z:
PHA 3:

5.0 5-Year Plan, Complete items 5.1 and 5.2 only at 5-Year Plan update.

51 Mission. State the PHA’s Mission for serving the needs of low-income, very low-income, and extremely low income families in the PHA’s
jurisdiction for the next five years:

Trovide affordable, décent, safe and sanitary housing with reasonable accommaodations for eligible citizens of Meridian, Mississippi and
programs that promete self-sufficiency, empowerment, and respect.

52 Goals and Objectives. Identify the PHA's quantifiable goals and objectives that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low-income and very
[ow-income, and extremely Low-income families for the next five years. Include a report on the progress the PHA has made in meeting the goals
and objectives described in the previous 5-Year Plan.

Attachment MS004a01 describes progress on goals and objectives fisted in MHA’s previous 5-Year Plan.
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PHA Plan Update
(@) Identify all PHA Plan elements that have been revised by the PHA since its last Annual Plan submission:

I.  1.Fligibility, Selection and Admissions Policies, including Deconcentration and Wait List Procedures — Revised Application
Process as follows:

Application process with invelve two phases, (1) A pre-app phase, resulting in the family’s placement on the waiting list. The pre-
application will be dated, time stamped and referred the MHA’s eligibility office where it wilt be maintained until it is needed for
pracessing. (2) The next phase is the final determination of eligibililty, also referred to as the full application. The full application takes
place when the family reached to top of the waiting list. A this time MHA will ensure the verification of all HUD’s and MHA's
eligibility factors tihat are current in order to determine the eligibility for housing.

6.0
Waiting list revisions:
The waiting list will be purged not more than one time each year, unless otherwise determined by the occnpancy manager. This will be
done by mailing to either all the applicants on the waiting list or to a group of applicants by bedroom size, which will ask for
confirmation of their continued interest in remaining on the waiting list.

2, Financial Resources — See attachment MS004b01

4. Operation And Management — Attachment MS004g01 — Draft policy “Use of Chemical Agent for Employees.”

(b) ldentify the specifie location(s) where the public may abtain copies of the 5-Year and Annual PHA Plan. For a complete Iist of PHA Plan
elements, see Section 6.0 of the instructions,

MHA’s Agency Plan is available at the Central Office of the Meridian Housing Authority, 2425 E Street, Meridian, MS 39302 and at each of

MHA’s Asset Management Projects.

Hope V1, Mixed Finance Modernization or Development, Demolition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing, Homeownership
Programs, and Project-based Vouchers.

1. MHA was awarded an $8,526,576 Capital Fund Recovery Competitive Grant in 2009 for rehabilitation of the Frank Berry Courts
development. Attachment MS004¢01 includes an overview of the project, budget, sources and uses.

2. The Primary goal of MHAs Public Housing Self-Sufficiency and Housing Choice Voucher Family Self-Sufficiency program isto
provide opporfunities for public housing residents and housing choice voucher residents to achicve econornic independence, self-
sufficiency and homeownership.

The Puhlic Housing FSS program has suceessfilly enrolled 29 public housing residents into the program with several more waiting to be
accepted in the program, The PH FS§ program continues to be one of our most successful programs fo date with being awarded the
1.0 national NAHRO Merit Award for the program achievements. The PH FSS program has 3 successful graduates since tite new contract
pericd in which all 3 are now new homeowners. The HCV FSS program is continsing its success with 27 participants of the program in
which it has 4 successful graduates since the new coniract period with 3 of those graduates becoming new homeownters,
The PH FSS and JCV FSS program provides much needed services such as childeare referrals, job fraining classes, computer classes,
educational training referrals, and homeownership counseling through the partnership that MIA has developed with other community
agencies, such as Meridian Community College, WIN Job Center, MCCSA, and DS,

3. MHA has submitted an application for Choice Neighborhoods Initiative Planning Grant. If awarded MHA will develep a plan and build
support necessary for the transformation and revitalization of George Reese Courts and perhaps Highway Village Apartments.

4. MHA will continue to develop plans to convert vacant lots to single dwelling opportunities.

8.0 Capital Improvements. Please complete Parts 8.1 through 8.3, as applicable.
8.1 Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report. As part of the PHA 5-Year and Annual Plan, annually
: complete and subniit the Capifal Fund Program Annual Statemeni/Performance and Evaluation Report, form HUD-50075.1, for each current and
open CFP grant and CEFP financing. See attachment MS084d01
8.2 Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan. As part of the submission of the Annual Plan, PHAs must complete and submit the Capital Fund
' Program Five-Year Action Plan, form HUD-50075.2, and subsequent annual updates {on a rolling basis, ¢.g., drop current year, and add latest year
for a five year period). Large capital items must be included in the Five-Year Action Plan.
See attachment MS004e01
83 Capital Fund Financing Program (CFIP).

B4 Check if the PHA proposes to use any portion of its Capital Fund Program (CFP)/Replacement Housing Factor (RHF) to repay debt incurred to
finance capital itprovements.
See attachment MS004i01
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Housing Needs. Based on information provided by the applicable Consolidated Plan, information provided by HUD, and other generatly available
data, make a reasonable effort to identify the housing needs of the low-income, very fow-income, and extremely low-income families who reside in
the jurisdiction served by the PHA, including elderly families, families with disabilities, and households of various races and ethnic groups, and
other families who are on the public housing and Section 8 tenant-based assistance waiting lists. The identification of housing needs must address
issues of affordability, supply, quality, accessibility, size of units, and focation,

0 The size of cur public housing waiting st indicates a critical need for quality affordable housing in the jurisdiction served by Meridian Housing
Authority, The waiting list averages 300 applicants with at least 44% being families requiring units with 1bedroom. An average of 140 applicants
have been housed since the beginning of the fiscal year, with 69% being below the 30% of median income. In an effort to provide more affordable
housing, we plan to renew the discussion with HUD-Jackson to convert the Queen City units to ACC units, or public housing units. MHA cumently
has available enough ACC units from previous demolitions to bring in all of the Queen City units and complete the proposed RHF plan to build 10
homes. This would add 15 one bedroom units, 70 two bedroom units and 2 four bedroom units.

The housing availability for single family units on our Section § program is limited due to the fact that most housing for this group is 30 years or
older. The trend for new construction leans more fo larger family units. MELA will also explore the possibility of project based vouchering af the
privately owned Queen City properties.
Strategy Tor Addressing Housing Needs. Provide a brief description of the PHAs strategy for addressing the hovsing needs of families in the
jurisdiction and on the waiting list in the upcoming year. Note: Smali, Section 8 only, and High Performing PHAs complete only for Annual
Plan submission with the 5-Year Plan.

I. Employ effective maintenance and management policies to minimize the number of public housing units off-line

2. Reduce turnover time for vacated public housing units

3. Reduce time to renovate public housing wnits

4. Seek replacement of public housing units lost to the inventory through mixed finance development

5. Seek replacement of public housing units lost to the inventory through section 8 replacement housing resources

6. Maintain or increase section 8 fease-up rates by establishing payment standards that will enable families to rent throughout the

Jjurisdiction
9.1 7. Undertake measure to ensure access to affordable housing among families assisted by the PHA, regardless of unit size required.
3. Maintain or increase section § lease-up rates by marketing the program to owners, particularly those outside the areas of minority and
poverty concentration
9, Maintain or increase section 8§ lease-up rates by effectively screening Section & applicants to increase owner acceptance of program
10, Participate in the Consolidated Plan development process to ensure coordination with broader community strategies
11.  Apply for additional section § vouchers sheuld they become available
12. Leverage affordable housing resources in the comniunity through the creation of mixed-finance housing
13. Pursue housing resources otier than public housing or Section 8 tenant-based assistance
14, Exceed HUD federal targeting requirements for famities at or below 30% of AMI in public housing
15. Exceed HUD federal targeting requitements for families at or below 0% of AMI in tenant-based section 8 assistance
16. Employ admissions preferences aimed at families with economic hardships
17. Adept rent policies to support and encourage work
18. Employ admissions preferences aimed at families who are working
19, Adiere to marketing strategies developed in MHA’s Income Mix and De-concentration Policy
Additional Information. Describe the following, as well as any additional information HUD has requested.
(8) Progress in Meeting Mission and Goals. Provide a brief statement of the PHA’s progress in meeting the mission and goals described in the 5-

10.0 Year Plan. See attachiment MS001a01
(k) Significant Amendment and Substantial Deviation/Modification. Provide the PHA's definition of “signiftcant amendment” and “substantial

deviatien/modification”

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian does recognize the need for public notification for items contained within the 5-year and annual
plan. This Authority shall make proper notification for any substantial deviations from these plans as required under law, The exception to this
definition is if the change has been made to meet regulatory compliance with the U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development
requirements, Substantial deviation or significant amendment or modification shall mean those of the mission statement, goals and objectives,
capital fund program or changes in significant expenditures, and changes in statutory requirement for administeation of Public Housing
requiring public comment or public hearing.

110 | Reguired Submission for HUD Field Office Review. In addition to the PHA Plan template (HUD-50075), PHAs must submit the following

documents. Items {a) through (g} may be submitted with signature by mail or electronically with scanned sighatures, but elegtronic submission is
encouraged. Ttems (h) through (i) must be attached electronically with the PHA Plan. Note; Faxed copics of these documents will not be accepted
by the Field Office.

() Form HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with the PHA Plans and Related Regulations (which inciudes atf certifications relating
to Civil Rights)

(b) Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace (PHAs receiving CFP grants arly}

(¢} Form HUD-50071, Certification of Paymenis to Infhuence Federal Transactions (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(d) Form SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activiies (PHAs receiving CFP grants oniy)

(€} Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities Continvation Sheet (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

{f) Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments, Comments received from the RAB must be submitted by the PHA as an attachment to the PHA
Plan. PHAs must also include a narrative describing their analysis of the recommendations and the decisions made on these recomnendations.

{g) Challenged Elements

() Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report (FHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(i) Form BUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year Aciion Plan (PHAs receiving CFP grants onky)
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This information collection is authorized by Section $11 of the Quality Housing and Work Responsibility Act, which added a new section SA to the U.S. Housing Act
of 1937, as amended, which introduced 3-Year and Annual PHA Plans, The 5-Year and Annual PHA plans provide a ready source for interested parties to locate basic
PHA policies, rules, and requirements concerning the PHA’s operations, programs, and services, and informs HUD, families served by the PHA, and members of the
public of the PHA’s mission and strategies for serving the needs of low-income and very low-income families. This form is to be used by all PHA types for submission
of the 5-Year and Annual Plans to HUD. Public reporting burden for this information collection is estimated to average 12.68 hours per response, including the time for
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information, HUD
may not collect this information, and respondents are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number,

Privacy Act Notice. The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development is authorized to solicit the information requested in this form by virtue of Title
12, US Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regutations promulgated thereunder at Title 12, Code of Federal Regulations. Responses (o the collection of information are
required to obtain a benefit or to retain a benefit. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality

Instructions form HUD-50075

Applicability. This form is to be used by all Public Housing Agencies
{PHASs) with Fiscal Year beginning April 1, 2008 for the submission of their
5-Year and Annual Plan in accordance with 24 CER Part 903, The previous
version may be used only through April 30, 2008,

10

PHA Information

include the full PHA name, PHA code, PHA type, and PHA Fiscal Year
Beginning (MM/YYYY).

2.0

Inventory

Under each program, enter the number of Annual Contributions Contract
(ACC) Public Housing {PH) and Section 8 units (HCV).

3.0

Indicate whether this submission is for an Annual and Five Year Plan, Annuat

Submission Type

Plan only, or 5-Year Plan only.

4.0

PHA Consortia

Check box if swbmitting a Joint PHA Plan and comptete the table.

50

Five-Year Plan

Identify the PHA’s Mission, Goals and/or Objectives (24 CFR 903.6).
Complete only at 5-Year update.

6.0

5.1 Mission. A statement of the mission of the public housing agency
for serving the needs of low-ingome, very low-income, and extremely
low-income families in the jurisdiction of the PHA during the years
covered under the plan.

5.2 Goals and Objectives. Identify quantifiable goals and objectives
that will enable the PHA to serve the needs of low income, very low-
income, and extremely low-income families.

PHA Plan Update, In addition to the items captured in the Plan

template, PHAs must have the elements listed below readily available to

the public. Additionally, a PHA must:

(a) Identify specifically which plan elements have been revised
since the PHA’s prior plan submission.

(b) Tdentify where the 5-Year and Annual Plan may be obtained by
the public. At a minimum, PHAs must post PHA Plans,
including updates, at each Asset Managemeni Project {(AMP)
and main office or central off ice of the PHA. PHAs are
strongly encouraged to post complete PHA Plans on its official
website. PHAs are also encouraged to provide each resident
council a copy of its 5-Year and Annual Plan.

PHA Plan Elements. (24 CER 903.7)

1.  Eligibility, Selection and Admissions Policies, including

Deconcentration and Wait List Procedures. Deseribe
the PHA’s policies that govern resident or tenant
eligibility, selection and admission including admission
preferences for both public housing and HCV and unit

assignment policies for public housing; and procedures for

maintaining waiting lists for admission to public housing
and address any site-based waiting lisis.

2.

3.

Financial Resources, A stafement of financial resources,
ineluding a listing by general categories, of the PHA’s
anticipated resources, such as PHA Operating, Capital and
other anticipated Federal resources available to the PHA,
as well as tenant rents and other income available to
support public housing or tenant-based assistance. The
statemnent also should include the non-Federat sources of
funds supporting each Federal program, and state the
planned use for the resources.

Rent Determination, A statement of the policies of the
PHA goveming rents charged for public housing and HCV
dwelling units.

Operation and Management, A statement of the rules,
standards, and policies of the PHA governing mainfenance
management of housing owned, assisted, or operated by
the public housing agency (which shall include measures
necessary for the prevention or eradication of pest
infestation, including cockroaches), and management of
the PHA and programs of the PHA.

Grievance Procedures, A description of the grievance
and informal hearing and review procedures that the PHA
makes available to ifs residents and applicants.

Pesigaated Housing for Efderly and Disabled Families,
With respect to public housing projects owned, assisted, or
operated by the PITA, describe any projects (or portions
thereof), in the upcoming fiscal year, that the PHA has
designated or will apply for designation for occupancy by
¢lderly and disabled families. The description shall
include the folfowing information: 1) development name
and number; 2) designation type; 3) application status; 4)
date the designation was approved, submitted, or planned
for submission, and; 5) the number of units affected.

Community Service and Self-Sufficiency, A description
of: (1) Any programs relating to services and amenities
provided or offered to assisted families; (2) Any policies
or programs of the PHA for the enhancement of the
economic and social self-sufficiency of assisted families,
including programs under Section 3 and FSS; (3) How the
PHA will comply with the requirements of community
service and treatment of income changes resulting from
welfare program requirements. (Note: applies to only
public housing).

Safety and Crime Prevention. For public housing only,
describe the PHA’s plan for safety and crime prevention to
ensure the safety of the public housing residents. The
statemnent must inclede: (i) A description of the need for
tneasures to ensure the safety of public housing residents;
(i) A description of arty crime prevention aclivities
conducted or to be conducted by the PHA; and (iif) A
description of the cocrdination between the PHA and the
appropriate police precinets for carrying out crime
prevention measures and activities.
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7.0 Hope

9. Pets. A statement describing the PHAs policies and
requirements pertaining to the ownership of pets in public
housing.

10. Civil Rights Certification. A PHA will be considered in
compliance with the Civil Rights and AFFH Certification
if: it can document that it examines its programs and
praposed programs to identify any impeditments to fair
housing choice within those programs; addresses those
inipediments in a reasonable fashion in view of the
resources available; works with the local jurisdiction to
implement any of the jurisdiction’s initiatives to
affirmatively further fair housing; and assures that the
annual plan is consistent with any applicable Consolidated
Plan for its jurisdiction.

11, Fiscal Year Audit, The results of the most recent fiscal
year audit for the PHA.

12,  Asset Management. A statement of how the agency will
carry out its asset management functions with respect to
the public housing inventory of the agency, including how
the agency will plan for the long-term operating, capital
investment, rchabilitation, modernization, disposition, and
other needs for such inventory.

13. Violence Against Women Act (VAWA), A description
of; 1) Any activities, services, or programs provided or
offered by an agency, either directly or in partnership with
other service providers, to child or adult victims of
domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking; 2} Any activities, services, or programs provided
ar offered by a PHA that helps child and adult victims of
domestic violence, dating viokence, sexual assault, or
stalking, to obtain or maintain housing; and 3y Any
activitics, services, or programs provided or offered by a
public housing agency to prevent domestic violence,
daling violence, sexual assault, and statking, or to enhance
victim safety in assisted families.

VI, Mixed Finance Modcrnization or Development,

Demolition and/or Disposition, Conversion of Public Housing,
Homeownership Programs, and Project-based YVouchers

(=)

(b)

Hope VI or Mixed Finance Modernization or Development.
1) A deseription of any housing (including praject number (if
known) and unit count) for which the PHA will apply for HOPE
V1 or Mixed Finance Modernization or Development; and 2) A
timetable for the submission of applications or proposals, The
application and approval process for Hope V1, Mixed Finance
Modernization or Development, is & separate process. Sce
guidance on HUD'’s website at:
hitp:/fwww.hud.govioflices/pitvprograms/phvhopeé/index.cfim

Demolition and/or Disposition. With respect to public housing
projects owned by the PHA and subject to ACCs under the Act:
{I) A description of any housing (including project number and
unit numbers [or addresses]), and the number of affected units
along with their sizes and accessibility features) for which the
PHA will apply or is currently pending for demolition or
disposition; and {2} A timetable for the demelition or
disposition. The application and approvat process for demolition
and/or disposition is a separate process, See guidance on HUD’s
website at:
http:/irwww.hud.gov/olfices/pil/centers/sac/demo_dispofindex.c
fin

Nete: This statement must be submitted to the extent ¢hat
approved and/or pending demolition andfor disposition has
changed.

(¢} Conversion of Public Housing. With respect to public
housing owned by a PHA: 1) A description of any building
or buildings (including project number and unit count) that
the PHA is required to convert to tenant-based assistance or

that the public housing agency plans to voluntarily convert;
2) An analysis of the projects or buildings required te be
converted; and 3) A statement of the amount of assistance
received under this chapter to be used for rental assistance or
other housing assistance in connection with such conversion.
See guidance on HUD's website af;

http:iwww. hud. gov/offices/pili/centers/sac/conversion. cfin

(d) Homeownership. A descripticn of any homeownership
(including project number and unit count) administered by
the agency or for which the PHA has apptied or will apply
for approval,

(¢) Troject-based Vouchers. If the PHA wishes to use the
project-based voucher program, a staternent of the projected
numiber of project-based units and general locations and how
project basing would be consistent with its PHA Plan,

80 Capital Improvements, This section provides information on a PHA’s
Capital Fund Program. With respect to public housing projecis owned,
assisted, or aperated by the public housing agency, a plan describing the
capital improvements necessary to ensure long-term physical and social
viability of the projects must be completed along with the required
forms, Items identified in 8.1 through 8.3, must be signed where
directed and transmitted electronically along with the PIFA’s Annual
Plan submissior.

8.1

82

33

Capital Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and
Evaluation Report. PHAs must complete the Capital Fund
Program Annual Statenent/Performance and Evaluation Report
{form HUD-50075.1), for cach Capital Fund Program (CEF) to be
undertaken with the current year’s CFP funds or with CFFP
proceeds. Additionally, the form shall be used for the following
pUIposes:

(2} To submit the initial budget for a new grant or CFFP;

(b} To report on the Performance and Evaluation Report progress
on any open grants previously funded or CFFP; and

{¢) To record a budget revision on a previously approved open
grant or CFFP, e.g., additions or deletions of work items,
modification of budgeted amounts that have been undertaken
since the submission of the last Annual Plan. The Capital
Fund Program Annual Statement/Performance and
Evaluation Report must be submitted annually,

Additionally, PHAs shall complete the Performance and
Evaluation Report section (see footnote 2) of the Capital Fund
Program Annual Staterient/Performance and Evaluation {form
HUD-50075.1), at the following times:

1. Afthe end of the program year; until the program is
completed or all funds are expended;

2. When revisions to the Annual Statement are made,
which do not require prior HUD approval, (e.g.,
expenditures for emergency work, revisions resulting
from the PHAs application of fungibility); and

3. Upon completion or termination of the activities finded
in a specific capital fund program year.

Capital Fund Program Five-Year Action Plan

PHAs must submit the Capital Fund Programn Five-Year Action
Plan {form HUD-50075.2) for the entire PHA portfolio for the first
vear of participation in the CFP and annual update thereafier to
climinate the previous year and to add a new fifth year (rolling
basis) so that the form always covers the present five-year period
beginning with the current year.

Capital Fund Financing Program (CFFP). Separate, written
HUD approval is required if the PHA proposes fo pledge any
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5.0

10.0

portion of its CFP/RHF funds fo repay debt incurred to finance
capital improvements. The PHA must identify in its Annual and 5-
year capital plans the amount of the annual payments required to
service the debt. The PHA must also submit an annual statement
detailing the use of the CFFP proceeds. See guidance on HUD’s
website at:

http:itwww.hud. gov/ofiices/pih/programs/ph/capfund/cffp.cfin

Housing Needs, Provide a statement of the housing needs of families
residing in the jurisdiction served by the PHA and the means by which
the PHA intends, to the maximum exfent practicable, to address those
needs. (Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete annually; Small
and High Performers complete only for Annual Plan submitted with the
5-Year Plan).

9.1 Strategy for Addressing Housing Needs. Provide a description of
the PHA’s strategy for addressing the housing needs of families in
the jurisdiction and on the waiting list in the upcoming year.

{Note; Standard and Troubled PHAs complete annually; Small
and High Performers complete only for Annuat Plan submitted
with the 5-Year Plan).

Additional Information. Deseribe the following, as welt as any
additional information requested by HUD:

(2) Progress in Meeting Missien and Goals. PHAs must
include (1) & statement of the PHAS progress in meeting the
mission and goals described in the 5-Year Plan; (ii) the basic
criteria the PHA will use for determining a significant
amendment from its 5-year Plan; and a significant
amendment or modification to its 5-Year Plan and Annual
Plan. (Note: Standard and Troubled PHAs complete
annuaily; Small and High Performers complete enly for
Annual Plan submitted with the 5-Year Plan).

{b) Significant Amendment and Substantial
Deviation/Modification. PHA must provide the definition
of “significant amendment” and *“substantial
deviation/modification”, {Note: Standard and Troubled
PHAs complete aunualy; Small and High Performers
complete only for Annual Plan submitted with the 5-Year
Plan.)

{¢) PHAs must include or reference any applicable memorandum
of agreement with HUD or any plan fo improve performance.
{Note: Standard and Tronbled PHAs complete annualiy),

11.0 Regquirced Submission for HUD Field Office Review. Inordertobea

complete package, PHAs must submit ifems (a) through (g), witit
signature by maif or electronically with scanned signatures. Items (h)
and (i) shall be submitted electronicaliy as an attachment to the PHA
Plan.

(8) TForm HUD-50077, PHA Certifications of Compliance with
the PHA Plans and Related Regulations

(b) Form HUD-50070, Certification for a Drug-Free Workplace
(PHASs receiving CFP grants only) .

(¢} Form HUD-50071, Certification of Payments to Influence
Federal Transactions (PHAs receiving CFP grants only)

(d) Porm SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (PHAs
receiving CFI* grants only)

(e} Form SF-LLL-A, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
Continuation Sheet (PHAs receiving CEP grants only)

() Resident Advisory Board (RAB) comments.

(g) Challenged Elements. Include any element(s) of the PHA
Plan that is challenged.

(h) Form HUD-50075.1, Capital Fund Program Annual
Statement/Performance and Evaluation Reporf (Must be
attached electronically for PHAs receiving CFP grants
only). See instructions in 8.1.

(i) Form HUD-50075.2, Capital Fund Program Five-Year
Action Plan (Must be attached electronically for PHAs
receiving CFP grants only). See instructions in 8.2.
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Progress Notes for MHA Agency Plan 2011

Goals and Objectives over the next S years

1.

Expand the supply of assisted housing

Progress update:

During the past fiscal year, MHA received 37 additional Housing Choice Vouchers. We
anticipate an additional 24 vouchers this fiscal year due to a HUD multi-family
foreclosure.

Resident participants in the ESTEEM training program assisted MHA in reducing public
housing vacancies. ESTEEM participants assisted the agency in the refurn of
approximately 300 vacant units back to occupancy status.

On August 5, 2011, MHA submitted a Choice Neighborhood Planning Grant to receive
competitive HUD funding to demolish and revitalize 97 units of the distressed George
Reese Court Housing Development. We will also apply for major funding to
renovate/demolish/sell Highway Village.

On January 12, 2011, MHA submitted its Replacement Housing Factor Plan to build 6
single family homes in an effort to create housing opportunities for public housing
residents.

Improve the quality of assisted housing

Progress Update:

MHA was recognized for achieving a high performance status of 100% for its SEMAP
program management as of FYE 2011,

MHA property managers continue to conduct Quality Control Inspections each month on
10% of occupied units.

MHA continues to develop plans to submit to HUD to place 87 Queen City Apartments
under the ACC. Plans will also be submitted to HUD to also consider project based
vouchering of the Queen City properties.

Increase Assisted Housing Choices

Progress Update:

Voucher mobility counseling is conducted by MHA staff in an “on-going” manner.

One (1) outreach luncheon was conducted to inform potential HCV landlords of the
opportunities provided by MHA’s HCV program. Two outreach luncheons will be held
in 2012,

MHA increased the number of participants in its HCV program by 37 vouchers, 24
additional vouchers are anticipated this year.
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o Social Services continues to maintain the number of families enrolled in the public
housing/HCV homeownership program.

s Plans were submitted to HUD to create transitional housing units which will be used to
encourage homeownership opportunities. '

o MIA completed required documents and submitted date to HUD for the purpose of
placing seven (7) MHA-owned houses under the ACC. Plan is currently being reviewed
by HUD officials.

4, Provide an improved living environment free from crime and discrimination

Progress Update:

e MHA continues to offer “rental specials” such as one month rent-free options “to hard to
rent” locations at Eastern and Western gardens in an effort to bring high income
households into lower income communities.

e MHA has completed its security lighting initiatives at Mt. View Village, Mt. Barton and
Eastern Gardens in an effort to provide safer neighborhoods. Western Gardens is the next
major initiative.

¢ MHA continues to contract police liaison officers through the Meridian Police
Department to ensure crime free environments throughout the Authority. Noticeable
crime reduction in public housing noted.

e MHA continues to conduct on-going efforts to update its non-resident ban list to identify
individuals who commit criminal acts on public housing properties. Over 250 violators
are banned from public housing properties.

3. Promote self-sufficiency and asset development of assisted households

Progress Update:

e MHA increased the percentage of employed persons in assisted families through its
Community and Supportive Services Department.

o  MHA conducted a successful job fair for the Frank Berry revitalization effort which
attracted approximately 400 local residents.

¢  MHA implemented its High School Endowment Trust program by providing a full four-
year academic scholarship to a public housing resident. Two public housing residents are
currently enrolled as endowment trust scholars.

6. Provide or attract supportive services to increase independence for the elderly or
families with disabilities

Progress Update:

e MHA will continue to apply for ROSS grants to employ Resident Services Coordinators
to oversee activities of the elderly population throughout its portfolio.
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10.

11,

Ensure equal opportunity and affirmatively further fair housing

Progress Update:

MHA employees attended workshops that concentrated on upholding fair housing laws
and equal opportunity.

Continue to enhance the marketability of MHA public housing communities

Progress Update:

MHA continues to conduct quarterly mass meetings with all full-time employees
emphasizing the importance of good customer service.

Agency-wide clean-up campaigns, lawn upkeep, landscaping projects, playground
maintenance, modernization and evaluation are conducted on an “on-going” basis.

Maintain resident safety and community perception of safety and security in all
MHA communities

Progress Update:

MHA continues to conduct “on-going” efforts with Security Consultants and the
Meridian Police Department to assess and monitor resident activities.

MHA police liaison officers identified and removed over 125 criminal violators from
MHA properties.

MHA held quarterly meetings with Chief of Police and Security Consultant to identify
trends in city-wide criminal activity.

Expand the range and quality of housing choices available to participants in the
MHA assisted programs

Progress Update:

MHA maintained an occupancy rate of 97%.

MHA responded to routine work orders within 20 days.

MHA addressed all emergency work orders within the HUD mandated 24-hour period.

Ensure equal treatment of applicants, residents, HCV participants and vendors

Progress Update:

MHA continues to provide equal consideration for employment opportunities including
any resident who met the job gualifications.

MHA continues to enforce Section 3 requirements in hiring and contracting and bidding
awards by providing contractors with a listing of qualified MHA residents.
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12.

13.

Ensure full compliance with afl applicable standards and regulations including
GAAP principles

Progress Update:

MHA’s accounting department operated in a manner that income (including HUD
subsidy) exceeded expenses during the past fiscal year.

Enhance image of public housing in the Meridian Community

Progress Update:

MHA Executive Director currently serves on the local Community Foundation,
Mainstreet Downtown Development and United Way Boards to promote and bolster
MHA’s image.

MHA Executive Director conducted numerous media appearances promoting the positive
impact that public housing initiatives have had on the City of Meridian

MHA continues to appropriately distribute the monthly resident newsletter, HOME-Life,
to 1215 public housing residents and over 65 community partners and public officials.
On October 5, 2011, MHA held a community parade and grand re-opening of the
revitalized Frank Berry Community which was covered by both local and national news
media outlets.

Other Goals:

14,

15.

16.

Study, evaluate and recommend appropriate supply of affordable housing for low
income and moderate income households and special needs population

Progress Update:
On going

Identify and initiate services and programs that meet the immediate needs of all
MHA residents

Progress Update:
On going

Enhance relationship with government agencies and community partners

Progress Update:

On going
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17. Improve financial base: update MHA policies; implement cross-training of
employees

Progress Update:
On going
18. Evaluate Queen City properties for the purpose of determining routine and

extraordinary maintenance needs as well as the long-term financial viability of the
properties in part or whole

Progress Update:
¢ Plans are currently underway with assistance from Lloyd & Associates, MHA has

procured the developmental services of the Michaels Development Company to complete
viability options for the Queen City properties.
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Financial Resources:
Planned Sources and Uses

Sources . Planned $ Planned Uses
1. Federal Grants (FY 2011 grants)

a) Public Housing Qperating Fund $ 3,378,508.40

by Public Housing Capital Fund $ 1,531,716.00

¢) HOPE VI Revitalization $ -

d) HOPE VI Demolition 5 -

¢) Annual Contributions for Section 8 Tenant{ $ 932,731.00

Based Assistance

f)  Resident Opportunity and Seif-Sufficiency} $ 57,011.00

Grants

g) Community Development Block Grant -

h) HOME -
Other Federal Grants (list below)
RHF 11 $ 120,735.00 | Transistional Housing
2. Prior Year Federal Grants (unobligated
funds only) (list below)
ROSSFSS 5 57,011.00 {Family Self Sufficiency Program
RHF 06 $ 181,561.00 | Transistional Housing
RHF 07 $ 160,826.00 | Transistional Housing
RHF 08 $ 147,208.00 | Transistional Housing
RHF 09 $ 149,415.00 |Transistional Housing
RHF 10 $ 151,769.00 JTransistional Housing
3. Public Housing Dwelling Rental Income b 2,171,720.13 |development expenses
4, Other income (list below)
Excess Utilities $ 155,008.52 |development expenses
Administrative Fees $ 136,882.47 Jadministrative expenses
Misc charges 7 $ 117,514.23 |development expenses
4, Non-federal sources (list below)

Total resources $ 9,449.616.75
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RECIOR & REEDER, PG

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Commissioners " BUD- Mississippi Office
Housing Authority of the City of Meridian 100 Wast Capito! Street, Room 910
Meridian, MS 39302 Jackson, Mississippi 35269-1096

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2011, as Hsted in the fable of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Housing Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assuraice about whether the
financial statements are freo of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppotting the
amounts -and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles wsed and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that

our audit provides a reasonabls basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial positioni of the
Housing Authority of the City of Meridian, as of March 31, 2011, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the
year then ended In conformity with accounting prineiples generaily accepted in the United States of America, ‘

In accordance with Government Audiiing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27, 2011 on our
consideration of the Housing Authority's internal contro] over financial reporting and our fests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that festing, and not o provide
an opinion on the internat control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the tesults of our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 1s not a required part of the basic financial stafements but is supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, We have applied cerfain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it,

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
basic financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards as required by the U.S, Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Govermnents,
and Non-Profit Organizations, as well as the Financial Data Schedules and Special Reports required by the U.S, Departinent of
Housing and Utban Development, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements, Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and, in our opinion; the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in refation to the basio financial statements tekenasa

whole.
| /z«& 1 Mo, A1,

Rector & Reeder, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Lawrencevlile, Georgia
Qctober 27,2011

AttachegntMAeRAR duntanss « 1305 Lakes Parkway » Suite 110 » Eawrenceville, GAJO03 » (770)879-8411  Fax:{770)879-843] = wwwwire-cpa.com
]
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
MERIDIAN

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
March 31,2011

The Meridian Housing Authority (“the Authority”) management’s discussion and analysis is
designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an
overview of the Authority’s financial activity, (c) identify changes in the Authority’s financial
position (its ability to address the next and subsequent yeat challenges), and (d) identify
individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the
current Fiscal Year’s (FY) activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read
it in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

¢ The Authority’s net assets increased by $3,561,290 or 8.68% during 2011 due to an
increase in operating funding. Since the Authority engages only in business-type
activities, the increase is in the category of business-type net assets, Net Assets were
$44.61 million and $41.05 million for FY 2011 and FY 2010 respectively.

o The business-type activity revenue decreased by $1,629,030 or 10.73% during FY
2011. The primary reason for the decrease in revenue was due to a decrease in subsidy
and other grant activity. Total revenue was $13.56 million and $15,19 million for F'Y
2011 and FY 2010 respectively.

o The total expenses of all Authority programs decteased by $3,351,368 or 25.11%.
Primary rcasons for decreases in expense were attributable to decreased tenant
services, utilities, and maintenance. Total expenses were $9.99 million and $13.35
million for FY 2011 and FY 2010 respectively.
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USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The following graphic outlining these changes is provided for your review:

MD&A

~ Management’s Discussion
and Analysis ~

Basic Financial Statentents

~ Authority-wide Financial Statements ~
~ Notes to Financial Statements ~

Other Required Supplementary Information

~ Required Supplementary Information ~

The primary focus of the Authority’s financial statement (summarized fund-type information)
has been discarded. The focus is on the consolidated business type basis. This consolidates
all programs into a consolidated statement of net assefs, This method is easier for the end

user to analyze and to understand.
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Authority-Wide Financial Statements

The Authority-wide financial statements (see Tables I through V) ate designed to be
corporate-like in that all business type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a

total for the entire Authority.

These Statements include a Statement of Net Assets, which is similar to a Balance Sheet,
The Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources for the Authotity. The
statement is presented in the format where assets, minus liabilities, equal “Net Assets,”
formerly known as equity. Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are
classified as “Curtent” (convertible into cash within one year), and “Non-current,”

The focus of the Statement of Net Assets (the “Unrestricted Net Assets™) is designed to
represent the net available liquid (non-capital) assets, net of Habilities, for the entire
Authority, Net Assets (formerly equity) are reported in three broad categories:

Net Assets. Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt: This component of Net Assets
consists of all Capital Assets, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes ot other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Assets: This component of Net Assets consists of restricted assets, when
constraints ate placed on the asset by creditors (such as debt covenants), granfors,
contributors, laws, regulations, etc.

Unrestricted Net Assets; Consists of Net Assets that do not meet the definition of “Net
Assets Invested in Capital Assets,” “Net of Related Debt,” or “Restricted Net Assets,”

The Authority-wide financial statements also include a Statement of Revenues, Bxpenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets (similar to an Income Statement). This Statement includes
Operating Revenues, such as rental income, Operating Bxpenses, such as administrative,
utilities, and maintenance, and depreciation, and Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses, such
as grant revenue, investment income and interest expense.

The focus of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets is the
“Change in Net Assets,” which is similar to Net Income or Loss.

Finally, a Statement of Cash Flows is included, which discloses net cash provided by, or used
for operating activities, non-capital financing activities, and from capital and related
financing activities.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Traditional users of governmental financial statements will find the consolidated Financial
Statements presentation more familiar. The focus is now on a consolidated balance rather
than the individual fund types or programs. The Authority consists of exclusively Enterprise
Funds. Enterprise funds utilize the full acerual basis of accounting: The Enterprise method
of accounting is similar to accounting utilized by the private sector accounting,

Many of the programs maintained by the Authority are requited by the Department of
Housing and Urban Devclopment. Others arc segregated to enhance accountability and
control.

The Authority’s Programs

Public Housing Program — Under the Conventional Public Housing Program, the Authority
rents units that it owns to low-income households. The Conventional Public Housing
Program is operated under an Annual Conttibutions Contract (ACC) with HUD, and HUD
provides Operating Subsidy and Capital Grant funding to enable the PHA to provide the
housing at a rent that is based upon 30% of household income after deductions. The
Conventional Public Housing Program also includes the Capital Fund Program, which is the
primary funding source for physical and management improvements to the Authority’s
properties.

Housing Choice Voucher — The objective of this program is to provide housing for eligible
low-income families through housing assistance payments to private landlords, The program
is administered under an Annwal Contributions Contract (ACC) with HUD.

New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Progratit — The Housing Authority serves
as a contract administrator for two Section 8 New Construction programs.

Queen City Apartients — The Housing Authority purchased 87 privately owned apartments
from HUD during the year ended March 31, 1988. All operations are separately accounted
for and are independent with respeet to the Housing Authority’s Annual Contributions
Contract.

HOPE VI Program — The objective of these programs is to build new low-income housing
units and provide additional housing stock. The purpose of Utban Revitalization ~ HOPE VI
is to revitalize distressed communities and joint venture with private lenders and partners in
the development of mixed-financing and mixed income properties. Funding for this program
is provided by grants from HUD.

Other Programs — The Local program jncludes the notes receivable funds loaned though the
HOPE VI program, and will be used to develop affordable housing in the Meridian area. The
Housing Authority also administers fwo other grants — Assistance to Firefighters Grant, and
the Americorp Rebuilds Mississippi Grant.
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AUTHORITY-WIDE STATEMENT

Statement of Net Assets

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets compared to prior year.
The Authority is engaged only in Business-Type Activities,

Housing Authority of the City of Meridian
Comparative Statement of Net Assets

TABLEI -

Account Descriptions 2011 2010 Total Change % Change
Current Assets 9,589,547 7,367,266 2,222,281 30.16%
Capital Assets 25,992,168 26,132,258 (140,090) -0.54%
Noncurtent assets 17,646,180 15,922,949 1,723,231 10.82%

Toial Assefs 53,227,895 49,422,473 3,805,422 7.70%
Curent Liabilities 1,543,029 967,563 575,466 59.48%
Noncurrent Liabilities 7,072,358 7,403,692 (33,334 -4.48%

Total Liabiiities 8,615,387 8,371,258 244,132 2,92%
Invested in Capital Assets

Net of Related Debt 18,820,431 18,670,911 149,520 0.86%
Restricted Net Assets 20,208,530 17,297,961 2,910,569 16,83%
‘Unrestricted Net Assets 5,583,547 5,082,346 501,201 9.86%

Total Net Assets 44,612,508 41,051,218 3,561,290 8.68%

Total Linbilities & Nef Assetfs 53,227,895 49,422,473 3,805,422 7.70%

Major Factors Affecting the Statement of Net Assets

Current assets increased by $2,222,281 or 30.16% due to net operating income, thus
increasing the cash position of the Authority.

Capital assets decreased by $140,090 or 0.54% due writc off of assets and normal
depreciation of assets, net of increases from the Capital Fund program.

Noncurrent assets increased by $1,723,231 or 10.82% due the recording of additional Noies
Receivables from activities related to HOPE VI and Stimulus Competitive Grant.
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Current liabilities increased by $575,466 due to increases in accounts payable vendors and
increase in compensated absences short term,

Noncurrent liabilitics decreased by $331,334 due mainly to the payment of bond principal.
Net Assets increased by $3,561,290 or 8.68% during FY 201 1.

Table II presents details on the change in Net Assets.

Housing Authority of the City of Meridian
Change in Net Assets

TABLE I
Net Assets @ 3/3172010 41,051,218
Net Income 3,561,290
Net Assets @ 3/31/2011 44,612,508
]

While the results of operations are a significant measure of the Authority’s activities, the

analysis of the changes in Net Assets provides a clearer change in financial well-being,
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The following schedule compares the revenues and expenses for the current and previous
fiscal year. The Authority is engaged only in Business-Type Activities,

Comparative Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

TABLETI
Account Descriptions 2011 2010 Total Change % Change
Tenant Revenue 2,552,008 2,655,323 (103,225) -3.39%
Operating Subsidies 6,416,931 0,877,284 (3,460,353) -35.03%
Capital Grants 2,741,932 2,014,744 727,188 36.09%
Other Govemment Granis - 318,116 (318,116) «100.00%
Interest Incorme 134,651 109,796 24,855 22.64%
Gain/(Loss) on disposition (563,609 (20,169) (543,440)  269443%
QOther Incotre 2,275,481 231,420 2,044,061 883.27%
Total Revenue 13,557,484 15,186,514 (1,629,030)  -10.73%
Administrative 2,018,460 1,999,451 {9,009 0.95%
Tenant Services 384,773 1,369,032 (984,259) -71.89%
Utilities 1,819,576 2,101,445 (281,869) -1341%
Maintenance 1,928,996 2,326,147 (397,151} -17.67%%
Insurance 265,173 279,967 (14,794) -5.28%
General 425,359 478,384 {53,025) -11.08%
Interest and Amort - Bonds 478,895 425214 53,681 12.62%
Protective Services 81,630 135,944 (54,319 -39.95%
Extraordinary Maintenance - 1,415,353 (1,415,353)  -100.00%
Housing Assistance Payments 1,240,923 1,397,991 {157,068) -11.24%
Depreciation 1,352,409 1,418,634 (66,225) 4.67%
Total Expenses 9,996,194 13,347,562 (3,351,368)  -28.11%
Change in Net Assets 3,561,290 1,838,952 1,722,338 93,66%
Prior Period Adjustment - (262,351) 262,351 -100.00%
Boginning Net Assets 41,051,218 39474,617 1,576,601 3,99%
Ending Net Assets 44,612,508 41,051,218 3,561,290 8.68%
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MAJOR FACTORS AFFECTING THE STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Total revenue decreased by $1,629,030 or 10.73% dwring fiscal year 2011,

o Tenant revenuc decreased by $103,225 or 3.89% due to higher paying residents
moving out and lower paying residents moving in.,

e Operating subsidies decreased by $3,460,333 or 35.03% due to decreases in Soft grant
activity.

e Capital grants increased by $727,188 ot 36.09% due to the increase in capital fund
construction activity.

o Other Government grants decreased by $318,116 or 100.00% due to no longer being
fanded under the Firefighters and Americorp grants.

e Interest income increased by $24,855 or 22.64% due to increascs in investment of
cash,

e Gain/Loss on Disposition of Assets increased by $543,440 or 2694.43% due to the
write off and sale of Frank Berry Coutts to a Limited Partnership.

¢ Other income increased by $2,044,061 or 883.27% due to the increases in program
income from development activity, and late fees, maintenance charges, and fraud

recovery.
In fiscal year 2011, the total expenses decreased by $3,351,368 or 25.11%.
o Administrative expenses increased by $19,009 or 0.95% due to a net increase from
COLA and adjustments in allocation of administrative expenses.

o Tenant services decreased by $984,259 or 71.89% due to decreases in HOPE VI
velated grants for future Resident Services.

o Utilitics expenses decreased by $281,869 or 13.41% due to decreases in consumption
and rafes.

¢ Maintenance expenses decreased by $397,151 or 17.07% due to decreases in the
amount of materials expended through the operating budget and expensed through
granfs,

o Insurance expense decreased by $14,794 or 5.28% due to decrease reduction in
workers compensation premiums,
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o General expenses decreased by $53,025 or 11 08% due 1o decreases in miscellaneous
general expenses and fenants bad debts.

o TInferest and Bond amortization expenses increased by $53,681 or 12,62% due to
increases in interest payments.

o Protective scrvices decreased by $54,314 or 39.95% due to decreases in expenditures
from grant related activities.

o Extraordinaty Maintenance decteased by $1,415,353 or 100.00% due to reduction in
HOPE VI grant activity.

e Housing Assistance Payments decreased by $157,068 or 11.24% due to lower leasing
rates,

o Depreciation expense decreased by $66,225 or 4.67% due to some assets becoming
fully depreciated.

Revenue

B Tenant Revenue

& Operating Subsidies

& Capital Grants

1 Other Government Grants
# Interest Income

# Gain/(L.oss) on disposition

@A Other Income
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Expenses

, 4%

# Administrative

& Tenant Setvices

& Utilitles

# Maintenarce

Insurance

& Qeneral

& Interest and Amort -
Bonds

& Protective Services

# Bxtraordinary

Mainfenance
i Housing Assistance

Payments
& Depreciation

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of year-end, the Authority had $25,992,168 invested in a variety of capital assets as

depreciation) of $140,090 from the end of last fiscal yeat.

The following reconciliation summarizes the change in Capital Assets.

Housing Authority of the City of Meridian
Comparative Statement of Capital Assets

reflected in the following schedule, which represents a net decrease (addition, deductions and

TABLE4
Accont Deseriptions 2011 2010 Total Change % Change

Land 1,549,629 1,549,629 - 0.00%
Buildings & improvements 44,115,593 45,738,549 (1,622,956) -3.55%
Equipment 1,447,885 1,524,512 (76,627 -5.03%
Construction in progress 5,147,434 3,496,043 1,651,391 47.24%
52,260,541 52,308,733 (48,192) -0.0%%

Accumutlated Depreciation (26,268,373) (26,176,475) (91,898) 0.35%
Total Capital Assets 25992,168 26,132,258 {140,090) 0,54%
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Net (additions minus disposals) depreciation expense for the fiscal year was $1,352,409
which was a 4.67% decrease over the prior year’s net depreciation expense.

DEBT OUTSTANDING
The Authority had the following debt outstanding at the end of its fiscal year.

"Housing Authority of the City of Meridian
Schedule of Notes Payable Activity

TABLE V
Notes Payable @ 3/31/2010 $7.,461,347
Retirements {289,610)
" Notes Payable @ 3/31/2011 $7,171,737

On December 1, 2005, the Authority issued $6,780,000 of Capital Fund Housing Revenue
Bonds from two different bond issues. The first is a $6,610,000 Series 2005A Capital Funds
Housing Revenue Bonds and the second is a $170,000 Series 2005B, Taxable Capital Fund
Housing Revenue Bonds. There are no current year maturities on this obligation. Fuiure
Capital Fund Grants will be used to liquidate this debt and the proceeds from the Bond
obligation are restricted for Capital Fund purposes. The notes payable balance for the Public
Housing Program was $5,825,000 with principal payments of $270,000 made by the fiscal
agent on behalf of the PHA. The outstanding debt balance for Business Activities, Queen
City Apartments, was $1,346,737 at March 31, 2011. This included a principal payment
during the year of $37,300.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The Housing Authority is primarily dependent upon HUD for the funding of operations;
therefore, the Housing Authority is affected more by the federal budget than by local
econornic conditions. The funding of programs could be significantly affected by the 2011
federal budget. : :

FINANCIAL CONTACT

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a
general overview of the Housing Authority’s finances and to show the Housing Authority’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or wish
to request additional information, contact Mrs, Marcy Chatham, CPA, MBA, Director of
Finatice at the Meridian Housing Authority, P O Box 870, Meridian, Mississippi 39302,
Phone (601) 693-4285,
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Current Elghilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Unearned revenus

Long term debt - current portion

Other current liabilities

Tenant secutity deposits/escrow deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabititles
Long term debt

Accrued compensated absences
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Resiricted net assets
Unrestricted net assels

TOTAL NET ASSETS

1IABILITIES & NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
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639,752
329,643
9,960
307,300
178,835
77,339

1,543,029

6,864,437
58,036
149,885

7,072,358

8,615,387

18,820,431
20,208,530
5,583,547

44,612,508

53,227,895




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN PROGRAM NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

Onerafing Revenues
Dwelling rent

Governmenial grants & subsidy
Other income
Total Operating Reveniles

QOperating Expenses

Administration

Tenant services

Utilities

Maintenance & operations

Protective services

General expense

Housing assistance payments

Depreciation & amortization
Total Operating Expense

Net Operating Income/(E.055)

Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses)

Invesiment income
Interest sxpense
Gain/(Loss) on disposition of assets
Net Nonoperafing Revenues/(Expenses)
Net Income/(Loss) before capital contributions
Capital grants

Increase/(Decrense) In Net Assets

Prior period adjustment
Total Net Assets - beginning

Total Net Assets - ending

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Attachment MS004b01
14

$

$

2,552,098
6,416,931
2,275,481

11,244,510

2,018,460
384,773
1,819,576
1,928,996
81,630
690,532
1,240,923
1,432,503

9,597,393

1,647,117

134,651
(398,801)
(563,609)

(827,75%)

819,358

2,741,932

3,561,290

41,051,218

44,612,508




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers aud users

Governmental granis & subsidy - operations

Payments to suppliers

Payments for housing assistance

Payments to employees

NET CASH PROVIDED/USED) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments

Issuance of notes receivable - new homes

Fssuance of notes receivable - capital fund

Interest received
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grant revenus - capital grants

Acquisition of capital assets - capital grants

Additions from operations

Payments on mortgage notes

Inferest paid

NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASII AT END OF PERIOD

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of ihe financial statements.
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4,827,579
6,416,931
(3,716,067)
(1,240,923)
(2,404,324)

3,883,196

(2,186,845)

(182,555)
(1,511,783)
71,479

(3,809,704)

2,741,932
(1,701,290)
(120,453)
(289,610)
(398,801)

231,778

305,270
5,999,571

6,304,341




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income/(Loss) from operations
Adjustrments to reconcile net loss to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation & amortization

Dectease (Increase) in accounts receivable
Decrease (Increase) in prepald expenses
Decrease (Increase) in inventory
Increase (Decreaso) in accounts payable
Increase (Decrease) in accrued liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (Decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase (Decrease) in security/trust deposits

NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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1,647,117

1,432,503
178,183
59,689
31,962
393,692
55,577
(2,369)
89,738
(2,396)

3,883,196




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31,2011

NOTE A- SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY; '

1. Introduction:

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). As permitted by GAAP, the Authorily has elected
pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting Jor Proprietary
Funds and Other Govermmental Entities that use Proprietary Accounting, to apply all relevant
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements and only applicable
Financial Accounting Standards Beard (FASB) pronouncements opinions issued on or after
November 30, 1989 that do not contradict GASB pronouncements in the preparation of the
financial statements. ‘The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are
described below:

2, Organization:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian (“The Authority”) is a public body and a body
corporate and politic organized under the laws of the State of Mississippi by the City of
Meridian for the purpose of providing adequate housing for qualified low-income individuals,
To accomplish this purpose, the City appoints a Governing Board, but the Board designates its
own management. Additionally, the Authority has entered into annual contribution coniracts
with the U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”) to be the administrator
of the housing and housing related programs described herein, The Authority is not subject to
Federal or State income taxes and is nof required to file Federal or State income tax retumns,

3., Reporiing Enfity:

In determining how to define the reporting entity, management has considered alt potential
component units by applying the criteria set forth in Section 2100 and 2600 of the Codlfication
of Governiment Accounting Standards Board and Financial Accounting Standards Board and
Statement Number 14 of the Government Accounting Standards Board, the Financial Reporting

Entity.

Financial Accountability - The Authority is responsible for its debts, does not impose a financial
burden on the City and is entitled to all surpluses. No separate agency receives a financial
benefit nor imposes a financial burden on the Authority.

Appointment of a Voting Majority ~ The Authority is governed by a Board of Commissioners
appointed by the City and has govemance responsibilities over all activities related to all
housing activities within the City. The Board of Commissioners has decision making authority
and the power to designate management, The members do not serve at the diserefion of the
City; i.e., they can be removed only for cause, The Authority’s Board efects its own chairperson.

Imposition of Will - The County has no influence over the management, budget, or policies of
the Authority. The Authority’s Board of Commissioners has the responsibility to significantly
influence the Authority’s operations, This includes, but is not limited to, adoption of the budget,
personstel management, sole title to, and residual interest in all assets (including facilities and
properties), signing conteacts, issuing bonds, and deciding which programs are to be provided.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31,2011
(Continued)

NOTEA- SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY: (Cont’d)

3. Reporting Entity: (Cont’d)

On the basis of the application of these criteria, the Authority Is a legally separate entity that is
fiscally independent of other governments, and there are no other entities that are to be reported
as component units of the Authority nor for the Authorily to be included in the City of
Meridian’s financial reports therefore, the Aunthority repotts independently. During the review
of the Authority’s budgets, annual contributions contract, minutes of the Board of
Commissioner’s mestings, cash recoipts and cash disbursements for the reporting period
disclosed that the Authority operated the following programs under Annual Contributions
Contract:

a. Public Housing Program — 1,060 units were available for rent by the Housing Aunthority.
Ineluded in this program is the Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services Program. In
addition fo this the PHA has a Capital Fund Program separately funded by HUD for the
modernization of certain units,

b, New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program — The Housing Authority
serves as a contract administrator for two Section 8 New Construction progtams and two
Section 8 Substantial Rehabilitation programs which represent a total of 360 units.

¢, Queen Clty Apariments — The Housing Authority purchased 81 privately owned
apartments from HUD during the year ended March 31, 1988, All operations are sepatately
accounted for and are independent with respect to the Housing Authority’s Annual
Coniribution Contract.

d. Housing Choice Voucher — The objective of this program is to provide housing for
eligible low-income families through housing assistance payments to private landlords,
Also, duting the year the Housing Authority received Katrina vouchers from FEMA &
additional disaster vouchers from HUD,

¢, HOPE VI Program — The objective of these programs is to build new low-income
housing units and provide additional housing stock. The purpose of Urban Revitalization
— HOPE VI is to revitalize distressed communities and joint venture with private lenders
and partners in the development of mixed-financing and mixed income properties.
Funding for this program is provided by grants from HUD. The initial phase of this
program provided for the demolition of the stressed units.

f.  Other Programs — The Local program includes the notes receivable funds loaned through
the HOPE VI program, and will be used to develop affordable housing in the Meridian
area, The Housing Authority also administers two other grants — Assistance to
Firefighters Grant, and the Americorps Rebuilds Mississippi Grant, In addition the
Housing Authorify has recelved two Capital Fund Stimulus Grants through the ARRA
program during the year,

Component Unit

In October 2004, the Housing Authority of Meridian Established the Meridian/MHA Housing
Development Corporation, a Section 501 (¢} (3) non-profit corporation, established for the
purposes of solicitation and pursuit of grants and Low-Income Housing Tax Credits. The
Housing Authority is the sole member of the corporation, During the audit period, the
corporation was inactive and had no material transactions to report.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31,2011
{Continued)

NOTEA- SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY: (Cont’d}

4, Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting and Measurement ocus:

Basis of Accounting - The Authority uses the accrual basis of accounting for all fands. Under
this method, revenues aro rccorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flow takes place.

Basis of Presentation - The financial statements of the Anthority are presented from a fund
perspective. Fund accounting is designed to demonsfate legal compliance and to ald
financial management by segregating transactions related to certain Authority functions. The
fund is a separate accounting enity with a self-balancing set of accounts, The accounting and
financial reporting method applied by a fund is determined by the fund’s measurement focus.
The accounting objectives aro determination of net income, financial position and cash flows.
All assets and Habilities associated with the PHA’s activities are included on the Statement of
Net Assets. The Authority uses the following fund:

Enterprise fund - This type of fund is reported using an economic resources measurement
foous. Additionally, it is used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private businesses where a fee is charged to external users for services
provided.

The authority’s net assets are reported in thres parts-invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; restricted net assets; and unresfricted net assets. The authotity first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The authority’s net assets are reported in three components:

1. Tnvested in capitaf assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted net assets — Consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use by
external groups including HUD, creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments,

3. Unresiricted net assets — Alf other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“rastricted” or “invested” in capital assets, net of related debt,

5. Revenues and Expenses:

Revenuss and expenses are recognized in essentially the same manner as used in commercial
accounting. Revenues relating to the Authority’s operating activities including rental related
income, interest income and other sources of revenues are recognized in the accounting period
in which they are eamed. Other major soutces of revenues include the operating subsidy from
HUD and other HUD funding for capital and operating expenses.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Merldian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31,2011
(Continued)

NOTEA- SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY: (Cont’d)

6. Encumbrances:

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
The Authority does not utilize encumbrance accounting.

7. Budgets:

Enterprise Fund service delivery levels are determined by the extent of consumer demand.
Because Enterprise Fund revenues and oxpenses fluctuate with changing service delivery
levels, generally accepted accounting principles do not require the financial statements to
include budgetary comparisons and accordingly, these comparisons have not been included,

Budgets are prepared for regulatory pumposes in accordance with the Authority’s Annual
Contributions Contract ({ACC) with HUD, The entity prepares annual budgets for each
program. Prior to the beginning of each budget year, the entity’s annual budget is approved
by the entity’s governing body. Budgetary amendments require approval by the goveming
bady. Al budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year, Budgets for Capital
Fund Programs are approved in the Authority’s five-year plan and annual plan process by the
governing body and by HUD.

8, Inventories:

Tnventories are recorded on a firsi-In, first out basis. The periodic method is used fo account
for inventories. Under the perlodic method, inveniories are charged to expense when
purchased and adjusted periodically upon physical inventory count.

9, Capital Assets and Depreciation:

Capital assets are stated af historical cost. Donated capital assets are stated at their fair value
on the date donated. This includes site acquisition and improvemont, siructures and
equipment, All infrastructure asscts were capitalized at the conclusion of development then
dedicated to the City of Meridian for maintenance and repairs. Depreciation of exhaustible
capital assets is charged as an expense against operations, and accumulated depreciation is
reporied on the Statement of Net Assets.

The estimated useful lives for each major class of depreciable capital assets are as Tollows:

Buildings & improvements 15-40 years
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 5-7 years
Vehicles 5-7 years

10, Collection Losses:

Collection losses on accounts receivable are expended, in the appropriate Fund, on the
specific write-off method,
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2011
(Continued)

NOTEA- SUMMARY OF ORGANIZATION, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
REPORTING ENTITY:. (Cont'd)

11,

12

13,

14,

Insurance:

The primary technique used for risk financing is the purchase of insurance policies from
commercial insurers that include a large deductible amount, The use of a large deductible
clause reduces the cost of insutance, but, should loses oceur, the portion of the uninsured loss
is not expected to be significant with respeot to the financial position of the Authority. The
Authority secures required insurance coverage through the competitive bid process. As of the
date of the fieldwork, the Authority had the required coverage in force.

Cash and Investments:

«  The Authority cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and shorf-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

«  Investments are stated at fair value, except for U. 8. Treasury Bills, which are reported at
amortized cost. The Authority reports all money market investments having a remaining
maturity at time of purchase of three months or more at amortized cost, Investment
securities are normally held to mature at par value and the Authority ignores all gains and
losses due to the Held to Maturity status of the Authority’s investment policy.

Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, i.e., sick leave, vacation,
and ofher approved leaves, Tn accordance with GASB Statement No.16, Accountlng for
Compensated Absences, the Authority accrues the liability for those absences that the employee
has earned the rights to the benefits, Accrued amounts are based on the current salary rates.
Full-time, permanent employces are granted vacation and sick leave benefits in varying amounts
to specified maximums depending on tenure with the Authority. Vacation and sick pay is
recorded as an expense and related liability In the year earned by employees.

Operating Revenue:

Proprictary fimds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses gencrally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprictary fund's principal ongoing operations, The
principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for rents, Operating
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation oh
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Subsidies received from HUD or other grantor agencies, for operating purposes, are recorded as
operating revenue in the operating statement while capital grant funds are added to the net assets
below the non-operating revenue and expense.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2011
(Continued)

NOTE B- CASH AND INVESTMENTS:

All the deposits of the Housing Authotity of the City of Meridian are either insured or
collateralized by using the Dedicated Method whereby all deposlts that exceed the federal
depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the Authority’s
agents in these units’ names. The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian has no policy
regarding custodial credit risk for deposits,

At March 31, 2011, the Authority’s deposits had a carrying amount of $6,304,341 and a bank
balance of $6,421,421. Of the bank balances held in various financial institutions, $750,000 was
covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder was covered by collateral held under
the dedicated method. At March 31, 2011, the Authority’s petty cash/change funds totaled $500.

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Rating
Certificates of Deposit 2,186,845 Various N/A
Total 2,186,845

Interest rate risk - As a means of limiting its exposure to market value losses arising from rising
interest rates, the Authority’s typically limits its investment portfolio to maturities of 12 months or
less. The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian has no specific policy regarding interest rate

risk.
Credit risk - The Authority has no policy regarding credit risk,

Custodial credit risk - For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the ovent of the
failure of the counterparty, the Authority wiil not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Authority had no funds that
were considered to be investments and as such all funds were classified as cash & cash

equivalents, The Authority has no policy on custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk - The Authorlty places no Hmit on the amount that i may invest in
any one issuer. The Authority has no policy regarding credit risk. The following is a summary of

funds held by each institution:

63% Trustmark Bank $ 5,880,974
12% Wells Fargo Trust 722,966
25% Citizens National Bank 1,886,845
0% A.W.Richardson 401
0% Peity Cash 300
$ 8491686
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HOUSING AUTH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SFTATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2011
{Continued)

NOTEB- CASH AND INVESTMENTS: (Cont’d)

Cash & Investments at March 31, 2011, consisted of the fotlowing:

Checking & Repurchase Agreements

Certificates of Deposit

Wells Fargo Trust accounts - restricted

Petty cash

Totals

Restricted Cash and Invesiments:

ORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippl

$ 5,581,375
2,186,845
722,966

500

491

§ 77,539
149,885
371,873
236,345
722,967

559,359
118,468

Al deposits in excess of FDIC insurance limits are covered by securities pledged as collateral,

Tenant security deposits
FSS escrow
HCYV equity
DVP equity
Debt service
Frank Bemry proceeds
Totals
Collateralization:
Security Cusip
FHLMC 3134GIPW3S
FNMA 31381PHUS
FNMA 31394CUPS
FHIMC 31395MYR4
FNMA J1418NZK0
Citizens National Bank
Cusip
043519RTG
069383WXI
07383EBQ3
410019BC6
497494111
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Maturlty Date

8/16/2018
117172020
1/25/1930
6/15/1931
3/1/1940

23

Interest Rate

3.00%
3.53%
5.00%
4.75%
4,50%

Markei Value

& 4,713,984
350,173

788,240

671,011

1,245,082

$____ 1768490

Pledged Amount
3 900,000
415,600
250,000
515,000
380,000

$___ 2460000




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2011
{Continued)
NOTEC- ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE;

Accounts receivable at March 31, 2011, consisted of the following:

Tenants — (net of allowance $3,474) $ 19,690
HUD 576,443
Accrued interest receivablo 4,427
AR —Mise. 209,836
Notes receivable — current portion 12,851
Fraud recovery 1,396

8 824,643

The above receivable balance excludes $272,899 of interfund balances that have been ¢liminated as a
result of consolidated financial statements at March 31, 2011,

NOTE D- DEFERRED CHARGES:

Deferred charges consisted of the following at Mareh 31, 2011:

Prepaid Insurance $ 143,093
Inventory — (net of obsolete $1,000) 130,125
§ 273218

NOTE E- CAPITAL ASSETS:

The following is a summary of changes in the net capital assets during the fiscal year ended March

31,2011
Beghning Ending
Balances Additions Retkemenis Transfrs Balances
Enterprise Activities
Capifal assefs not being depreclated:
Land § 1,549,629 § - % -3 - 5 1,549629
Consiretion it progress 3,496,043 1,701,291 - (49,960} 5,147,434
Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,043,072 1,701,291 - - 6,697,063
Infrastructuro
Buildings & miprovements 45,738,548 18,925 {1,691,730) 49,900 44,115,593
Fumniture & equipment 1,524,513 37,039 (113,667 4 1,447,885
Total capltal assets being depreciated 47,263,061 55,964 (1,805,447) 49,900 45,563,478
Less acoumntated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvennis 24,398,226 1,091,866 (1,189,014) - 24,301,078
Fumiure & equipment 1,778,249 260,544 (71,498} - 1,967,295
Total acccumulated depreciation 26,176,475 1,352,410 {1,260,512) ‘ - 26,268,373
Total capital assets being depreciated 21,086,586 19,295,105
Enterprise activity capital asses, net $ 26,132,258 § 25,992,168
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NOTE ¥ -

NOTE G -

NOTEH -

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2011
(Continued)

NOTES RECEIVABLE:

On March 31, 2009, the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian (HACM) entered in fo a
predevelopment loan agreement with the Michaels Dovelopment Company, Inc. (MDC) to provide
financial assistance to assist the developer in performing predevelopment costs associated with the
redevelopment of Victory Village. These costs include, but are not limited fo, master site
planning, architectural design work, and site engineering work,. HACM has agreed to advance
715% of certain third party costs np to a total of $989,166, As of March 31, 2011, $989,166 had
been advanced to Davis Associates, L.P. on this loan, The current balance on this loan as of
March 31, 2011 is $726,815. In addition to this, the Housing Authority utilized funding from the
Capital Fund Financing Program to assist in the development of .T. Davis Court. Consequently,
$5,528,612 was loaned to Davis Associates, L.P. in the form of a Bond Promissory Note. These
Joans bear zero percent (0%) interest and shall be payable from excess cash flows of the
development. In addition to these loans there is another loan in the amount of $1,652,974
receivable from the Village Associates along with accrued interest of $246,138 related to this note.
This note bears interest at a rate of 4.98% per annum. This note will be repaid from cash flow
from the HOPE VI investor controlied property in future periods, Another loan was issued in
relation to the JT Davis HOPE VI project in the amount of $7,530,213 at 0% interest at the
completion of the project. The current balance of the loan is $7,530,213. This note will be repaid
from cash flow from the HOPE VI investor controlled property in future periods. Additionally,
fwo few notes were issued on September 9, 2010 for Frank Berry Courts for a receivable amount
of $1,040,642 and $471,141. As of March 31, 2011 there was a total outstanding notes receivable
of $17,411,346 which included accrued interest recelvable not currently due, and two second
mortgages from HOPE VI in the amount of $214,811. The current portion of this receivable Is
$12,851, which s mentioned above in Note C.

FINANCING COSTS:

Durlng the year ended March 31, 1999, the Housing Authority on behalf of the Queen City
program, incurred refinancing costs on Notes Payable, The total costs of 871,569 are being
amortlzed over the Hfe of the loan. At March 31, 2011, total cumulative amortization was
$29,202. The unamortized balance at the year-end was $42,368, and amortization expense for the
year was $2,365. In addition to this, the Housing Authority issued $6,780,000 in Revenue Capital
Fund Bonds Payable during the year. In conjunction with this issnance of bonds, there was
$278,396 of financing costs incurred which will be amortized over the lifc of the loan. The
cumulative amortization was $73,079, which leaves an unamortized balance of $205,317 at March
31, 2011, The total combined unamortized cost at March 31, 2011 is $247,685,

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE:
Accounts payable at March 31, 2011, conslisted of the following:
Vendors & contractors payable $ 565,750

Accounts payable — other governments 74,002
Tenant security deposits 71.539

§ 717291
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31,2011
(Continued)
NOTEI- ACCRUED LIABILITIES & UNEARNED REVENUE:

Accrued liabilities and unearned rovenue at March 31, 2011 consisted of the following:

Accrued salaries/fringos $ 115981
Accrued interest payable 32,688
Accrued compensated absences — current portion 180,974
Unearned revenue 9,960
Other current liabilities — accrued utilities 167,304
Other accrued liabilities 1,531
Current portion — long-terin debt 307300
825
NOTEJ- OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Noncurrent liabitities at March 31, 2011 consisted of the following;
Long-term debt payable $ 6,864,437
Accrued compensated absences 58,036
Other noncurrent Habilities _ 149.885
8 35
A schedule of changes in noncurrent liabilities is as follows:
Balance Balance Cumrent Portion
April 1, 2010 Increases  Decreases March 31,2011 of Balance
Long-term debt payable $ 7461347 § - % (280610) % 7,171,737 § 307,300
Compensated absences 192,371 59,275 (12,636) 239,010 180,974
I'SS escrow 151,162 - {1,277 149,885 -
3 7804880 § 59275 §  (303523) 7,560,632 § 488,274

A. Notes Payable - Queen City:

During the year ended March 31, 1988, the Housing Authority purchased 87 privately owned
apartmenis from HUD, During the same period, the Housing Authority entered into 26
individual 30-year notes totaling $1,739,986. During the year ended March 31, 1999 the
Housing Authority refinanced the outstanding loan balance. The refinanced notes mature in
the year 2029 and carry an anuual interest rate of 7.5% with monthly principal, interest, and
escrow payments of $11,42005, The total intorest paid for the year ended March 31, 2011
was $102,238. The Housing Authority has entered into 26 individual deeds of trust which
secures the 87 units as collateral for the notes. The balance of the note at March 31, 2011 was

$1,346,737.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN

Meridian, Mississippt
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31,2011
(Continued)
NOTEJ- OTHERNON CURRENT LIABILITIES: (Conf'd)
A. Notes Payable - Queen City: (Cont’d)
Maturities of long-term debt for each of the five succeeding years and in the aggregate were as
follows at March 31, 2011:
Fiscal yearending
March 31, Principal " Interest Total
2012 $ 37,300 3 99,740 % 137,040
2013 40,196 06,844 137,040
2014 43,317 93,723 137,040
2015 46,680 90,360 137,040
2016 50,303 86,737 137,040
2017-2021 316,522 368,681 685,203
2022-2026 460,000 225,203 685,203
2027-2029 352419 40,333 392,752
$ 1,346,737 $ 1,101,621 $ 2448358
B. Bonds Payable - Capital Fund:
The Housing Authority on December 1, 2009 has issued $6,780,000 of Capital Fund Housing
Revenue Bonds from two different bond issues. The first is a $6,610,000 Series 2009A
Capital Funds Housing Revenue Bonds, and the sccond is a $170,000 Series 2009B, Taxable
Capital Fund Housing Revenue Bonds. The outstanding balance of Bonds Payable at March
31, 2011 was $5,825,000 and interest accrues at a rate of 5% per annum. Future HUD Capital
Fund Grant funds will be used to liquidate this debt, The proceeds from the Bond obligation
are restricted for Capital Fund purposes.
Fiscal year ending
March 31, Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 270,000 $ 284500 $ 554,500
2013 285,000 270,625 555,625
2014 295,000 256,125 551,125
2015 310,000 241,000 551,000
2016 330,000 225,000 555,000
20172021 1,905,000 855,125 2,760,125
2022-2026 2,430,000 315,750 2,745,750
$ 5825000 § 2448125 § 8,273,125
Attachmant MS004b01
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NOTE K. -

NOTE L-

NOTE M -

NOTE N -

NOTE O-

HOUSHNG AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2011
(Continued)

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY:

Both the PHA owned Housing Program and the Housing Choice Voucher Programs are
economically dependent on annuat contributions and grants from HUD. Both programs operaie at
a logs prior to receiving the contributions and grants,

RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Authority is exposed to various risks of losses related to toris; theft or, damage to, and
destruction of assels; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Claims
liabHities are veported when it is probable that a foss has occurred and the amount of that loss can
be reasonably estimated, There were no claims in excess of commercial coverage during the
previous three years. These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred buf not
reported, At March 31, 2011, there were no liabilitles to be reporied.

IMPAIRMENT OF CAPITAL ASSETS:

In accordance with new financial reporting standards issued by the Government Accounting
Standards Board’s, Statement No. 42, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of
Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoverles” requires certain note disclosures During the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2011, the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian experionced no
impairments.

PENSION PLAN:

All eligible employees of the Housing Authority participate in the Public Employees’ Retirement
System of Mississippi (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer contribution plan, The Housing
Authority total covered payroll for the year ended March 31, 2011 was $1,960,253.

Membership in PERS is a condition of employment of all eligible employses of the State of
Mississippi, public schools, institutions of higher learning, community and junior colleges, and
oligible employees of municipalities, counties, and other political subdlvisions and
instcumentalities of municipal and county govemment fhat have entered into a Membership
Agreement approved by PERS Board of Trustees. PERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by State law and may be amended only by the State of
Mississippi Legislatre. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information.

PERS members are required to contribute 7.25% of their annual covered salary and the Housing
Authority is required to contribute at a rate of 12,0% the annual covered payroll. The Housing
Authority’s coniribution for the year ended March 31, 2011 was $235,230, and the fotal pension
contribution for the year was $402,680.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There wero ne related party transactions to be reported for the fiscal year onded March 31,2011,
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NOTEP-

NOTE Q-

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Merldian, Mississippl

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31,2011
{Continued)

COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES:

Legal:

The Authority is involved in various legal proceedings and litigation arising in the normal course
of business. Management does not beliove that the setflement of any such claims or litigation will
have a material adverse effect on the Authority’s financial position or results of operations,

Grants and contracts:

The Authority participates in various federally-assisted grant programs that are subject to Toview
and audit by the grantor agencies. Entitlement to these resources are generally conditional based
upon compliance with terms, conditions, faws and regulations governing grant agreements and
applicable federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. Any
disallowance resulting from a federal audit may become a liability for the Authority. There were
no such labilities recorded as of March 31, 2011.

The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program under the implementation of the Consolidated
Appropriations Act 2005, Funding Provisions for the Housing Choice Voucher Program, changed
the funding methodology, and in addition fo the Authority, is no longer required to complete a
settlement statement, As a result, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33 and PIH Notice
2009-9, the cumulative amount of unspent housing assistance payment subsidy as of March 31,
2011 is being reflected in restricted net assets in the basic financial statements.

The Housing Authority has the following Capital Fund Grant Programs open as of March 31,

2011
Progrant Total Unexpended
CEP 501-09 $2,135,651 $ 224418

CFP 501-10 $2,118,600 $1,972,975
Capital Fund Competitive Grant $8,526,576 $4,093,881

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

The supplemental information has been inciuded in order to show the financial statements of the
Housing Authority on the GAAP basis of accounting but in the format of the HUD Handbook
1476.3, Audit Guide. ‘This is due to the fact that some supplemental information is reviewed by the
field office and provides greater detail concerning the operations of the Housing Authority.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi
SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011
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RECIOR & REEDER, PC

ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON INFERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commnissioners HUD — Misslssippi Office
Housing Authority of the City of Meridian 100 West Capitol Street, Room 910
Meridian, MS 39302 Jackson, Mississippi 39269-1096

We have audited the financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian, as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated October 27, 2011, We condueted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Complrotier General of the United States.

Infernal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing cur audit, we considered the Housing Authority’s Internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purposs of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial

reporting,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assigned funciions, to prevent, or defect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, it internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be provented, or detected and corrected on 4 timely

basis.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed fo identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in infernal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agteements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and materlal effect on the determination of the
financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

‘This report is infended solely for the information and use of the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian, the State of
Mississippi, HUD and other federal audit agencies, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Rector & Reeder, P.C,
Cettified Public Accountants

Lawrenceville, Georgia
Qctober 27, 2611
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RECTOR & REEDER PC

ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND
MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-~133

Board of Commissioners HUD — Mississippi Office

Housing Authority of the City of Meridian 100 West Capitol Street, Room 910
Meridian, MS 39302 Jackson, Mississippi 39269-1096
Compllance

We have audited the Housing Authority of the City of Meridlan’s compHance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)} Cireular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian's major federal programs for the year ended
March 31, 2011, The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, Compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the Housing
Authority of the City of Meridian's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Housing Authority of the
City of Merldian's compliance based on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audit of Stares, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Cireular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occwred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Housing Autherity of the
City of Merldian's compliance with those requitements and performing such other procedurcs as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion, Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have & direct and materlal effect on each of its major federal programs for the year

ended Mareh 31, 2011,

Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective

internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and granfs applicable to federal programs, In
planning and performing our audit, we considered Housing Authority of the City of Meridian's intemal control over compHance
with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine the auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of oxpressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control

over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, of combination of deficiencies, in internal controf over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficlencies in internal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deficlencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management of the Housing Anthority of the City of Meridian,
the State of Mississippi, HUD and other federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should

not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Rector & Reeder, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Lawrenceville, Georgia
October 27,2011
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Misslssippi

STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

The prior audit report for the period ended March 31, 2010 contained no formal audit findings.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Sectlon 1 - Summary of Auditor’s Results:

Financial Statements

‘Type of report issued on the financial statements: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? Neo
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? None reported
NoncompHance material to the financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards
Internal controls over major programs:
Malerial weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(les) identified not
considered to be material weaknesses? None reported
‘Type of report issued on the compliance for major programs; Ungualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
Accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? No

The following are the major programs administered by the Housing Authority:

- CPDA 114,182 New Construction

- CFDA #14.850 Low-Income Public Housing

- CFDA#14.872 Capital Fund Program

-CFDA#14.884 ARRA Capital Fund Competitive Grant

- CFDA #14.885 ARRA Capital Fund Stimulus Grant

- CFDA #14,871 Housing Choice Voucher Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Did the Authority qualify as a low-risk auditee? Yes

Seetion II — Financial Statement Findings
Findings refated to financial statements in accordance with GAGAS:
NONE REPORTED

Section 11l — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
Findings and questioned cosis for Federal Awards as defined in Section 510:
NONE REPORTED
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011
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Compefitlve Formula Disaster
CFP-Stimulus CFP-Stimulus State/ Vouchers
14,584 £4.885 Eocat 97,109 CoCC Elimination TOTAL
(Y ¢ 3 657,846 § v s 502,566 § 0§ 4,423,218
0 i 559,359 ] 0 0 1,804,084
0 g g 0 [ 0 77,539
g ¢ 1,217,205 0 502,565 0 6,304,841
0 53,191 0 ¢ 0 0 576,443
0 0 ] 0 0 0 0
[} ¢ 207,117 ] 2,524 0 209,836
0 0 ¢ 0 ¢ ] 23,164
0 0 0 9 0 4 {3474)
0 0 0 8 0 9 9
1] 0 0 0 0 0 1,3%
¢ g 0 0 [ ) 0
¢ 0 12,851 1 ¢ o 12,851
¢ 0 0 432 0 0 4,427
¢ 53,191 219,968 432 2,524 0 324,643
0 0 0 0 80,283 0 1,950,000
2 0 0 8 0 0 236,845
0 o 954 ] 18,54¢ 3 143,093
¢ 0 ] 0 116,984 ¢ 134,125
) o I} 0 (1,000} ] {1,006}
) 4] ¢ Q 0 0 ¢
0 g 2,101 112,224 99,794 (272,899) 0
0 53,191 1,440,228 112,656 819,691 {272,899) 9,589,747
] 0 0 ] 92,935 0 1,549,625
] ¢ 9 a 3,150,568 0 44,115,593
0 0 ) 0 621,622 0 1,447,885
0 0 0 0 g ¢ 5,147,434
¢ L} 0 9 (1,400,678} g (26,268,373}
8 0 0 ¢ 2,464,447 0 25,992,168
0 ] 11,869,883 0 0 (277,468} 17,398,495
0 0 3] 0 Q 0 247,685
1] 0 1,860,883 0 2,464,447 (277,468) 43,638,348
0 3 53,191 % 13310,i11 § 112,656 8 3,284,138 3 (350,36 $ 53,227,895
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Compelitive Pormula Blsaster
CFP-Stimulus CFP-Stimulus Statef Vouchers
14.884 14.885 Logal 97.108 COLCC Hlimination TOTAL
0 % ¢ 8 162§ 60 3 53992 & o $ 563,750
0 0 0 0 61,386 o 115,951
] 0 0 0 116,627 L] 180,974
1] 0 0 [ 0 0 32,688
0 ¢ i 0 O 0 0
] 0 0 o 1] 0 74,002
o 0 o 0 0 e} 11,539
& 0 0 [t 0 0 9,950
0 o Ly 8 ] 0 307,300
0 0 0 [ 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 3,770 0 57,304
L} 0 0 0 6323 0 11,531
0 53,191 0 4] 9 (272,899) 0
0 53,191 162 o 242,098 272,809} 1,543,029
0 0 0 8 0 0 6,864,437
0 8 i 4 0 (277,468) 0
¢ 0 8 0 33,050 0 58,036
Q 1] 8 0 0 ) 149,385
0 ] ] [ 33,050 {277,468} 7,072,358
[} 53,191 162 0 275,148 {550,367} 8,615,387
0 1] 2 1] 2,464,447 0 18,820,431
4 1} 13,309,949 4 0 4] 20,208,53¢
0 0 0 {12,656 544,543 ] 5,383,547
0 0 13,309,549 112,656 3,008,990 0 44,612,508
0 § 53,191 § 13310111 8 112,656 3,284,138 $§ (550367 3 53,227,893
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Competitive Formula Disaster

CFP-Stimujus  CFP-Stimulus State/ Vouchers

14,884 14,385 Local 97,109 COCC Elimination TOTAL
$ (L1 13 0 s 03 03 L1 2,394,843
i} 0 0 g 0 0 157,258
0 ¢ 4] 0 0 [+ 2,552,098
186,455 63,151 0 0 Y i3 6,416,931
1,150,447 433,251 0 0 0 0 2,741,932
i} i) i] i} 858,256 {898,256) [}
0 0 0 & 121,740 {121,740) 0
i} 0 ¢ 0 87,608 {87,008) 0
0 g 0 0 516,102 (516,162) ¢
¢ 0 [ i 4] 0 0
0 0 0 ] 233 ¢ 23,372
0 4] 0 0 [ 0 0
0 g 0 0 i} i) 0
0 0 2,008,342 508 23,979 (6,822) 2,275,481
0 0 82,851 3,266 0 0 111,279
0 0 0 {479} 0 {563,609}
$ 1,336,902 § 501,402 § 2,691,103 § 3,766 % 1,711,838 3 (1,620928) $ 13,557,484
§ 160,408 % 59,598 § ¢ 35 0% 579,606 § g 3 1,256,282
¢ 0 ¢ ] 16,000 b 25,075
0 4] 0 ] 0 {893,256) 0
0 0 0 0 0 (87,008) @
0 [ a 0 tH 0 0
0 [ 4] 0 172,318 0 323,527
g 0 0 1] 14,469 1} 223,002
0 0 1,005 0 1,518 0 14,445
0 0 0 0 13,936 @ 25,304
3,734 3,553 39,033 0 103,379 0 150,735
164,142 63,151 40,040 0 905,826 (9835,264) 2,018,460
0 0 ] 0 0 (121,740) 1]
1] 1] i} H 0 0 29,156
22,313 [} 0 0 0 0 23313
0 ] a 0 0 0 1,607
0 [ 9 4] 4 0 321,697
23,313 0 g 1] 0 [ 384,773
¢ ] o 0 2,745 ] 552,116
0 0 2,742 0 37,820 i} 864,939
[i] 0 4 g 6,660 O 402,521
0 ¢ 2,742 0 47,234 0 1,819,576
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Competitive Formula Disaster

CPp.Stimulus  CEP-Stimulus Stafe/ Vouchers
14,884 14,885 Loal 97.10% CoLC Elinination TOTAL
0 8 0 0 203,921 0 528,506
[H] L] 440 0 144,971 0 340,520
o 0 0 b 72415 i} 195,246
0 0 66,739 0 08,583 {516,102) 804,724
0 ] 67,173 1] 519,850 £516,102) 1,928,996
0 0 0 0 300 0 81,630
L] 0 ] 800 0 81,630
0 ) 388 1] 10,454 0 150,788
] 4] 89 i} 0 L] 45,121
9 i} 8 0 1,664 2] 1,604
[H] 0 4] ] 28,601 0 52,660
0 1 5,946 0 1] 0 262,593
0 0 0 0 35,623 ¢ 59,215
0 0 i) 0 o b 74,002
4 0 g ] 4] 0 29,489
1] 1] 0 0 0 0 0
L] 0 6,423 0 76,282 1] £50,332
0 ¢ 0 ] |4 (6,822) 398,801
0 4] 63,809 0 0 0 80,094
4] ] 63,809 1] 0 (6,822} 478 895
186,455 63,151 180,193 ] 1,550,032 (1,625,928) 7,402,862
1,150,447 438,251 1,911,000 3,766 161,807 0 6,154,622
1] i} 0 i} 0 2] 0
[ [ 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 1,240,923
0 0 1] 0 126,271 0 1,352,409
] 0 0 1] 126,271 L] 2,593,332
186,455 § 63,151 3§ 180,193 § 0 % 1,676303 $_  (1,629,928) £ 9,995,194
1,150,447 8 438251 § 191,000 § 3,766 § 3553 § 0 $ 3,561,290
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Competilive Formula Disaster
CPP-Stimulus  CPP-Sfinulus State/ Vouchers
14.884 14.885 Locs] 91108 coce ElimInation TOTAL
0 0 ] 0 {51,000) 0 0
(3,150,447) {2,226,176) 1,040,642 0 ¢ 0 {
[ g 0 0 0 0 0
0 1,787,925 10,358,307 108,800 3,024,454 1] 41,051,218
[ [ 13,309,949 112,656 3 3,008,990 % 0 44,612,508
L] 0 1} 0 1] 0 221
0 g ] ¢ G 0 371,373
1] 0 0 0 0 1] 17,202
0 1] 0 0 1] <] 16,643
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MS004000018 MS004000019 MS004000020 MS004000051 MS004000052 Other Praject TOTAL
5 8 0 0 % 196,639 $ 325143 % 96,507 3,255,964
722,967 ¢ 0 2,363 26,200 ) 713,722
0 0 0 18,254 14,368 750 71,789
722,967 0 ] 417,256 365,703 97,257 4,101,475
0 0 0 ¢ 458,087 0 458,087
0 9 ] 6 0 0 0
0 0 0 5,522 3,128 113 22,580

0 ] ] (828) {469} un (3,386)
9 9 ' 0 0 0 0 0
0 ] 0 0 0 0 1,304
0 0 4 529 455 0 3,995
g 0 0 5,223 461,201 98 482,580
0 ] 0 413,679 775,000 0 1,869,717
0 0 0 0 o 0 0
] ] i} 29,767 23,001 1,067 123,411
] 0 0 8 0 9 g
722,967 0 0 925,025 1,624,995 98,422 6,577,183
132,768 174,652 9 175,234 135,982 109,090 1,185,326
0 ] 1} 9,709,305 7,346,355 560,955 39,427,271
0 0 0 85,923 83,706 4,610 826,263
0 0 ¢ 0 0 0 0
13,300 0 9 1,214,792 2,839,280 0 5,147,434

0 9 0 (6,561,867} {5,322,585) (232,282 (23,965,866)
146,268 174,652 g 4,623,387 5,082,738 442,373 22,620,428
5,528,612 0 0 ] 0 ] 5,528,612
205,317 0 g 0 0 0 205,317
5,880,197 174,652 4,623,387 5,082,738 442,373 28,354,357
6,603,164 § 174,652 5 0 3 5548312 § 6,707,733 % 540,195 $ 34,931,540

Attachment MS£04b01

10




MS004000018 MS004000019 }1S004000820 MS004050051 MS004800052 Other Profect OTA

90 ¢ 3 ] 15231 8 4187712 §. ¢ 3% 482,879
457 1] o 8,610 9,650 ¢ 44,118
0 Q 0 15,175 11,960 0 61,634
24,274 0 | 9 0 ] 24,271
] 0 0 0 a Q q
] g 0 19,008 15,038 0 54,369
@ 0 ] 18,254 14,360 750 71,78%
0 0 g 1,581 1,566 98 8,213
270,000 i} 0 3 g 0 270,000
1] 0 0 ¢ ¢ [V} 0
0 0 ¢ 37,028 27,802 54 162,545
H ¢ 0 0 4,918 0 4,918
0 5 0 27,333 0 178 182,826

294,818 & 0 142,220 523,967 1,340 1,367,622
5,555,000 0 0 0 0 ] 5,555,000
0 0 0 5,781 4,568 0 23,766
i 0 0 2,363 26,201 0 50,755
5,555,000 0 0 8,144 30,769 0 5,629,521
5,849,818 0 i 150,364 554,736 1,540 6,997,143
(5,678,732) 174,652 H 4,623,387 5,082,738 442,373 16,795,428
6,251,579 0 0 L4 ] 0 6,251,579
180,499 0 g 775,561 1,070,259 96,882 4,887,390
753,346 174,652 0 5,398,948 6,152,997 539,255 27,934,397
6,603,164 $ 17552 % 4 5549312 $ 6701133 8 540,795 § 34,931,540
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MS004000019 M500400002¢ MS004000051 MS004600052 Other Projeet TOTAL

$ 0 s 0 0§ 534394 & 404270 $ 29481 § 2,184,768
8 0 29,981 25,112 0 157,255

) 0 564,375 429,382 29,481 2,342,023

158,751 0 822,306 895,460 0 4,642,524

0 0 119,112 386,033 0 1,153,234

0 9 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 g 0 ] 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 2,394 2,016 0 23,052

o 0 0 0 ) 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

21,666 9 31,630 24,195 996 165,069

0 0 0 0 0 24,992

0 0 (931 (981) 0 (563,130)

$ 180417 $ 0§ 1538836 $ 1,736099 § 0477 § 7,788,764

$ 17461 S 6 3 87,882 3 45812 3 0 3 381,789

0 [ 2,689 2,084 i 12,515

0 ) 174,758 348,839 0 208,256

0 0 22,206 17,190 ] 87,008

g 0 a 0 1] 0

4,702 0 26,555 18,504 0 124,402

1,455 0 42,171 32,634 0 181,815

0 i} 0 0 0 0

0 0 },565 113 0 7372

1) 0 g li] 0 0

23,618 0 337,826 465,176 Q 1,693,157

0 4 30,000 23,280 0 121,40

g 0 0 0 0 2,599

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 ] 393 427 0 1,966

0 4] 52,631 40,270 0 184,068

0 0 53,024 40,697 0 188,633

1] [1} 119,741 S0AT4 3,038 548,402

B 0 166,211 114,061 231 820,467

0 0 £8,128 67,091 1,004 395,861

0 ] 0 0 ¢ 0

G [ 0 0 0 [

G 0 0 0 4] 0

0 0 374,080 271,626 6,413 1,764,730
Attachment MS004b01

4]




ME004008010  MSO040006020  MSG 1 MS004000052  Other Project TOFAL

0 0 72,159 59,878 2,137 351,226

0 o 36,140 38,879 861 151,023

0 U 23,802 19,416 853 112,503

2,490 g 251,123 256,867 5,487 1,094,482

2,490 0 383,224 375,040 9,938 1,749,234

0 0 it 0 0 o

0 0 0 o 0 8

0 9 18,538 14,669 0 80,830

0 8 18,938 14,669 0 20,830

9 0 34,354 26,163 933 42,627

271 0 9,892 7,738 219 41,562

0 0 ¢ 0 0 !

0 H 1,399 1,340 1,166 28,954

144,782 8 g i 0 256,647

0 9 4,687 0 0 20,618

U o 19,008 15,038 B 54,369

0 0 Ld6d 8,130 1 23,631

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 9 9 9 9 it

145,053 0 70,804 58,409 2,385 568,408

0 0 0 0 0 296,563

0 0 0 ¢ 0 0

0 0 6 0 ¢ 13,920

0 0 il 0 g 316483

171,161 8 1,287,896 1,248,857 18,736 6,471,215

9,256 0 250,940 487,202 1,741 1,311,549
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MS004000019 M8004000020 MS004000051 MS0040006052 Other Profect TOTAL

0 0 0 0 ] ¢

0 0 0 0 1] il

0 0 f 4} 0 0

0 g 295,365 223,780 20,776 1,187,694

0 ] 295,365 223,780 20,776 1,187,694

171,161 % g 3 1,563,261 & 1472677 § 39,512 7,664,909

9256 8 0 $ (44,425) § 263422 § (9,035) $ 123,835

0 ] h; 2,335,981 0 2,335,981

G ) 0 0 b 0

(37,357) i) 0 62,879 0 0

0 4 0 0 0 1]

202,953 it] 5,443,313 3,490,715 548,200 25,474,561

174,652 § bt S 5306048 $§ 6,152,997 % 539,238 §$ 27,934,397

924 0 3000 2328 84 13,986

523 0 25961 2302 84 13,823
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MSOO4O00010  MSOO4000020  ASSOMO000SI  MSOMMP000S2  ObuePelet  JOTAL

$ ¢ s ¢ s 533,394 § 404270 § 2048t % 2,184,768
] 0 29,981 25,112 1] 157,255

i 0 564,375 419,382 29,481 2,342,003
158,751 312,306 631,895 ¢ 3,862,711
0 0 0 ¢ ¢ 0

0 0 0 e ¢ 0

0 0 0 ) 0 0

0 0 0 0 (1 v

0 0 0 0 Q 0

0 ¢ 0 0 o 0

o ¢ o6 0 i 0

) 0 2,394 2,010 ) 23,052

0 ¢ 0 0 0 o

[ 0 0 0 0 )
21,666 0 3,630 24,195 996 166,069
o 0 0 o 0 4,992

0 0 (981) {981) o (563,130

$ 180417 § ¢ S 1418924 % 1136501 S 0477 3 5855717
$ 17461 § 3 87,862 & 45812 § ¢ s 331,789
0 ] 2,689 2,684 s 11,515

0 0 174,158 135274 ¢ 634,691

] i 23,206 17,190 i $7.008

9 o 0 0 ¢ 0
4,702 0 26,555 18,504 I 124402
1,455 0 42,171 32,634 0 181,315
¢ 0 0 6 0 0

¢ 0 1,565 113 0 7372

1] [} ] 0 -0 0
23,618 0 357,86 251,611 [ 1,478,392
Q 9 30,000 23,280 ¢ 121,740

0 0 0 L 0 2,599

0 0 0 ] 0 0

0 ¢ 393 427 0 1965

(] [ 52,631 40,270 0 184,058

[} ¢ 53,024 40,697 0 188,633

0 0 119,744 90474 3038 548,402

¢ 0 166,211 114,061 AV 820467

¢ 0 88,128 $T,091 1,004 395,861

0 il 0 0 0 8

6 ¢ 0 9 0 0

0 0 0 0 [} 0

i 0 374,080 - —-———2M026 - 6413 1,964,730
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MS004000018  MSOD4000020 ME004000051 MS0D400052 Cythet Peajest TOTAL
i) 0 72,159 59,878 2,131 15,006
[+ 1] 36,140 38,870 861 FI8A00
] 0 23,802 19,416 853 §12,50%
2,49 0 251,123 256,867 5,487 1,094,482
2,4%0 3] 383,224 315,040 0,938 1,736,611
0 0 0 0 ¢ 0
0 0 0 0 ) 0
0 0 18,938 14669 ° ¢ 30,830
0 ] 18,938 14,669 ¢ 20,830
0 0 34,354 26,163 033 142,627
an 0 9,892 1138 219 41,562
0 o 0 3] ] 3]
0 0 1,399 1,340 1,166 28,954
144,782 0 0 0 0 256,647
0 0 4,687 g 0 20,618
43 [ 19,008 15,008 Q 54,369
G ] 1464 8,130 7 23,631
¢ G ¢ 0 0 [
1] 0 0 [ 0 0
145,053 0 70,804 58,409 2,385 568,408
0 0 ¢ 0 (] 25%,563
0 0 0 0 0 0
8 0 0 0 0 13,920
[ [ [ 0 0 310483
171,161 6 1,257,896 1,035,332 18,136 6,250,027
9,256 0 131,828 101,169 1,741 (394,310)
0 o 0 0 ¢ 0
0 ) 0 1} 1 Q
0 0 0 0 & qQ
Q ¢ 295,365 223,780 20,776 1,132,694
[ G 295,365 723,780 20,776 1,187,694
3 174161 § o 3 1,583,261 $ L0112 39812 & 7437021
5 9256 S 0 3 ] 122,611 3 0,015 % 1,582,004}
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TOTAL

606052

MS0G4000020  MSQ04000051  MS

19

15004

Other Project

19,813
1,153,234

213,563
386,033

0

119,112

1,933,047

$

3

119,117 § 590,598

$

1,000

213,565

214,565

213,563

¢
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TOTAL

Other Project

52

51 M

81

MSODIOOOIIS M§004003020

12,623

12,623

O o oo

-~ ]

e

L= = = B — ]

[ = — i~ =]

fe =~ = o

o oo

227,188

213,505

0

1,705,359

386,01

119,12

0

Sooo

[ == =]

Co 0o

oo O Oy

S DS

[= = — ¥ = }

227,188

3

$

213,565

$

0

1,705,832

$

g

$

19,112  $ 386,033

§
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN

Merldian, Mississippi

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

FEDERAL GRANTOR

.S, DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT:

Public Housing:
Low Rent Public Housing - subsidy

Resident Opportumity & Supportive Services
Capital Fund Program

ARRA - Capltal Fund Competitive Grant
ARRA - Capital Fund Recovery Grant

Section 8 Housing Assistance Program:
New Construction

Housing Choice Voucher

TOTAL FEDERAL FINANCIAL AWARDS

Threshold for Type A & Type B

"The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

Attachment MS004b01
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Federal
Type CEDA # Expenditures
A - Major 14850 § 3,862,711
B - Nonmajor 14.870 137,600
A - Major 14.872 1,933,047
A - Mgjor 14,884 1,336,902
A - Major 14,885 501,402
A - Major 14.182 347,917
A - Major 14,871 1,039,284
$ 9,158,863
$ 300,000




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011

NOTE A-  BASIS OF PRESENTATION:
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian and is presented on the full accrual basis of

accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

NOTEB-  SUBRECIPIENTS:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian provided no federal awards to subrecipients during
the fiscal year ending March 31, 20611,

NOTEC- DISCLOSURE OF OTHER FORMS OF ASSISTANCE:

* The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian received no federal awards of non-monefary
assistance that are requited to be disclosed for the year ended March 31, 2011,

2 The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian had no loans, loan guarantees, or federally
restricted endowment funds required fo be disclosed for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011.

= The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian maintains the following limits of insurance as of

March 31, 2011:
Property $ 50,000,000
Liability $ 1,000,000
Commercial Auto $ 1,060,000
Worker Compensation Statutory
Public Officials Liability $ 2,000,000
Flood b3 500,800
Settled claims have not exceeded the above commercial insurance coverage limits over the past
three years.
Attachment MS004b01
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF
THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippl

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
SPECIAL REPORTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN
Meridian, Mississippi

SCHEDULE AND CERTIFICATION OF ACTUAL MODERNIZATION CGSTS

Maych 31, 2011

Annual Contributions Contraet A-2392

PHASE MS26P004-501-08

1 The Actual Modernization Costs of Phase 501-08 were:

Funds Approved 3 2,000,660
Funds Expended 2,000,660
Excess of Funds Approved $ -
Funds Advanced 3 2,000,660
Funds Expended 2,000,660
Excess of Funds Advanced $ -

2 Audit period additions were $494,538.68 and accordingly were audited by Rector
& Reeder, P.C.

3 The distribution of costs by major cost accounts as shown on the Final Statement of
Modemization Cost dated December 10, 2010, accompanying the Actual
Modernization Cost Certificate submitted to HUD for approval is in agreement
with the PHA's records,

4 All modernization costs have been paid and all related liabilitiss have been
discharged through payment.
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AMENF
Q}“ O,

& Elr!f]h"j? %
S i I U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
% | ||I" £ WASHINGTON, D.C. 20410-5000

i )

% g ppuesd

OFFICE OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY
.FOR PUBLIC AND INDIAN HQUSING
Mr, Ronald J. Turner, Sr. SEP 15201

Executive Director

Housing Authority of the City of Meridian
P.O. Box 870

Meridian, MS 39302-0870

Subject: Approval of Mixed-Finance Proposal and Evidentiary Documents
Frank Berry Courts
Project Number: MS0040000020

Dear Mr. Turner:

The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) hereby approves the
Mixed-Finance Proposal submitted by the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian (MHA)
for the Frank Berry Courts (Project). This submission, together with supplemental document
submissions, satisfies the requirements set forth in 24 CFR 941, subpart F. This approval is
subject to the conditions contained in this letter.

HUD hereby approves the form of evidentiary documents submitted by MHA for
Frank Berry Courts, as described in Exhibit E of the Mixed-Finance Amendment to the
Consolidated Annual Contributions Contract (Mixed-Finance Amendment). As MHA has
satisfied all other requirements of 24 CFR 941, subpart ¥, HUD hereby authorizes MHA to
have all evidentiary documents executed and recorded as necessary. Upon execution by the
appropriate parties, the documents to be recorded must be filed for record in the order
approved by HUD. The Declaration of Restrictive Covenants must be recorded first.

Project Structure

The Project includes the construction of 113 public housing/Low Income Housing
Tax Credit (LIHTC) units. Also included in the development are two non-residential
buildings that will be renovated to become a management office and community and social
services building, both of which will be modernized. The Project’s unit distribution 18
summarized below:

Enit Type iBR [2BR. {3BR {4BR | Total
Detached/Semi-Detached

Elevator

Row House 37 53 23 113
Walk-up

Total Public Housing Units 113
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The Project will be constructed in accordance with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
Act of 1973, the Architectural Barriers Act (ABA), Title IT of the Americans with Disabilities
Act (ADA), and the Fair Housing Act to provide accessibility, adaptability, and visitability.
At minimum, a total of six units (five percent) will be accessible for mobility impaired persons
and three units (in excess of two percent) will be accessible for hearing and sight impaired
persons. Information on accessibility requirements can be found in PIH Notice 2006-13,
which is located on HUD’s website at the follow internet address:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/pih/publications/notices/06/pih2006-13.pdf.

The Developer is Michaels Development Company, Inc. The Owner Entity is Berry
Court Associates, L.P., a Mississippi limited partnership. The sole General Partner, the Berry
Court-Michaels, L.L.C., a Mississippi limited Liability company, which will own a .01% interest in
Owner Entity. NEF Assignment Corporation, the Investor Limited Partner, will purchase a
99.99% interest in the Owner Entity and provide an equity investment in return for four
percent Low-Income House Tax Credits.

Construction Financing

As shown in Attachment D-1, the Project’s construction budget totals §13,258,977,
As, shown in Part A, the Investor Limited Partner will invest a total of $323,295 in equity
from the sale of Low-Income Housing and State Tax Credits allocated to the Project. Other
sources of funds include a loan of Capital Fund Recovery Competition (CFRC) funds under
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA} in the amount of $6,970,158, a
sellers note in the amount of $471,141 and tax-exempt bond financing in the amount of
$5,494,383. As shown in Part B, MHA will use a total of $470,000 for management
improvements, housing authority administration, fees and cost, non-dwelling structures and
common area furnishings.

Permanent Financing

As shown in Attachment D-2, the Project’s permanent budget totals $11,333,618. As
shown in Part A, the Investor Limited Partner will invest a total of $2,805,901 in equity from
the sale of Low-Income Housing and State Tax Credits allocated to the Project. Other
sources of funds include a loan of Capital Fund Recovery Competition (CFRC) funds under
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) in the amount of $8,056,576 and a
sellers note in the amount of $471,141. As shown in Part B, MHA will use a total of
$470,000 for management improvements, housing authority administration, fees and cost,
non-dwelling structures and common area furnishings.

Total Development Cost Limits

The budget for the Project, which is included as Exhibit F in the Mixed-Finance
Amendment (Attachment E), results in a Total Development Cost (TDC) that is within the
TDC limits imposed on public housing development projects in the City of Meridian, as
specified in HUD Notice PIH 2010-20. The Project costs are at 47.80 percent of the TDC
limits (Attachment E).
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Subsidy Layering Review

This Project has been reviewed using the subsidy layering guidelines published in the
Federal Register on February 25, 1994. These guidelines state that a project receiving HUD
assistance and LTHTCs is not subject to further review if its proposed syndication results in
net proceeds of greater than 51 cents per dollar of tax credit allocation, If a project receives
51 cents or less, it is subject to review of its development costs, particularly buildet’s profit,
development fees, and syndication costs as a percentage of total development costs.

We completed our analysis using $4,064,910 the amount of tax credits available to
the Project subject to the 15-year tax credit compliance period, and $2,805,901, the amount
of equity to be invested in the Project. Our review indicates that the Project will receive
gross syndication proceeds of $.69 per dollar of tax credit allocation
($2,805,901/$4,064,910) and net syndication proceeds of $.55 per dollar of tax credit
allocation to the Investor Limited Partner ($2,241,996/ $4,064,504). To calculate the
discounted net proceeds, we have taken the gross syndication proceeds and subtracted tax
credit fees and other expenses relevant to completing the tax credit syndication, compounded
equity installments received priot to the Project’s Placed-in-Service Date and discounted
installments received after this date (Attachments A-C). We then divided this number by the
tax credits allocated to the Investor Limited Partner. The Project exceeds the threshold of 51
cents per dollar of tax credit allocation and represents a market rate of equity, given the
current market for the purchase of tax credits. Therefore, no further review is required.

Nevertheless, my staff has conducted a detailed review of all development costs to
determine that such costs are reasonable and to commit the least amount of public housing
development funds necessary to make the proposed development financially feasible. Costs
are within the Office of Public Housing’s Cost Control and Safe Harbor Standards released
by the Office of Public Housing Investments on April 9, 2003.

Financing Changes :
In the future, MHA should report any changes in the Project’s financing or use of
funds to HUD. The Project is subject to additional subsidy layering review if:
¢ The Project’s sources or uses of funds, as detailed in the attached project budget,
change by $250,000 or by 10 percent of the amount previously disclosed,
whichever is lower;
o Previously disclosed financial interests of persons or entities change by the lesser
of $50,000 or 10 percent of such interest;
e The annual tax credit allocation changes by more than 10 percent; or,
¢ The schedule of payment of tax credit equity is delayed from that disclosed in
Attachment B.

MHA should send a letter informing HUD of the nature of the financing changes
along with HUD Form 2880 to the Office of Public Housing Investments within 30 days of
the change. At that time, a determination will be made as to whether another subsidy
layering review will be necessary.
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Next Steps
You may proceed to execute four copies of the Mixed-Finance Amendment for the

Project. All four copies must be executed by MHA and then presented to the HUD Jackson
Field Office, where Holly Bellino, the Director of Public Housing, will execute all copies on
behalf of HUD. She will keep one copy for use by her office and return the other three
copies to you. MHA should retain one copy and provide one copy to the Ownership Entity.
The other copy should be returned to HUD with the final evidentiary binder, as noted below.
Ms. Bellino is also authorized to sign the following documentation: 1) HUD Non-
Disturbance Agreement and 2) Partial Release.

The Mixed-Finance Amendment assures that 113 units are public housing units for all
purposes, including the Operating Fund, and that the units will be eligible to receive
operating subsidy, Consequently, the public housing units must be managed and operated in
compliance with all public housing requirements.

After execution and recordation of the evidentiary documents, MHA should provide
HUD with a compact disc (CD) containing the electronic version (PDF file format) of all
executed and recorded evidentiary materials for review and approval. Please submit the
clectronic version of the final evidentiary binder to Paula Rouse at HUD headquarters within
30 days of the recording of the HUD Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. MHA must
include on the CD:

o the required opinions of counsel, together with a certification attesting that no
changes to the evidentiary materials have been made since the documents were last
submitted and approved by HUD, or if changes have been made, a list of all changes;

o a final title insurance policy that reflects the recordation of all liens, mortgages and
encumbrances against the property, in the order approved by HUD;

e one original copy of the executed Regulatory and Operating Agreement; and,

e one original copy of the executed Mixed-Finance Amendment.

Following receipt and approval of the final evidentiary documents, ARRA funds will

be made available to MHA in the Line of Credit Control System (LOCCS), pursuant to
Exhibit F of the Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment.
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Congratulations on reaching this major milestone in the development of Frank Berry
Courts. We look forward to working with you toward final closing of this transaction.
Please contact Paula Rouse, Grant Manager, at (202) 402-4050, if you have any questions,

Sincerely,

k ' '—&cézﬁf Vo

Dominique om
Deputy Assistant Secretary
Office of Public Housing Investments

Enclosures

cc: Holly Bellino, Director of Public Housing, Jackson Field Office
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ATTACHMENT A
SUBSIDY LAYERING ANALYSIS SUMMARY

Proiect Name, Sponscr and Phase information
Frank Berry Courls
Meridian Housing Authority

Approvat for

£ .
Subsidy Layering Guideiine Standards {see Note A} This Project Sag:::;)ﬁfr? Safe Harbor Cailing Standard
1. Bulider/Gen. Contractor Profit {from rental term sheet) 8.0% Y 6% £4% Gen Cond + OH&P
2. SponsoriDeveloper Profit {fee, from rental terin sheet) 11.9% ¥ ’ 984 12%
3. Syndication Exp. {other than bridge foan, as % of proceads) 6.3% NA 5% 12%
4. Net Equity Proceeds {per dollar of LIHTC to Investor) $0.55 NA M, Pdce ha. of $0.51
NET EQUITY PROCEEDS FROM SYNDICATION (Calculation of Guideline Standard 4)
1. Gross LIHTC Equity Syndlcation Pro¢eeds from Investor $ 2,805,901
Memo only: Gross equity contribution per dollar of tax credit
allocation = $ 0.69
2. Equlty Proceads Not Avallable for Projact Uses
Bridge Financlng Costs (on loans against daferred equily) (Note B)
Bridge loan interest & 188,380
Bridge loan costs other than interast (lender legal, foes, etc.) 3 164,000

Other Syndication Fees and Expensas {Note C)
Qwnership entity organizational and legal cost
Syndication fees paid from gross syndication proceeds 48,000
Tax credit fees {lo LIHTC-awarding agency, efc.) 104,000
Other syndication fees and costs (accounting, cost centification, ste.) $ 25,376

3

R

Totat deduclions from equity syndication proceeds {529,736}
3. Adjustment for Early/Late Instaliments {see Altachmient C)
Grass equily syndication proceeds {from Attachment B) of: $2,805,901
adjusted 1o present value as of the placed-in-service date of. 71112011
by compounding (discounting) equity Installments at annuat rate’ of: 3.25%
results in a nel posilive (negative) adjusiment of: (34,169)
“ Use project bridge loan rate (if applicable}, or other appropriate rate,
&.9., the "Prime” bank lending rate as of: 12/16/2008
4. Present Value of Net Equity as of Place-In-Service Date S 2,241,996
5. Amount of Equity Goniributlon Per Tax Cradit Dollar
Net Equity Proceeds as of the Placed-in-Service Date (from 4, above} 3 2,241,996
Tax credit allocation over 10 years (from tax creddt award letter): S 4064910
mufliplied by invester's cwnership % {frem LP or LLC doc'sk X 98.98%

equals LHTC Aiccation o Investor: 5 4,084,504

&. Net Eguity Contribution per Dollar of Tax Credit to Invastor = $ 0,55

Mgl aguily proceads divicad by LIRTC allecanon o inveaor}

Noles!
{Ar Thase are the HUD Subsmy Layerrg Gudeline Standards, a5 modified frem time-to-time by Cost Conyred and Safe Harher Standards for
Rensal Mixed-Finance Development published by the HUD Ofice of Pubie Housing Investments

(B} Analys's must confirm that only reasonabie. market-rate bridge foen inleres! and costs are recogrized (1o aveid excess profits that may resulf
wben loars are nof negolizted thraugh arm's-length ransaclions).

T Syndication expenses are 1olai costs wther than ritige foan nleses! and costs) incurred by tha ownar in Jtlaning cash for the saie of 13x
credis o svedlors  Incicde gnfy 'Noss espenses ownired bersusa of tne extradrdinany legan srgaraananal and accounlingg services and

Act sbgs FSsocaed win whibzing {ak dredils

figrkbarysutayl 3010
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ATTACHMENT B
SYNDICATION PROCEEDS
Frank Berry Courts

Source of Instaliment [nformation:
Placed-in-Service Date: | July 1, 2011 !
(Use the projected or estimated date of recelpt of the tax credit letter- rental term sheet
final Certificate{s) of Crcoupancy for the project units.)

‘ Equity Expected
Equity Instaliment instatiment - Date of
Number Months Amount Installment

1 Number of Months Before the Placed-in-Service Date: 10 [ 3 194,241 ISeptember 10, 201 OJ
2 Number of Months Before the Placed-in-Service Date: 4 I 8 129,054 l March 10, 2011 I
3 Number of Months After the Placed-in-Service Date: 2 [s 780,733 [September 10, 2011}
4 Number of Months After the Placed-in-Service Date: 8 [s 1,604408] March 10,2012 |
5 Number of Months After the Placed-In-Service Date: o [s ~or467] Aprl1,2012 |
] Number of Months 0 I | |
7 Number of Months 0 I ] I
8 Number of Months 0 I 5 - ] ]
g Number of Months 0 I 3 - | ]
10 Number of Months 0 [ g -1 J
11 Number of Mcnths o [3 - i
12 Number of Months o I3 -] |
Total of All Equity Instaliments $ 2,805,401

frankbaresubiayd 30 14
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-ATTACHMENT C

EQUITY INSTALLMENTS -- PRESENT VALUE ADJUSTMENTS

Summary of adjustments to equity Installments: compounding of early instaliments and
discounting of fate instaliments (relative to the "placed-in-service" date of the project).

Frank Berry Courts

Placed-in-Service Date:
Compounding/Discounting Rate:

07/01M11
3.25%

Present Value of Installment
Equity Equiity Instaliments as of Value
Installment Installment the Placed-in- Increase
Number Amount Service Dale {Decreass)
1 194,241 199,566 5,325
2 129,054 130,458 1,404
3 780,733 776,521 (4,212}
4 1,604,406 1,670,064 {34,342}
5 97,467 85,123 {2,344)
6 0 0 0
7 0 0 0
B 0 0 0
9 0 o ]
10 0 0 0
11 0 0 0
12 0 0 0
Total 2,805,901 2,771,732 (34,169)

frankberrysublay8 30 10
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Capital Fund Recovery Competition Grant Sources and Uses
{CONSTRUCTION PERIOD)

[Widaehprien st -]

Grantee or Appifeant HA: | The Housing Autherity of the Clty of Maridian
Developmant Name and Phase: | FRANK BERRY COURY

]
|
}
i

Exhibit F Budgat and Oraw Schedule 9-14.10 (DA174124)

Unit Typa: [ Rental Pubfic Housing | Rental non-PH___ ] HOw/PH Assistance | HO wio PH Asgistance | Total Units this Phase
Number of Units {entered on Unit Mix worksheet): 113 . - . 113
PH Capiaf Asslst.

Part A: Development Sources Loan/Grant/Equity {ARRA/CFRC) Private Funds Gther Public Funds Total
Pybfs Housing Capita! Assistancs: Loan (ARRA/GFRC} Loan % 6970,158 | % - -1% 8,970,158
Public Housing Capital Assistance: Grant Grant 3 L] - - ks
Low Income Housing Tax Credit Equity Equity 3 B 323,295 - 323,295
Other Tax-Exempt Financing Lean 3 18 5494333 ( % - 5,494,383
Other: Deferred Dovelopmant Fee Loan 5 - 3 -5 -
Sellars Note Loan s $ 471,141 ) % 471,141
Other: B NE - .
Other; .18 HE AE .
Other: B NE . .
Other; B BE NE .
Other: N N A A
Total Davelopment Sources {Part A} 6,970,158 & 5817878 ¢ 471,141 & 13,258,977

PH Capital Assist.

Part B: Additional Scurces {ARRAICFRC) Privata Funds Qther Pubfic Funds Total
Public Housing Capial Assislance: (ARRAIGFRC} - S 470,000 -13% - 470,600
QOther - BE - .
Other: . -[$ - A
Total Additional Sources (Part B} 470,000 % - 8 -8 470,000

Tetal Sources this Phase {(Parts A and B) § 5,683,663 § 7,440,158 5517678 % 471,141 § 13,728 977

Part A: Development Uses

PH Cagital Assist,
Davelopment Construclion Costs HUD Bdgl Line Itam {ARRA/CFRC}) Private Funds Other Public Funds Total
Residential Construction 1460 -1% -
Rasidential Rehabitalion 1460 825197 3481244 .18 4,306,411
Buitder's General Requramenls 1460 49,838 256,747 .13 306,385
Buider's Overhaad 1460 16,545 85,582 -1 102,128
Buildar's Profit 1460 49,838 258,747 | % - 305,385
Site Improvement 1450 625,000 - 525,000
Other: Community Faclity 1470 175,000 | § - 175,000
Subtotal Development Construction Costs 3 g41.018 % 4,880,290 $ - 8 5,821,308

PH Capital Assist,
Devalopment Soft Costs HUD Bdgt Line item {ARRA/CFRC) Private Funds Other Pubke Funds Total
Acquisitien of Sita(s) 1440 550,350 | § -3 471,144 1,030,500
Accounting and Cost Certification 1430 25,378 $ -1$ 25,376
Appraisal / Mkt Study Expense 1430 22,300 : -1% 22,300
Architect & Engineer Fegs 1430 369,278 . - 369,278
Environmentat Assessment, Testing & Cleanup 1430 53,883 - - 53,883
Financing & Application Exp., Lander 1430 5 - 94,625 -1 94,624
Financing & Application Expanse, Tax Credit 1430 - 104,000 -3 104,000
Insurance, Conslrustion Pericd 1430 57,079 -3 57,079
Interest, Conslruction & Bridge Loan(s)- (Bonds) 1430 3 195,565 - 195,565
Lagal Expense. Daveloper & Lender(s) 1430 5 -8 164,000 - 164,000
Marketing & Lease-up Exgense 1430 86,500 ] - 66,500
Permits, Construction & Utifty Hookup 1430 A -13% . -
PILGT & Taxes, Constructlon Period 1430 B - - -
Survey 1430 30,000 5 -1 3 30,000
Thie & Recording Fees 1430 120,000 | $ -13 - 120,000
Initiat Operating Deficit {Gonstrugbon Pedod) 1430 18 -13 - -
Other; Contingancy 1430 645,492 b . 545,482
Other: Reserves [ACC) & Opsrating ) - -
Other; Fumishings for Common Argas 1475 5 120,000 . «13 120,000
Qthar: Bond Issuance Fees - 185,000 213 185,000
Other: Relocation Expanse 1485 113,000 113,000
Cther: Drawn as Colateral for Construclion Bonds 3,793.872(3% -1% . 3,793,872
Other: Syndicater Fess . 48,000 - 48,000
OtherAgmin PHA 1410 50,000 - - 50,000
Other: Davaloper Feg - 146,200 - 145,200
Sublotat Daveloprment Soft Cosls 3 8,029,140 § 937,380 ¢ 471,441 § 7,437,669
Total Uses for Development {Part A} 13 5970158 $ 5817670 $ 471,141 § 13,258,977

PH Capital Assist.

Part Bt Additlonal Uses HUD Bdgt Line item (ARRA/CFRC) Private Funds Other Public Funds Total
Community & Supperive Services (HOPE Vi only) 1408 ] 18 -1% -8 -
Managemenl Improvemants, PHA 1408 E 25,000 -18 -1$ 25,600
Administration, PHA 1410 E: 255,000 1% -18 255,000
Fggs & Cosis 1430 150,000 -1% - 160,000
Site Acguisition 1440 g -8 -1 % - -
Audit 3411 5000 | $ -1% - 5,000
Non-Dheling Stuckgres 1470 § 35000 1 & -1$ -13 35,000
Cominon Area Furnishing 1475 - ] BE -
Dismoiition (and associated remedaton) 1485 -1% -1 % ~1% -
Relocation Expense 1495 . 5 -1% -
Total Additional Usos {Pari B} 3 470,000 % - 3 -3 470,500

Total Uses this Phase {Paris A and B} 5 5683325 % 7,440,158 % 5817878 § 471,141 § 13,728,877
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Capital Fund Recovery Compatition Grant Sources and Uses
(PERMANENT FINANGING)

febdehment DL

Grantea or Applicant HA: | The Housing Authority of the Clty of Moridian

Davelopmant Name and Phase: | FRANK BERRY COURT

]

Unit Type: [ Rental Public Housing | Renial non.PH___|_HO wiPH Assistance | HO wio PH Asgistance | Total Unils this Phase |
Number of Units (entered on Unit Mix workshaet):| 113 | - 3 - 113]
PH Capital Assist.

Part A: Devalopment Sources Loan/Grant/Equiy {ARRAICFRC} Private Funds Othar Public Funds Tolal
Public Housing Capital Assistance: Loen (ARRACFRC) Lean % 8,066,678 - -13 8056,578
Public Housing Capital Assistance: Grant Grent $ - ! - e -
Low ncome Housing Tax Credit Equily Equity $ -18 2,805,801 2,805.801
Other: 1st Morlgage $ -18 - . b
Other: Deferred Development Feg -8 - - B
Cther: Sellers Nota - 3 471,144 471,141
Cther: . -13 BE .
QOther; - .18 -13 .
Qther: B - .
Other: -8 - .
Chher: 3 -8 .13 . i
Total Davalopmant Sources {Part A} ] 8,050,676 % 2805901 $ 471,141 § 11,333,618

PH Capital Assist.

Part B: Additional Sources (ARRAICFRC) Private Funds Other Publlc Funds Total
Public Housing Capital Assistance: (ARRA/CFRC) 3 470,000 | § -1 % - 470,000
Oihes: 3 -18 -8 - .
Cther: ] -15 - . -
Total Additional Sources (Part B} $ 470,000 $ - - 3 470,000

Total Sources this Phase (Parts A and B} $ 8526676 § 2805901 % 471,141 8§ 11,803,618

Pan A: Developmant Uses

PH Capital Asslst.
Development Construction Costs HUD Bdgt Line ltem (ARRAICFRC) Privale Funds Qther Public Funds Total
Residentlal Construction 1460 8 HE - - -
Residential Rehabililation 1460 $ 43084411 % - . 4,306,411
Bullder's General Requirements 1460 5 3063851 8 - B E 306,385
Bullder's Overhead] 1460 E 102,128 1 % - - 102,128
Builder's Prefit 1460 306,385 - Bk 306,385
Sita Improvemeni 1450 625.000 - <] 8 625,000
Other; Community Facility 1470 175000 [ & - - 176,000
Subtotal: Daveloprent Construction Costs [ 5821308 $ - & - 3 6,821,308

Pi Capltal Assist.
Davelopment Soft Costs KUD Bdgt Line ltem (ARRA/CERC) Private Funds Other Public Funds Total
Acquisiion of Sile{s) 1440 558359 $ 47114118 1,030,500
Accounting and Cost Certification 1430 25,376 3 -1 25378
Appraisal [ Mki Study Expense 1430 22,300 $ 3 22300
Architect & Engineer Fees 1430 369,278 $ -8 369,278
Environmental Assessmeni, Tesling & Cleanup 1430 53,883 S - 53,883
Financing & Application Expense, Lender 1430 E - $ 94624 [ § - 04,624
Financing & Application Expense, Tax Cradi 1430 L - & 104,000 - 104,000
Insurance, Construction Perfod 1430 57,079 . 57,078
Interest, Construction & Bridge Loan{s} {Bonds) 1430 3 217,742 - 217,742
Legal Expense, Developer & Lender{s} 1430 -1 5 205,000 B 205,000
Marketing & Leass-up Expense 1430 3 66,500 - 66,500
Permits, Construction & Utility Heokup 1430 B -8 - - -
PILCT & Taxes, Construction Peried 1430 5 -18 -18 . -
Survey 1430 30,000 § -15 30,000
Title & Recording Fees 1430 120,000 3 -13 120,000
Initial Operating Deflct (Construction Period) 1430 -1% ik - -
Other; Hard and Soft Contingency 1430 84840218 5957 | & - 654,489
Cther: Reserves (ACC) & Operatiing -18 g70,872 1% - 970,872
Other: Furnishings for Common Aress 1475 120,000 > -5 120,000
Cther: Bond Issuance Fees 3 BE 185 060 BE 165,000
Ciher: Refocation Expense 1495 3 113,000 3 - 143,000
Cihar; Syndicator Faes -18 48,000 - 48,000
Other:Admin PHA 1410 H 60.000 .18 60,000
Other: Developer Fee $ -1 8 974,667 - 974,867
Subtotal: Development Soft Costs 5 1675909 § 2235288 & 2805002 § 471,141 $ 5512310
Total Uses for Development {Part A} 3 8056578 % 2805902 $ 471,441 § 11,333,818

PH Capital Assist.

Part B: Additionst Uses HUD Bdgt Line llem (ARRAICFRC) Private Funds Other Public Funds Total
Community & Supp. Services HOPE VI anly) 1408 § BE -18 -3 -
Management imgravements, PHA 1408 5 25,000 -13 -15 25,000
Administration, PHA 1410 3 2650001 % -13 -1$ 265,000
Fees & Costs 1430 1500001 % B E -13 150,000
Site Acquisitlon 1440 2 - -1% -13 -
Audit 1411 L 5,000 -18 -13 6,000
Non-Dweling Strustures 1470 3 35,000 - -}3 35,060
Common Area Fumishing 1475 . .

Demoliion (and associated remedialion) 1485 $ - <13 3 -
Relocalfon Expense 14g5 -13 ML -
Totaf Additionat Uses {Past B} 3 470,000 - 8 - 8 470,000
Tatat Uses this Phasa {Parts A and B) $ 8526576 $ 2,605902 § 471,141 & 11803618
Attachment MS004¢01
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SO €

Total Devetopment Cost (TDC) Limit and Houslng Construction Cost {HCC) Limit Calculations
DEVELOPMENT NAME AND PHASE: Frank Berry Courts
using TDC and HCC fimits publishad In HUD Notice PIH 2010-20 {HA) for: JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI

T"Zj Step 3, Unit Mix [Note: enter info on the "kinit Mix® worksheat) HCC Limits TOC Limils
e
. 2
T A
235 i g2 8 | (ewanstony)  (hiw const ony)
Structure Type srs] d52 £8 2%¢8 PerUni Phase Totaly Per Unit Phase Tolals
[} B - B E] 70,161 % B 123831 § -
1 - - -{3% 81673 3% i3 160,427 $ B
2 . - -1% 104,245 § £ 182428 §
Detachad/Semi-Detached 3 - - -15 123387 5 -14 215828 § -
4 - - -1% 145019 3 L3 253,183 % .
5 - - k] 158,848 § $ 277984 % -
8 - - .13 71,720 % -1% 300,510 % .
1] - - 13 57,793 § -1s 101.137 % .
t - - 3713 76,031 & -1% 133.055 § 4,823,003
4 B 531% 91,337 § -3 159840 § 5471.505
Row House 3 - . 23|¢ 11041C 3 -3 193,217 % 4,443,988
4 . . -1% 13,487 § -8 230,067 $ .
5 - - 1% 144868 % -1s 253520 % -
B - - -1% 167522 % -1 % 275,664_5 -
0 - - BE] 50951 ' § 1% 89,164 § -
1 . . i3 69001 & -1% 120781 §
2 - - % 87,702 § -3 153479 & .
Walkup 3 - . -1% 114,567 $ s 200,482 § .
3 - . -3 142245 § -1 246,928 § .
s - . -13 180111 $ .13 280,154 $ -
6 - - -1% 17777 % -1% 311,022 § -
0 - - -13 50,163 3 -1% 89,861 $ .
1 . B -9 75,629 § -13 125806 " %
2 - - -13 101,094 % ~1% 161,760 § -
Elevator 3 - - DL 134,792 § ~1% 216,667 § .
4 - B -3 188480 § -13 269,583 § -
& - - -1 190,055 § -1s 305528 & -
-] . - -i$ 213420 & -1$ 345472 & -
- - 13 g - E 17,838,453
Step 6. Enter Demo & Replacemant Units (total, ail phases "
N:mbm o[!:»urk; m!l-‘rf'qpu it lne?::b “er-j»fchad or Icz.i 1‘ frj\aemm thotar, ad pleadas; (T porfon of
21 Of DL ARG U BELRSE % ¢ sin tlotan, o 105; | . damotton cost
ibAnus} the surnbar of raclagamenl PH vt to 3 DU back 2 e engnal sia {utal 36 phiasas) { -1} is axchuded from
Equals PH units damolshed and not replacad on tre odgmal PH st (total, ai phases) - % of units: 0% TDC it}
Step 7. Enter all Sonsces of Public Housing Capitat Assistancs ,
PH Cagiln Astasloncn oogd CFPHGPE Vi Revigizans. HIOPE ¥ Deme-onty Funds % 8,526,576
Brsrowst Fund) 1o 6o Repstd i Pybks Housmy Cootal Ass stante 5 -
Total Sources of Publlc Housing Capital Assistanice $ 8,526,576
HUQ Bdgt
Step 8, Enter Afl Uses of #uhiic Houslny Caplial Assistance Lnaitem
Crevmumty ad Guppariee Servizes ("85 - for HOPE VI paans only) L] -
Managarman! marovemens. PHA 1408 25.000
Acrustraten, PHA 1419 305,000
Fegs and Cosls iptanning. frog Mgt msLrance, mial spor datat slo i 430 1,547,908
Srtg Acpasilion {gosl 5 5105 wio stutlures 10 R 613687 a5 Wdusagl w140 559,354
Sule inprorrent (sEats, Silg BN 30d GUbl NPTV EIRERT w452 £25.000
Dwrgtiag Sleschoas, Rehab (2050 ¢ sehab anslryg PH s 3y a8y | B 5.023,308
Ivahns Stegctueas, New Const arOH P mish fmiuiape + = “469 -
Drating Structorad, Acquisition (a:q of exisueg wh “AGY -
Creatag Evup, Hew Constifor naw construrt L4565 - Step §. Confimy
Traeting Equep, Rehab ar Acq. Unds o ] 14635 a 3
R darsig Steoote g (eemureredy factass, §00tal se0vie SEA0E 600 JETI O &) 175,800 ﬂb
ot e g L vehcins) s |8 155,000 Sources = Uses
Tipe Gt on ooz 1oty o 3l tiaend R o 2 : 55 | 3 . Tota! Seurcas (Stap 7 must
Fortuani Doess 3 55t B PHA 228t a7 ey 19 143.006 squal Tolal Lses (Step 8}
Total Uses of Public Housing Capltal Assistance $ 4.506.578 - Dfference: (30}
(A7 IR
Excluded Demaditton and Abatement Cost Caleylation
Totat 5 5 Pt Mo srg et 5 f 1
taigs Uy of Dareo ¢ Faghy 1 N R
£oqee3’s Amonas of Deent TISTE Ftanad froem 7 K o

Sop YL Enpsr Erlianemiamy G Coamt 0 v B e vt e DT Stap 1% Henive REsits

TOC Limit Aaslysis:
Fota DuvaleDriesd Coat
il Caprat Assstan s only

Campray & Subeoany Seewcen CGEET - e HOPE W poests 20ad
b, Vo of ‘ErvactGansy Se Coms’ are LS5 castlsied tmen T el

Tetal Uses of Public Houstng Capital ASS:SEance @ral sAect i HAC Lansa) as Percentage of TOL Lt

47.80%

Totat Development Gost Limit {from Step 3 abovej

Public Housing Capital Aszistancs for Housing Construnion Costs
Cresding By Lok Naw Lost pedJRAE hagi arassape STAR L R i
LaRG

HEC L imit Analysis:

PR RS

Traetor 3 ¥ gapeaar Mew - F e mre Ay o

35 Peteaidgs of LG s

{ MNA {rehabiacy andy) i

Forat Houalng Constraction Coel LI

Housiny Comstruchion Cast Lamit pf any, fom Stap 3 oy
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MIXED-FINANCE AMENDMENT
TO CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRACT

Section 1. This Mixed-Finance Amendment to Consolidated Annual Contributions
Contract (“Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment”) is entered into between the United States
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Housing Authority of City of
Meridian (the “Auathority™) and covers the public housing units and related appurtenances,
which is part of: (A) Public Housing Project name: Frank Berry Courts (the “Project” or the
“Project Units” as further defined in Section 5(K)); (B) which has a Public Housing Project
number of MS004000020; and (C) which is part of a larger development known as Frank Berry
Courts (the “Development,” as further defined in Section 5(K)).

Section 2. Funding derived from the following Capital Fund Project Number, the
Development Grant Project Number and/or HOPE VI Grant Agreement Number is dedicated for
use in developing the Project and/or the Project Units in accordance with this Mixed-Finance
ACC Amendment:

(A) Capital Fund Project Number: MS0040000209F
(ARRA Capital Funds $8,526,576);

(B) Development Grant Project Number: N/A;

(C) HOPE V1 Grant Agreement Number: N/A;

(D) Moving to Work (*“MTW”) Agreement Number: N/A.

Section 3. This Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment is an amendment to Consolidated
Annual Contributions (ACC) Contract (Form HUD 53012A and Form HUD 53012B) Number
A-2504, dated November 3, 1995, as Amendment Number 62.

Section 4. The ACC is amended to provide grant assistance for the Project identified in
Section 2 and/or to add the Project Units to the ACC. This Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment is
part of the ACC and incorporates Exhibits A-H, which are attached hereto.

Section 5. The following provisions are applicable to the Project:

(A) Date of Capital Fund Project grant reservation:
9/24/09 - MS00400000209F (ARRA Capital Funds $8.526,576);

(B) Date of Development Grant Project reservation: N/A.
(C) Date of HOPE VI Grant Agreement obligation: N/A.

(D) Number of Project Units to be developed: 113.
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(E) Housing Type: Row-House,

(F)(1) For projects to be developed using Capital Funds, the total amount of Capital
Funds authorized to be used for the Project (the Capital Fund Grant Authority) is: $8,526.576
from Capital Fund Recovery Competition Funds,

(2) For projects to be developed using Development Grant Funds, the total amount of
Development Grant Funds authorized to be used for the Project (the Development Grant Authority)
is: N/A.

(3) For projects to be developed using HOPE VI Grant Funds, the total amount of HOPE
V1 Grant Funds authorized to be used for the Project is: N/A.

(4) For projects to be developed using MTW funds, the total amount of MTW Block
Grant Funds authorized to be used for the Project is: N/A.

(G) The Project Units will be designated units in the mixed-finance development,

(H) The Project Units are gligible to receive public housing Operating Fund assistance
(“Operating Fund assistance”) under section 9(¢) of the United States Housing Act of 1937 (42
U.S.C. 1437, et. seq.) (“the Act”). If some or all of the Project Units are eligible to receive
Operating Fund assistance, specify the number of eligible units (including the number of
bedrooms per unit) that will be eligible to receive such assistance: 113 units; containing 212
bedrooms.

(1) The Project Units shall be ineligible to receive Capital Fund assistance in the future
unless the Authority executes a project-specific ACC Capital Fund amendment in connection
with the Projects Units.

(J) The definitions set forth in 24 CFR part 941, subpart F, are applicable to this Mixed-
Finance ACC Amendment,

(K) As used in this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, the term “Development” shall refer
to the entire housing facility, containing 113 dwelling units, being developed using a
mixed-finance strategy, and the term “Project,” as used herein and as used in the ACC with
respect to Project Number MS004000020 shall refer to all 113 units of the Development
(containing 212 bedrooms) which shall be developed and continuously set aside, operated, and
maintained as public housing units (the “Project Units”). Nothing contained herein shall be
construed as requiring that any dwelling units included in the Development shall at any time be
maintained and operated in accordance with the ACC, or constitute part of a “project” as defined in
the ACC, other than the units constituting from time to time the Project Units.

Section 6 - Authority certifications and assurances,

(A) By executing this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, the Authority certifies to
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HUD and, as applicable, agrees that;

(1) it has executed with HUD a 1995 version of the ACC to facilitate the execution of
this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment;

(2) any Project Units to be newly constructed at the Development with Capital Funds
under section 9(d) of the Act, or with Operating Funds under section 9(g)(2) of the Act
(applicable to small Authorities, only), are eligible to receive formula funding in accordance with
the requirements set forth in section 9(g)(3) of the Act;

(3) any Project Units to be added by this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment constitute
public housing replacement units in accordance with 24 CER § 941.102(c);

(4) the Project will be developed in accordance with the HUD-approved budget and
sources and uses set forth in Exhibit F of this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, and in
accordance with the HUD-determined total development cost (TDC) limits for the Project;

(5) it has the legal authority under State and local law to develop public housing units
through the establishment or selection of an owner entity (the “Owner Entity”), and to enter into
all agreements and provide all assurances required under 24 CFR part 941 (subpart F), the HUD-
approved proposal submitted by the Authority under 24 CFR part 941, subpart F (“the
Proposal™), and this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment. The Authority also warrants that it has
the legal authority under State and local law to enter into any proposed partnership and to fulfill
its obligations as a partner thereunder, and that it has obtained all necessary approvals for this
purpose;

(6) it will ensure that the requirements for admission to, continued occupancy of,
management, and modernization of the Project Units are in accordance with all requirements
applicable to public housing, including the Act, HUD regulations thereunder (and, to the extent
applicable, any HUD-approved waivers of regulatory requirements), the ACC, this
Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, the HOPE VI Grant Agreement and the HOPE VI
Revitalization Plan for the Project (if applicable), the HUD-approved mixed-finance proposal
under 24 CFR part 941 (subpart F) relating to the Project (the “Proposal™), the Authority’s
standard public housing admissions and occupancy policies adopted in accordance with Federal
law and described in the Authority’s approved Public Housing Agency Annual Plan, or any
approved amendment to the Plan (the “Plan™) or any contrary provisions in the MTW
Agreement; provided, however, that the Authority may adopt modifications of its standard public
housing admissions and occupancy policies for purposes of its mixed-finance projects generally,
or specifically for the Project, to the extent these modifications conform with the requirements of
Federal law, including but not limited to 24 CFR parts 903, 960, and 966 (and expressly
including tenants’ advance notice and comment rights afforded by 24 CFR § 966.3 and § 966.52
relating to modifications of standard public housing lease and grievance procedures,
respectively), and such modified admissions and oceupancy policies are described in the Plan
and made applicable to the Project prior to occupancy, and all other pertinent Federal statutory,
executive order, and regulatory requirements, as those requirements may be amended from time
to time (the requirements set forth in subparagraphs (6) and (7) of this Section 6(A) are hereafter
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to be collectively referred to as the “Applicable Public Housing Requirements™);

(7) it will ensure that the Project is developed in accordance with all requirements
applicable to the development of public housing, including, without limitation, the Act, the ACC
(except that any requirement set forth in the ACC shall be superseded by a modified requirement
set forth in this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment), the Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, the
Proposal, the HUD-approved declaration of restrictive covenants to be recorded against the
Development (the “Declaration™), the HOPE VI Grant Agreement and the HOPE Vi
Revitalization Plan (if applicable), and all other pertinent Federal statutory, executive order, and
regulatory requirements, as those requirements may be amended from time to time,

(8) there is no action, proceeding, or investigation now pending, nor any basis therefore,
known or believed to exist by the Authority, which: (i) questions the validity of this
Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, or any action taken, or to be taken, under it, or; (ii) is likely to
result in any materially adverse change in the authorities, properties, liabilitics, or condition
(financial or otherwise) of the Authority or the Proposal, or of any participating party, that would
materially or substantially impair the Authority’s or such participating party’s ability to perform
any of the obligations imposed upon it under the Proposal and this Mixed-Finance ACC
Amendment;

(9) it has obtained all Federal, State, and local government approvals, permits and
reviews required by law, or reasonably required by HUD, to be obtained by the Authority for
commencement of the activities set forth in the Proposal, and all participating parties have
obtained all such approvals, permits and reviews required to be obtained by the participating
parties for commencement of such activities;

(10) it will develop the same number of public housing units as approved by
HUD in the Proposal, and will do so within the TDC limits approved by HUD;

(11) ifthe Authority will pay for more than its pro rata share of the cost of common arca
improvements related to the Development, it further agrees that the common area improvements
will benefit all residents of the Development;

(12) to the extent the Authority’s Proposal provides that public housing units within a
Development will not be specifically designated as public housing units, but will be a fixed
percentage of the housing units and number of bedrooms developed under the Proposal, the
Authority agrees to provide additional binding assurances that the percentage of public housing
units, and the percentage of bedrooms, to be developed under the Proposal are maintained by the
Owner Entity for the term of the low income use restrictions;

(13) it will immediately notify HUD of (i) any material change in any representations,
statements, certifications or other matters contained in the Authority’s Proposal, this
Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, and/or the HOPE VI Revitalization Plan (if applicable), and
(if) any default of which it has notice under any agreement submitted to HUD as part of the
evidentiary materials hereunder;
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(14) it will ensure that the portion of reserves to be replenished with Operating Fund
assistance provided under section 9(e) of the Act (the “Project Reserves”) shall remain
dedicated for use in operating and maintaining the Project Units, or shall be returned to the
Authority for use in connection with its other public housing projects;

(15) it will ensure that the Applicable Public Housing Requirements are binding upon the
Owner Entity and any partner of the Authority and, to the extent determined necessary by HUD,
upon any other participating party. In addition, in the event of any noncompliance with the
requirements of the Applicable Public Housing Requirements, the Authority agrees to take all
necessary enforcement action to ensure such compliance or, alternatively to pursue any legal or .
equitable remedies that HUD deems appropriate;

(16) the representations, statements, certifications and other matters contained in the
Proposal were, to the best of the Authority’s information and belief, true and complete in all
material respects as of the dates of submission of the Proposal to HUD (including the dates of
any separate submissions for a specific phase), and upon the exccution of this Mixed-Finance
ACC Amendment and will continue to be true and complete in all material respects as of the date
of any amendment to this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, except as modified by such
amendment (and any corollary modification to the Proposal that the Authority deems necessary);

(17) this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment has been executed and delivered by the
Authority in such a manner and form as to comply with all applicable laws so as to make this
Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment the valid and legally binding act and agreement of the
Authority;

(18) it will use, or ensure the use of, Program Income during the grant period, in
accordance with 24 CFR § 85.25, only for eligible program costs or other affordable housing
purposes as outlined in that certain HUD-approved Program Income Certification, atached
hereto as Exhibit-H, and incorporated herein by this reference. The Authority agrees that afler the
end of the award period, any gross income reccived by the Authority or a subgrantee that was
directly generated by a grant-supported activity (or earned only as the result of funding provided
under Section 2 of this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment), including, without limitation,
principal and interest on loans made with grant funds, will be utilized solely for eligible program
costs or other affordable housing purposes. This covenant will survive any termination of the
grant and, at HUD’s direction, may be incorporated into any documentation related to the
closeout of the grant; and

(19) it will take all steps necessary to ensure that, in the event of a foreclosure or other
adverse action brought against the Owner Entity with respect to the Development (including, but
not limited to the Project Units), the operation of the Project Units will not be adversely affected.

(B) The Authority warrants that it will include, or cause to be included:

(1) in all its agreements or contracts with the partner, the Owner Entity, and/or other

participating parties receiving Development Grant Funds and/or Capital Funds under section 9(d)
of the Act, HOPE VI Grant Funds under a HOPE VI appropriations act or section 24 of the Act,
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and/or Operating Funds under section 9(¢) of the Act, an acknowledgement that a transfer of
Development Grant Funds, Capital Funds, HOPE VI Grant Funds and/or Operating Funds by the
Authority to the partner, the Owner Entity, or other participating party will not be (and shall not
be deemed to be) an assignment of Development Grant Funds, Capital Funds, HOPE VI Grant
Funds, and/or Operating Funds, and the partner, Owner Entity, or other participating party will
not succeed to any rights or benefits of the Authority under the ACC or this Mixed-Finance ACC
Amendment, or the HOPE VI Grant Agreement, if applicable, or attain any privileges,
authorities, interests, or rights in or under the ACC or this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, or
the HOPE VI Grant Agreement, if applicable.

(2) in all its agreements or contracts with the partner, the Owner Entity, or other
participating parties, and in all contracts with any party involving the use of Development Grant
Funds, Capital Funds, HOPE VI Grant funds, and/or Operating Funds, a provision that nothing
contained in the ACC or this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, or the HOPE VI Grant
Agreement, if applicable, nor in any agreement or contract between the parties, nor any act of
HUD, the Authority, or any of the parties, will be deemed or construed to create any relationship
of third-party beneficiary, principal and agent, limited or general partnership, joint venture, or
any association or relationship involving HUD; provided, however, that the mortgagee under the
first morfgage or deed to secure debt and note secured thereby, as said documents are more
specifically identified in Exhibit E hereto (respectively, referred to herein as the “First
Mortgage” and “Note™) shall be entitled to rely upon Section 12(C) and (D) of this
Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment,

(C) The Authority hereby acknowledges that HUD has approved the Proposal in reliance
upon the Authority’s representations that the Authority, the partner(s), the Owner Entity(ies), and
other participating parties will, and the Authority hereby further agrees that it will, or will cause
the participating parties to:

(1) carry out the activities ascribed to them in accordance with the Proposal and the
approved evidentiary documents (as set forth in Exhibit E hereto) and the requirements of this
Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment;

(2) complete those activities in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit D,
including the development of the Project Units;

(3) have (or will have when necessary to implement their activities in accordance with the
Proposal), the financial capacity to assure carrying out the activities to their completion;

(4) invest, or cause to be invested, in the activities described in the Proposal a specific
amount of funds in addition to the Capital Funds, Development Grant Funds, or the HOPE VI
Grant Funds, as applicable, in accordance with Exhibit F.

(D) HUD has also relied upon the Authority’s, the Owner Entity’s, and the partner(s)’s
representations that they and other participating parties, prior to the use of the Capital Funds,
Development Grant Funds, or HOPE V1 Grant Funds (as applicable) for the Proposal (and
excepting front-end drawdown approved by HUD), will enter into legally binding agreements, as
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approved by HUD as part of the evidentiary material identified in Exhibit E to this
Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, evidencing the commitments of all parties necessary for
completion of the Proposal, in compliance with the requirements of this Mixed-Finance ACC
Amendment.

Section 7 - Evidentiary Materials.

(A) Content. The Authority shall submit to HUD for review and approval the
evidentiary materials specified in Exhibit E to this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, Such
evidentiary materials must be submitted in the form of legally binding and enforceable
commitments of the participating parties to undertake and complete specified activities
connected with the Proposal, as set forth below:

(1) Evidence of Contracts

Bvidence of contractual commitments submitted to HUD must include all documents
evidencing the contractual commitments, with an opinion of counsel attached (see paragraph
(B)(2) of this section regarding the proper form for opinions of counsel),

(2) Evidence of Loans, Closings, Bond Sales.

(i) Evidence of a loan must be submitted in the form of copies of fully executed notes,
deeds, bonds, indentures, loan agreements, and other documents, which must contain sufficient

evidence (satisfactory to HUD) to enable HUD to determine: that the loan has been closed and
the funds are irrevocably committed and available to the borrower; the principal amount of the
loan; its purposes (interim or permanent); and the authorized use of loan funds; the identity of the
security for the loan; the term of the loan; the interest rate (and/or any other form of
participation) under the loan; the repayment provisions; the default provisions; the identity of all
parties to the loan; with an opinion of the Owner Entity’s (and/or any other borrower’s) counsel
addressed to HUD in accordance with the requirements of paragraph (B)(2) of this section.

(if) If bonds or limited partnership interests are sold to finance the Proposal, the evidence
must include a statement from the trustee or depository of the proceeds certifying that the bonds
or limited partnership interests have been sold and the amount of the proceeds that are available
immediately for the implementation of the Proposal, and must have an opinion of the Owner
Entity’s (and/or any other borrower’s) counsel addressed to HUD in accordance with paragraph
(B)(2) of this section. In the event that any portion of the proceeds of the sale of the bonds or
limited partnership interests are to be made available over an extended period, or for any other
reason are not immediately available in accordance with the Proposal, evidence of “bridge
financing” loan(s) in such amount (secured by pledges from the limited partners or in another
manner which does not encumber the Project), or other evidence satisfactory to HUD, must be
submitted as part of the evidentiary materials, in accordance with paragraphi (1) of this section.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the requirement for bridge loan financing will be waived to the
extent that such proceeds are necessary only to cover the payment of developer fees (provided
that the receipt of such proceeds are timed to coincide with deferred payments to the developer
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for its fees).

(3) Evidence of Other Financing and Funding Sources (including other Federal,
State and Local Commitments).

(i) Whenever evidence is required in the form of a statement and opinion of counsel (or
other party designated by HUD) that a participating party has irrevocably committed a specific
amount of finances to carry out the commitment of that participating party under the Proposal,
such evidence must be in the form of an opinion of counsel or such other party designated by
HUD, made in accordance with paragraph (B){2) of this section.

(i) The opinion of counsel (or other party designated by HUD) must certify that: such
party has examined the availability of the participating party’s financing, or other funding
source; state the amount and the source of such financing or other funding committed by the
participating party to the Proposal; and state that such financing or other funding has been
irrevocably committed by the participating party for use in carrying out the Proposal and such
commitment is in the amount required under the terms of the Proposal,

(4) Evidence of Title,

(i) Evidence of fee simple or leasehold title to real property must be in the form of an
original ALTA (or other form acceptable to HUD) policy of owner’s or mortgagee’s title
insurance, which must identify the real property and the ownership interests of the Authority,
Owner Entity, and other participating parties (as appropriate) as the owners or lessees of record
of such property;

(ii) The title policy must also reflect any instruments securing any private or public
financing, including any loan of Capital Funds, Development Grant Funds, or HOPE VI Grant
Funds, as applicable, that have been recorded against the title, and also reflect that the
Declaration, as required by Section 10 of this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, is the first
encumbrance recorded against the Development to ensure that the Project Units are operated in
accordance with the Applicable Public Housing Requirements for the period required by law and
this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment.

(B) Form of evidentiaries.

(1) Submissions. All documentary evidence submitted to HUD must be in the form of
either duplicate original(s) of the fully executed document(s), or photographic copies of the fully
executed original of the document(s), unless otherwise specitfied, with a certification attached
that the document is a true and complete copy of the original.

(2) Opinions of counsel.

(i) Counsel must opine fo the following for cach document submitted as evidentiary
material under Exhibit E to this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment:
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(2) An examination of the authority of all parties to the documents and all persons
executing the documents on behalf of the parties has been made and that the parties and said
persons were authorized to enter into and execute the documents; and

(b) Each document constitutes a valid and legally enforceable agreement or contract
under the laws of the Authority’s State and the commitments and/or agreements evidenced
thereby can be carried out in accordance with their terms under State and local law, and conform
to the provisions of the Proposal approved by HUD and the requirements of this Mixed-Finance
ACC Amendment, and that there is nothing in such document that conflicts with, or is
inconsistent with, the Proposal and this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment.

(if) Minimally, separate written opinions of the Authority’s counsel and the Owner
Entity’s counsel are required.

(iif) Counsel may rely upon the certification of other persons, or the written statements or
opinions of other counsel, provided that a copy of each such certification, statement, or opinion
must be attached to the opinion of that counsel,

(iv) If counsel predicates an opinion upon “information and belief,” then in all such cases
the counsel’s opinion must contain, or have attached thereto, a statement or description of all of
the information upon which the belief of counsel is predicated.

(C) Amendment of approved evidentiaries. After HUD has approved an evidentiary
submitted in accordance with this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, the evidentiary may not be
amended in any material respect without the prior written approval of HUD.

Section 8 -~ Draw down of Funds.

(A) The Authority shall ensure that grant funds are expended only in accordance with the
requirements set forth in this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment and the approved budget set
forth in Exhibit F to this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment.

(B} In the event that funds in addition to those set forth in the budget(s) at Exhibit F are
received from any source in connection with the Development, such excess funds may only be
used, as approved by HUD in writing, for: (1) cost overruns; (2) additional betterments; or (3)
other purposes for the benefit of the Project residents and/or the Development.

(C) Notwithstanding any contrary requirement set forth in 24 CFR §85.21, the Authority
shall request all draw downs of grant funds under the Line of Credit Control System - Voice
Response System (LOCCS-VRS), unless and until another payment system is designated by
HUD. The Authority shall comply with all rules, guidelines and notices established for the
development of public housing under the LOCCS-VRS system, or any substitute system, in
connection with the draw down of Development Grant Funds, Capital Funds, or HOPE VI Grant
Funds, if applicable. 1f HUD designates an alternative payment system, it shall be based on 24
CFR §85.21.

(D) HUD may withhold payments under this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment in
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accordance with 24 CFR §85.21(g), except that indebtedness of the Authority to the United
States which is not related to a Project under this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment shall not be
the basis for withholding payments under this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment pursuant to

24 CFR § 85.21(g)(1)(i).

(E) After HUD provides the Authority with written notification that the evidentiaries
listed in Exhibit E have been reviewed and approved, the Authority may request a draw down of
grant funds pursuant to the approved budget in Exhibit F.

(F) The Authority may utilize grant funds, in accordance with the budget under Exhibit F,
for publication costs of reports or other media relating to Project accomplishiments or results,
which are allowable costs pursuant fo OMB Circular A-87, Schedule B, paragraph 23.

(G) No grant funds may be drawn down under this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment
during any period in which the Authority has failed to file with HUD any overdue financial
report(s).

Section 9 - Covenant Against Disposition and Encumbrances.

With respect only to the Project under this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, Section 7
ofthe ACC is modified in its entirety to read as follows:

(A) Neither the Project Units nor any part thereof shall be demolished or disposed of,
other than in accordance with the terms of the Applicable Public Housing Requirements, so long
as this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment remains in force with respect to the Project. With the
exception of (1) the First Mortgage and any mortgage(s) held by the Authority that have been
approved by HUD, (2) dwelling leases with eligible families for the Project Units; and (3)
normal uses associated with the operation of the Project, neither the Project nor any portion
thereof shall be encumbered in any way, nor the assets of the Project pledged as collateral for a
loan, without the prior written approval of HUD.

(B) No transfer, conveyance, or assignment shall be made without the prior written
approval of HUD of: (i) any interest of a managing member, general partner, or controlling
stockholder (any such interest being referred to as a “Controlling Interest”) of the Owner
Entity; or (ii) a Controlling Interest in any entity which has a Controlling Interest in the Owner
Entity; or (iii) prior to the payment in full of all equity contributions described in the approved
evidentiary documents listed in the Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, anty other interest in the
Owner Entity, or in any partner or member thereof.

(C) Notwithstanding the foregoing, HUD consent is not required where a business
organization that has a limited interest (non-controlling and non-managing) in the Owner Entity
transfers a non-controlling and non-managing interest in the business organization provided that
the Owner Entity: (i) provides HUD with written notice of such transfer; and (ii) certifies to
HUD that the new owner of the limited interest remains obligated to fund its equity contribution
in accordance with the terms of the HUD-approved organizational documents of the Owner
Entity.
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(D) HUD will not unreasonably withhold, delay, or condition a request by the Owner
Entity for HUD’s consent to an internal reorganization of the corporate or partnership structure
of the Owner Entity or any of the partners, members or stockholders of the Owner Entity.

Section 10 - Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.

With respect only to the Project under this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, Section 8
of the ACC is modified in its entirety to read as follows:

The Authority shall require the Owner Entity to execute and file for record against the
Development, prior to the recordation of any other encumbrance, a Declaration in the form
approved by HUD. The Declaration shall confirm and evidence the Owner Entity’s obligation,
during the term of this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment and the Regulatory and Operating
Agreement covering the Project Units and during such further period when such approval may be
required by law as then in effect, to develop, maintain and operate the Project Units in
compliance with the Applicable Public Housing Requirements. The Declaration shall provide
further that it may not be modified, amended or released without the prior written approval of
HUD.

Section 11 - Restoration.

With respect to the Project, as defined in Section 1 of this Mixed-Finance ACC
Amendment, Section 13(B) of the ACC is modified in its entirety to read as follows:

(B) The Authority, to the extent that insurance proceeds or condemnation award proceeds
(“Proceeds”) permit, shall promptly cause the restoration, reconstruction, and/or repair
(“Restoration”) of any damaged or destroyed property of the Development. The obligation for
Restoration, to the extent Proceeds and other funds (if any are made available by the Owner
Entity or the Authority) permit, is a requirement with which the Owner Entity must comply to
the extent Restoration is feasible. Each mortgagee must permit Restoration if feasible (rather
than require application of Proceeds to reduction of debt).

If Restoration is not feasible, then the following requirements, which shall be
incorporated into the Regulatory and Operating Agreement between the Authority and the Owner
Entity (and ground lease, if applicable), and with which all mortgage documents encumbering
the Development shall be consistent, shall apply:

(1) Partial loss. Inthe event that less than all of the dwelling units in the Development
are damaged, destroyed or lost as a result of casualty or condemnation, the following provisions
shall apply:

(i) If the Proceeds are less than, or equal to, the sum of the existing outstanding mortgage
debt secured by the Development, excluding any such debt held by the Authority to secure a loan
of Development Grant Funds, Capital Funds or HOPE V1 Grant Funds for the Project (“Existing
Mortgages™), and such Proceeds are applied to reduction of Existing Mortgages, the number of
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Project Units in the Development shall remain the number required immediately prior to the
occurrence of the casualty or condemnation;

(if) If the Proceeds are less than, or equal to, the sum of the Existing Mortgages but,
at the election of the holders of the Existing Mortgages, are distributed among the holders thereof
and the Authority, by application first to reduction of the Existing Mortgages in an aggregate
amount not to exceed the proportion of the Proceeds equal to the ratio of non-Project Units to all
dwelling units in the Development, and then by payment to the Authority of the balance of the
Proceeds; then the percentage of units in the Development (and the percentage of bedrooms
contained therein) which shall be Project Units shall remain the same as required immediately
prior to the casualty or condemnation;

(iif) If the Proceeds are more than sufficient to pay off the Existing Mortgages, Proceeds
in excess of the aggregate amount of the Existing Mortgages shall be applied in the following
order of priority:

(a) to reduce any outstanding indebtedness to the Authority for a loan of Development
Grant Funds, Capital Funds or HOPE VI Grant Funds;

(b) to reimburse the Authority for any Development Grant Funds, Capital Funds or
HOPE VI Grant Funds disbursed to the Owner Entity for development of the Development other
than by loan;

(¢) to the Authority an amount equal to the total “cost of construction” attributable to the
Project Units, less the sum of (a) and (b) above, and

(d) to the Owner Entity.

Following application of Proceeds in accordance with this subparagraph (ii), the
percentage of dwelling units in the Development which shall be Project Units (and the
percentage of bedrooms contained therein) shall remain the same as required immediately prior
to the casualty or condemnation; provided, however, that to the extent that the payment to the
Authority pursuant to clauses (a), (b), and (¢) shall be less than the “cost of construction”
attributable to the Project Units, the number of remaining units in the Development which shall
be Project Units shall be increased by a number of units (rounded down) equal to (1) the amount
by which such payments to the Authority shall be less than the cost of construction, divided by
(2) the quotient of (x) cost of construction, divided by (v) the number of Project Units
immediately prior to the occurrence of the casualty or condemnation,

(2) Total loss. In the event that all of the units in the Development are damaged,
destroyed or lost as a result of casualty or condemnation, the following provisions shall apply:

(i) The Proceeds shall be used to reduce the amount of the outstanding indebtedness of

any mortgage(s) secured by the Development, including any mortgage(s) held by the Authority,
based on the priority recorded order of such mortgage(s);
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(ii) If the Proceeds are more than sufficient to pay off the amount of the outstanding
indebtedness of all mortgage(s) secured by the Development, including any mortgage(s) held by
the Authority, then the amount of the Proceeds in excess of such indebtedness shall be applied in
the following order of priority:

(a) to reduce any outstanding indebtedness to the Authority for an unsecured loan of
Capital Funds, Development Grant Funds or HOPE VI Grant Funds;

(b) to reimburse the Authority for any Capital Funds, Development Grant Funds or
HOPE VI Grant Funds disbursed to the Owner Entity for development of the Development other
than by loan;

(¢) to the Authority an amount equal to the total “cost of construction” attributable to the
Project Units, less the sum of (a) and (b) above, and

(d) to the Owner Entity.
For the purposes of this subsection 11(2)(ii), the term “cost of construction” shall mean
the total cost of developing the Development, less land acquisition costs, if any, and non-

capitalized “soft” costs.

Section 12 - Default,

(A) Each of the following shall constitute an event of substantial default under the ACC:

(1) The draw down of Capital Funds, Development Grant Funds, or HOPE VI Grant
Funds, as applicable, under the Proposal in amounts greater than authorized, or in amounts
greater than allowed by the pro rata drawdown requirements in Exhibit G of this Mixed-Finance
ACC Amendment,

(2) Breach of any approved performance schedule; or

(3) Serious and material breach of any terms, covenants, agreements, provisions, or
warranties of:
(i) the Authority, as set forth in this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment,

(ii) the Authority, as set forth in any agreement submitted to HUD as part of the
evidentiary materials and entered into between the Authority and the Owner Entity, partner, or
other participating party relating to the Proposal which, in the opinion of HUD, adversely affects
the performance obligations of the Authority, the Owner Entity, or other participating partics, as
set forth in this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment; and

(i) the Owner Entity, partner, or other participating party, made in any agreement
submitted to HUD as part of the evidentiary materials which, in the opinion of HUD, adversely
affects the performance obligations of the Authority, the Owner Entity, partner, or other
participating party as set forth in this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment.
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(B) HUD shall permit an Owner Entity, partner, or lender to participate, and may, in its
discretion, permit any other participating party to participate, in any appeal from a notice of
substantial default delivered by HUD to the Authority pursuant to Section 17(C) of the ACC
with respect to the Project.

(C) During the term of the Regulatory and Operating Agreement between the Authority
and the Owner Entity, and so long as the Owner Entity shall not be in default of its obligations
thereunder, HUD agrees that in the event of a substantial default by the Authority under the
ACC, HUD shall exercise any remedies or sanctions authorized under the ACC, including taking
possession of the Authority’s interest in the Project, in such manner as not to disturb the Owner
Entity’s rights under the Regulatory and Operating Agreement.

(D) The rights of the mortgagee under the Note and First Mortgage (including the right to
exercise all remedies specified therein) shall not be subordinate to any other obligations imposed
upon the Development, except as such obligations (1) shall be reflected in the Declaration, as
required by Section 10 of this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, or a memorandum of lease (if
applicable), and/or any other recorded instrument which shall have been recorded prior to the
lien of the First Mortgage, or (2) shall be the subject of a subordination agreement with such
mortgagee.

In consideration of the foregoing covenants, the parties do hereby execute this

Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment:

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
MERIDIAN

By:

Ronald J. Turner, Sr.
Executive Director
Date:

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Secretary of Housing and Urban Development

By

Holly Bellino

Director of Public Housing
Jackson Field Office

Date:
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Frank Berry Courts
Exhibits to the Mixed Finance Amendment

Rider to Mixed-Finance Amendment
Frank Berry Courts

This First Rider to Mixed-Finance Amendment is a rider to a certain Mixed-Finance Amendment
(the “Amendment™), Amendment No. _62__ to Annual Contributions Contract No.A2504 dated
November 3, 1995 by and between the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development (“HUD”) and the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian, Mississippi (the
“Authority”) with respect to Frank Berry Courts (the “Project”), All italicized terms shall have
the meanings given in such Amendment or in any Exhibit thereto. Notwithstanding the
provisions of Section 9 of the Mixed-Finance Amendment to the Annual Contributions
Contract boilerplate text, the Secretary has agreed to replace such Section 9 with the
following:

With respect only to the Development under this Amendment, Section 9 of the
Amendment is modified in its entirety to read as follows:

(A) Neither the Project Units nor any part thereof shall be demolished or disposed of,
other than in accordance with the terms of the Applicable Public Housing
Requirements, so long as this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment remains in force
with respect to the Project. With the exception of: (1) the Existing Mortgages and
any mortgage(s) approved by HUD, (2) acquisition of the Owner Entity’s interest
by the Authority pursuant to the exercise of an option or right of first refusal
approved by HUD; (3) dwelling leases with eligible families for the Project Units;
and (4) normal uses associated with the operation of the Project, neither the
Project nor any portion thereof shall be encumbered in any way, nor the assets of
the Project pledged as collateral for a loan, without the prior written approval of
HUD.

(B)  No transfer, conveyance, or assignment shall be made without the prior written
approval of HUD of: (i) any interest of a managing member, general partner, or
controlling stockholder (any such interest being referred to as a “Controlling
Interest”) of the Owner Entity; or (i) a Controlling Interest in any entity which
has a Controlling Interest in the Owner Entity; or (iii) prior to the payment in {ull
of all equity contributions described in the approved evidentiary documents listed
in the Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment, any other interest in the Owner Entity,
or in any partner or member thereof.

(C)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the consent of HUD shall not be required for the
collateral assignment and pledge by Berry Court-Michaels, LLC (the "General
Partner") of its interest to the Authority for the benefit of JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A. (the "Bank™ pursuant to that certain Collateral Assignment and Pledge of
Membership Intercst, dated as of approximate even date herewith in favor of the
Bank; provided however, that the exclusion of such pledge and collateral
assignment from the transfer restrictions contained herein shall not permit the
replacement of the Manager or the admission of a new or substitute manager or
managing member without the prior consent of HUD.
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Exhibits to the Mixed Finance Amendment

(D)  Consent of the Authority and HUD shall not be required for the exercise by NEF
Assignment Corporation (the “Investor”), of its right pursuant to the Partnership
Agreement to remove the general partner of Owner and appoint Investor or an
affiliate thereof as interim general partner of Owner so long as Investor gives
prompt written notice to the Authority and HUD of such removal and
appointment; provided that the Authority and HUD consent shall be required for
the appointment of such interim general partner to extend beyond a ninety (90)
day period and for the appointment of any entity (including Investor or an affiliate
thereof) as the permanent replacement general partner;

(E)  HUD will not unreasonably withhold, delay, or condition a request by the Owner
Entity for HUD's consent to an internal reorganization of the corporate or
partnership structure of the Owner Entity or any of the pariners, members or
stockholders of the Owner Entity.

(F)  The consent of the Authority and HUD shall not be required for any exercise by
Tnvestor of its right to enforce the repurchase obligations pursuant to Owner’s

Partnership Agreement.

(Remainder of page left intentionally blank)
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Frank Berry Courts
Exhibits to the Mixed Finance Amendment

EXHIBIT A

PARTICIPATING PARTIES

The parties who will be participating in the devclopment of Frank Bemy Courts (the
“Development”), as more particularly described in Exhibit B, are described below:

A, THE AUTHORITY

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian, Mississippi, a public body corporate and politic
organized under the laws of the State of Mississippi (the “Authority”), has multiple roles in
connection with the development of Frank Berry Courts (“the Development”). The Authority will
convey to Owner Entity (defined below) the land on which the Development sits on pursuant to a
Ground Lease. The Authority will sell to the Owner Entity, pursuant to a Building Purchase
Agreement, the structures that will be rehabilitated as part of the Development and take back a note
for a portion of the building purchase price. The Authority will issue bonds, the proceeds of which
will be used to fund the construction loan provided by the Senior Lender (as described below). The
Authority will also lend Capital Fund Recovery Competition (“CFRC”) funds in order to
complete the Development. A portion of the CFRC funds will be used to collateralize the Bond
Loan (described below), The Authority will serve as asset manager pursuant to the Regulatory and
Operating Agreement between the Authority and the Owner Entity, as described below and provide
operating subsidy for the public housing units (the “Public Housing Units”),

Contact Information; Contact Person:
Housing Authority ofthe City of Meridian, Mississippi Ronald J. Turner, Sr.
2425 E. Street Executive Director
Meridian, MS 39302 Tel: (601) 693 -4285

B, THE OWNER ENTITY

Berry Court Associates, L.P., a Mississippi limited partnership, is the owner (the “Owner Entity”).
The sole general partner, which will own a .01% interest in Owner Entity, is Berry Court-Michaels,
L.L.C., a Mississippi limited lability company (the “General Partner”), NEF Assignment
Corporation will purchase a 99.99% interest in the Owner Entity (collectively, the “Limited
Partner”) and provide an equity investment in return for 4% LIHTC’s (the “Equity
Investment”™).

Contact Information: Contact Person:
Berry Court Associates, L.P. Ava Goldman
Three East Stow Road, Ste. 100 Tel: (856) 596-3008

Marlton, NJ 08053
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C. THE DEVELOPER

The developer is The Michaels Development Company I, L.P. (the “Developer”). The Developer
has entered into a development agreement with the Authority covering the Development and the
prior development activities the Developer has undertaken on behalf of the Authority. With
respect to the Development, the Developer will enter into a Development Services Agreement with
the Owner Entity, pursuant to which the Developer will undertake to perform certain pre-
construction and construction supervision services and other activities for the benefit of the Owner
Entity in return for a development fee. The Developer has sub-confracted with the Authority for a
portion of the development services related to the Development.

Contact Information: Contact Person:

The Michacls Development Company, Inc. Ava Goldman

Three East Stow Road, Ste. 100 Tel: (856) 596-3008
Marlton, NJ 08053 Fax: (856) 797-8956

D. THE MANAGEMENT AGENT

Interstate Realty Management Company, an affiliate of the Developer, will act as the property
manager of the Development (the “Management Agent”) following construction.

Contact Information: ‘ Contact Person:

Interstate Realty Management Company Mark Morgan, Regional Vice
Three East Stow Road, Ste. 100 President

Marlton, NJ 08053 Tel: (856) 596-0500

Fax: (856) 596-6093

E. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR

Parkcrest Builders, Inc. will act as general contractor for the rehabilitation of the Development (the
“General Confractor”).

Contact Information: Contact Person:
Parkcrest Builders Bill Austin

5851 San Felipe Street Tel: (713) 266-0414
Houston, TX 77057

F. CONSTRUCTION LENDER
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The Authority will issue state tax-exempt housing bonds which will be purchased by JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A (“Chase”). The proceeds of the housing bonds will be advanced by Chase
pursuant to the bond purchase agreement and lent by the Authority as a construction loan to the
Development (the “Bond Loan”), The Bond Loan will be repaid with CFRC funds and the Equity
Investment.

Contact Information: Contact Person:

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. R. Scott Schmid, Vice President
One Chase Square NY3-T081

Rochester, New York 14643-0001

G, GUARANTOR

The Developer will provide a completion guaranty in favor of the Housing Authority of the City of
Meridian.

Contact Information: Contact Person:

Michaels Development Company I, L.P, John O’Donnell, Vice President
Three East Stow Road, Ste. 100 Tel: (856) 596-3008

Marlton, NJ 08053 Fax: (856) 988-5817
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EXHIBITB

DESCRIPTION OF FRANK BERRY COURTS

A. BACKGROUND

The redevelopment effort involves the acquisition and physical rehabilitation of Frank Berry Courts
(the “Development”), an existing public housing community consisting of 113 units (the “Existing
Buildings”). Originally constructed in 1937, the Development is aging and in need of repairs. The
many improvements planned for the Development include installing central heating and air
conditioning, new ecnergy efficient windows, entry doors, roofs and vinyl siding, Interior
improvements include constructing new baths and kitchens which will have energy star appliances.
All units will be painted and all floors tiled or carpeted. The rehabilitation will assure the
preservation of Frank Berry Courts as decent, attractive and affordable public housing for decades
into the future.

In accordance with the HUD Capital Fund Recovery Competition procurement guidance, the
Authority used sole source procurement criteria to select the Developer to serve as developer for
Frank Berry Courts. In addition to the work on this Development, the Developer has worked with
the Authority on two other HOPE VI sites, JT Davis and Victory Village. In order to provide for the
Development, the Development Agreement which was entered into between the Authority and the
Developer in February, 2003, has been amended to include Frank Berry Courts.

B. THE DEVELOPMENT

Unit Mix: The Development will include 113 units, all of which will be operated as
public housing (the “Public Housing Units”). Buildings within the Development contain a total
of 84,125 square feet of residential area and two accessory structures which include a community
building dedicated to providing social and community services and a management office. In
addition, one of the public housing units is in a building which will also house a laundry facility,
maintenance and security office.

Ground Lease: Pursuant to a 99 year ground lease (the “Ground Lease”), the Aunthority
will lease to the Owner Entity the land on which the Development sits, A memorandum of
Ground Lease (the “Memorandum™) will be recorded to evidence the Ground Lease. The
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants which will be recorded prior to the Memorandum and which
will run with the land in accordance with state law and binding the Authority and the Owner Entity
and each of their respective successors in title, including without limitation, any successor who
acquires title to the Owner Entity’s leasehold estate by foreclosure of a leasehold mortgage. Upon
expiration (or earlier termination in accordance with its terms) of the Ground Lease, all buildings
and improvements will become the property of the Authority.
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Building Purchase Agreement: Pursuant to a purchase agreement, the Owner Entity will
purchase the Existing Buildings for a total purchase price of $1,030,500 (the “Purchase Price”). A
portion of the Purchase Price, $559,359, shall be paid to the Authority post-closing and used to
support various social services; and the remainder, $471,141, will be secured by a Seller’s Note and
Deed of Trust.

Regulatory and Operating Agreement: Pursuant to a Regulatory and Operating
Agreement (“R&O Agreement”) between the Authority and the Owner Entity, the Owner Entity
agrees to operate all 113 units in the Development as Public Housing Units as defined in Section
3(b) of the United States Housing Act of 1937 as amended, for a period of 40 years from the date

of first occupancy of a Public Housing Unit, or such longer time as is required by law,

Subject to maintenance and operation of the Public Housing Units by the Owner Entity in
accordance with the Annual Contributions Contract, the Ground Lease and the R&O Agreement,
such units will be eligible to receive the benefits of operating subsidies provided to the Authority by
HUD, in accordance with the provisions of the R&O Agreement. Operation of the Public Housing
Units will produce no positive net cash flow to the Owner Entity but will pay for operating expenses
attributable to the Public Housing Units as specified in the R&O Agreement.

Management Agreement: Pursuant to a Management Agreement (the “Management
Agreement’), the Owner Entity will secure the services of Interstate Realty Management
Company, an affiliate of the Developer, as the initial management agent. The Management Agent
will be compensated pursuant to the terms of the Management Agreement from project revenues.

C. DEVELOPMENT FINANCING

Authority Funds: Development costs for Frank Berry Courts are to be funded in part by a
loan of up to $8,056,576 from the Authority (the “CRFC Loan”). The CFRC Loan will be used fo
cover construction costs, soft costs and to collateralize the Bond Loan described below. Although
the Bond Loan is in the amount of $5,500,000, only $3,793,872 of the CFRC Loan is required to
collateralize the Bond Loan. The remainder, $4,262,704 is being advanced to cover construction
and soft costs. The CFRC Loan will be advanced by the Authority as both construction and
permanent financing, The CFRC Loan will not bear interest. No payments shall be due on the
CFRC Loan until the maturity date of the loan except for funds that may be available from proceeds
of sale or refinancing of the Development and proceeds of laundry facility revenue.

Construction Financing: Construction financing will be provided, in part, from the proceeds
of the Authority-issued bonds which are being purchased by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
(“Chase™), the proceeds of which are will be advanced by Chase to the Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A. on behalf of the Authority. The Authority will loan the bond proceeds in an
amount up to $5,500,000 (the “Bond Y.oan”) to the Owner Entity as construction financing for the
Development.

Other Permanent Financing: Additional funding will be derived from a purchase money
mortgage representing a portion of the Purchase Price, which is $471,141 (the “Sellex’s Loan”).
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No part of interest or repayment of principal due to any lender will be made from public housing
operating subsidy or from other income from the Public Housing Units, except as may be permitted
in the future under applicable public housing requirements.

Tax_Credit Equity: NEF Assignment Corporation (the “Investor”™) will purchase 4%
LIHTC’s in an amount of approximately $2,805,901(the “Equity Investment”).

Other Income: No income received by the Authority in connection with its involvement
with the Development, including but not limited to, payments of principal and interest under the
Authority Loan, shall constitute “other income” for purposes of calculating the amount of operating
subsidies from HUD to the Authority.

Developer Fee: The Developer will be paid a developer fee in the total amount of $974,667,
payable solely from capital contributions from the Equity Investor, and/or cash flow from the
Project. The developer fee will be paid in accordance with the pay-out schedule in the Development
Services Agreement. The Authority shall receive up to 25% (approximately $243,667) of the total
developer fee.

Affordability Reserve: The Affordability Reserve in the amount of $490,872 created
pursuant to the R&O Agreement will be funded from equity no later than the final equity
contribution.

Operating Deficit Reserve: The Operating Deficit Reserve in the amount of $480,000 will
be funded from tax equity no later than the final equity contribution.

D. ROLES OF PARTICIPATING PARTIES

In further detail, the specific activities (which are not all-inclusive) to be undertaken and
completed by the Authority and each Participating Party are the following:

AUTHORITY"

(a) Concurrent with the closing of project financing, the Authority shall lease the
development site to the Owner pursuant to a Ground Lease for a term of
approximately 99 years.

(b) Shall issue the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian, Mississippi Multifamily
Housing Revenue Bonds (Frank Berry Courts Project) Series 2010 in an amount up
to $5,500,000.

(<) Shall enter into the Bond Purchase Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. and
the Owner Entity for the purchase of up fo $5,500,000 in bonds.

(d)  Shall enter into the Loan Agreement with Owner Entity for the loan of up to
$5,500,000 in bond proceeds.
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(e) Shall lend to the Owner up to $8,056,576 pursuant to the CRFC Loan Agreement,
which shall be used in accordance with Exhibit F,

(f) Shall fend $471,141 in purchase money funds pursuant to a Seller’s Deed of Trust,

(g) Shall receive approximately $559,359 payable post-closing for the purchase of the
Existing Buildings which shall be used for various community and supportive
services activities at Frank Berry Coutts, including the services of two full time case
managers.

(h) Shall receive $243,667 as a sub-developer fee payable in accordance with the
Subcontract for Development Services which shall be used for affordable housing
purposes.

(i} Shall enter into an R&O Agreement with the Owner Entity which requires that all
113 units of the Development shall continuously be set aside and operated as
Public Housing Units, and which provides for distribution of a portion of the
Authority’s operating subsidy to the Owner Entity for the benefit of the Public
Housing Units,

DEVELOPER:

(a) Shall enter into a Development Services Agreement with Owner Entity, pursuant
to which the Developer will undertake the performance of certain construction
supervision services and other development services for the benefit of the Owner
Entity. Compensation paid to the Developer pursuant to the Development
Services Agreement shall be in the total amount of $974,667.

(b)  Shall enter into a Subcontract for Development Services with the Authority pursuant
to which the Authority shall receive approximately $243,067 for various
development services.

OWNER ENTITY:

(a) Shall enter into a Ground Lease with the Authority.

(b) Shall enter into the R&O Agreement with the Authority.

{c) Shall enter into the documents evidencing the Bond Loan and the CFRC Loan.

(d) Shall enter into a Development Services Agreement with the Developer.

(e) Shall enter into the Management Agreement with the Management Agent.

(1) Shall cause completion of construction of the Development in accordance with the

schedule set forth in Exhibit D to this Amendment.
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(&) Shall place an aggregate of $490,872 into the Affordability Reserve.

GENERAL PARTNER

(&) Shall enter into the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agresment
of the Owner Entity as the sole general partner.

EQUITY INVESTOR:

{(a) Shall enter into the Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of
Owner Entity as investor limited partner.

{b) Shall make capital contributions to the Owner Entity, to be used in accordance with
Exhibit F,

MANAGEMENT AGENT:

(a) Shall enter into the Management Agreement with the Owner Entity.

(b)  Shall enter into the Addendum to Property Management Agreement with Owner
Entity.
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EXHIBIT C

Public Housing/LIHTC Units
Unit Type 1BR 2BR 3BR Total
Detached/Semi-Detached 0
Elevator 0 0 0 0
Row House 37 53 23 113
Walk-up 4 0
Total PH/LIHTC Units 37 53 23 113)*

* Note that in addition to the 113 residential units, Frank Berry Courts contains 2 non-
residential structures: a management office and a community building for supportive
services. Along with the 2 non-residential structures, one of the 113 units which lies
within a 2 unit structure, is attached to a non-residential unit which will be used for 4
laundry, maintenance and security office.
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EXHIBIT D

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULKE

I

A, The Authority has submitted the evidentiary materials described in Exhibit E of this
Mixed-Finance Amendment to HUD for review and approval. The Authority must deliver to HUD
bound sets of fully executed evidentiary materials described in Exhibit E of this Mixed-Finance
Amendment in the form approved by HUD no later than thirty (30) days after closing.

B. Upon HUD’s notification to the Authority of its approval of the evidentiary
materials submitted under paragraph (A) of this Exhibit, the Authority shall be authorized to draw
down CFRC funds for the implementation of the Proposal, in accordance with the requirements of
this Mixed-Finance Amendment.

I

The activities described in the Authority’s Proposal described in Exhibit B of this Mixed-
Finance Amendment shall be commenced and completed no later than the dates set forth as follows:

Activity Commencement Date Completion Date
Construction September, 2010 June, 2011
Lease-up March, 2011 August, 2011
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EXHIBIT E

REQUIRED EVIDENTIARY MATERIALS

The evidentiary materials to be submitted by the Authority (as defined in Exhibit A) to
HUD must be in one complete package or binder(s), with an index describing the material
submitted, under tabbed dividers, and must be in accordance with the provisions of Section 6 of

this Mixed-Finance Amendment and must consist of the following:

A. Participating Parties

B. Overall Activities and Financing

C. Units and Bedroom Mix

D. Development Schedule

E. Required Evidentiary Materials

F. Sources and Uses

G. Draw Down Ratio

1. Draw Schedule

H. Program Income Certification

Partial Release of Declaration of Trust

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants

Regulatory and Operating Agreement

i N

PHA Closing Certification (941.610 (a)(8))

6 (Owners/Lender's)
7 | Survey
6 | Ground Lease

7 | Memorandum of Ground Lease
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8 | Pro Forma Authority Lender's Policy
9 | Pro Forma Chase Lender's Policy
10 | Pro Forma Owner's Policy

11 | Survey

12 | 35(f) Certification

13 | Zoning Compliance Letter

14 | Site Plan Approval

16 | Ground Lessor's Estoppel Letter

16

HUD Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement

e NG i Qi 5 I

ST

lLoan Agreeme‘ﬁ{

Promissory Note

Leasehold Deed of Trust Security Agreement and
Assignment of Renis & Leases

A. Assignment of Deed of Trust

20

Tax Regulatory Agreement

21

Trust Indenture

22

Land Use Restriction Agreement

23 |cFrRC Léén Agtéémént

24

CFRC Promissory Note

25

CFRC Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and
Assignment of Rents and Leases

20

CFRC Assignment of Project Documents

27

CFRC Performance and Completion Guaranty
Agreement

28

CFRC Funds Pledge and Security Agreement
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29 | Seller's Note
30 _Sgller‘s Deed of Trus_t_ |

: e .[5 S

ESY “f‘g%‘i

31 | Bond Purchase Agreement

32 | Guaranty

Hazardous Material Guaranty and Indemnification
Agreement

34 | Pledge and Assignment Agreement

Investor Equity Assignment and Security
Agreement

33

35

36 | Coliateral Assignment and Pledge Agreement

A. Management Company's Consent Letter
B. Confractor's Consent Letter
C. Architect's Consent Letter

37 | Conditional Assignment of Management Contract

38 | Assignment of Developer's Fees
39 | Assignment of Permits and Contract
L) DOCUMENTS - o
40 | Amended Certificate of Limited Partnership
41 | Certificate of Good Standing

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited
Pattnership

A. Agreement of Limited Partnership

43 | Development Services Agreement
A. Subcontract for Development Services
Righ
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45 | Opinion of Owner's HUD Counsel

46 | Opinion of Owner's Local Counsel

47 | Opinion of Authority's HUD Counsel

48 | Opinion of Authority's Local Counsel

49 Certification of No or Non-Substantive Changes to

T

HUD (and Supporting Certifications)

Managerﬁent Agfement |

A. Addendum to Property Management Agreement
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EXHIBITF

CONSTRUCTION AND PERMANENT BUDGETS

This Exhibit is the revised budget for the entire Proposal, including all public and private sources
of funds, as applied to the uses (by category), as approved by HUD.

See Attached Exhibit F-1 HUD Sources and Uses for the Project
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EXHIBIT G

DRAW DOWN RATIO

1. Public housing funds in the amount of $8,526,576 of which $8,056,576 will be loaned
by the Authority to the Owner Entity for implementation of the Development.

The remaining balance of $470,000 shall be funded to cover the following internal
Authority costs associated with Frank Berry Courts, and shall be excluded from the
calculation of the draw down ratio:

Management Improvements $ 25,000
Administration $255,000
Fees and Costs $150,000
Audit $ 5,000
Non-Dwelling Equipment $ 35,000
Total Part B Uses: $470,000

2. The net amount of private and other funds of $6,294,436 is projected to be invested in
the project during a construction period, estimated to be 12 months. The projected
total of private funds and other funds to be invested during construction, i.e., prior to
permanent closing, are:

Construction Loan $5,500,000
Tax Credit Equity $ 323,295
Purchase Money Funds $ 471,141
Total: $6,294 436

Considering all public housing funds available during construction, the ratio of public
housing funds to total private and other funds will be $1.00 of public housing funds to
$1.12 of private and other funds ($6,294,436 divided by $5,641,740).

3. The aggregate amount of private and other funds in the amount of §3,277,042 is
projected to be invested in the project at permanent closing. The projected total of
private and other funds to be invested permanently in the project are:

Tax Credit Equity $2,805,901
Purchase Money Funds $ 471,141
Total: $3,277,042

Considering all public housing funds available following construction, the ratio of
public housing funds to total private and other funds will be $1.00 of public housing
funds to $.41 of private and other funds ($3,277,042 divided by $8,056,576).
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4. The portion of public housing funds that will be loaned by the Authority to the Owner
Entity will be disbursed in accordance with the CFRC Loan Agreement between the
Owner Entity and the Authority.

5. The specific amounts in the line items for sources and uses of funds set forth in
Exhibit F are projections, which are subject to adjustment in accordance with the
evidentiary documents listed on Exhibit E, and are subject to all applicable
regulations and OMB Circulars.

6. A projected monthly draw schedule is attached.
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EXHIBITH

PROGRAM INCOME CERTIFICATION

THIS PROGRAM INCOME CERTIFICATION (the “Certification’) is provided
by the Authority to the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
(“HUD”) in connection with the Development.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, as described in Section 2 of this Mixed Finance ACC Amendﬁlent,
the Authority has received financial assistance from HUD for the revitalization of public
housing units at the Development (“Federal Grant™),

WHEREAS, Program Income, as defined in 24 CFR § 85.25(b), means gross
income generated directly by a grant supported activity or earned as a result of the grant
agreement during the Grant Period. The term “Grant Period,” as used in this Cerlification
shall mean the period beginning on the date of commencement of the Federal Grant and
ending on the close-out date of the Federal Grant as determined under 24 CFR § 85.50.

WHEREAS, pursuant to 24 CFR § 85.25(a), Program Income includes income
from: (i) fees for services, which shall include, but are not limited to, payments to the
Authority that may be earned as a developer fee; (ii) the use or rental of real or personal
property acquired with grant funds; (iii) the sale of commodities or items fabricated under
a grant agreement; (iv) the payments of principal and interest on loans, including bridge
loans, funded with grant funds; or (v) other reimbursements, fees, repayments or other
income generated by the Federal Grant,

WHEREAS, Program Income does not include proceeds from the disposition of
land. The use of such proceeds is governed by 24 CFR §§ 85.31-32 and 970.9 and the
HUD approved disposition plan.

WHEREAS, this Cettification is intended to set forth HUD and the Authority’s
agreement concerning the use Program Income generated from development of the
Project,

WHEREAS, this Certification is effective concurrent with the day and year of the
execution of this Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment.

CERTIFICATION
NOW, THEREFORE, the Authority certifies as follows:

I. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by
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reference;

2. Tt will use the Program Income to carry out the following eligible and
approved activities under the Federal Grant:

a. Ifthe Authority has earned Program Income as part of the developer
fee, then the Program Income earned must be used either for this
Project or, if applicable, for subsequent phases as defined in the
Revitalization Plan, Provided that, to the extent that fiunds remain
upon completion of the entire Revitalization Plan, Program Income is
to be used for affordable housing purposes;

b. If the Authority has earned Program Income through the repayment of
loans funded with public housing funds, then Program Income is to be
used for affordable housing purposes; and

c. Ifthe Authority has earned Program Income through the repayment of
bridge loans funded with public housing funds, then Program Income
must be used for the purposes and under the conditions of the original
funding source’s grant agreement.

d. Ifthe Authority has earned Program Income through other sources,
then Program Income must be used consistent with the terms of this
agreement,

3. The Authority projects the receipt of Program Income in this phase in the
amount of at least $243,667. The source(s) of the Program Income are as
follows:

1. $243,667 from a developer fee
2. anundetermined level of funds from repayment

of loans

4, Consistent with the requirements of Section 2 above, the Authority intends to
use the Program Income listed in Section 3 for affordable housing purposes.

5. Pursuant to 24 CFR § 85.25 the authority will use any additional Program
Income for eligible and approved costs under the Federal Grant before
drawing down additional funds under the Federal Grant for such activities,
unless otherwise approved by HUD, provided, however, incorporation of this
Certification into the Mixed-Finance ACC Amendment constitutes HUD’s
approval of the uses identified in Section 4, above. The PHA agrees that atter
the end of the award period, any gross income received by the PHA or a
subgrantee that was directly generated by a grant-supported activity (or earned
only as the result of funding provided under this Mixed-Finance ACC
Amendment, including, without limitation, principal and interest on loans

Attachment MS004¢01 {D0167645.00C/ 17 635 063502321




Frank Berry Courts
Exhibits to the Mixed Finance Amendment

made with grant funds, will be utilized solely for eligible program costs or
other affordable housing purposes. This covenant will survive any
termination of the grant and, at HUD's direction, may be incorporated into any
documentation related to the closeout of the grant. After all eligible and
approved activities under the Federal Grant are completed, any additional
Program Income can be used for affordable housing purposes. This
certification expressly survives the termination of the Grant Period.

6. The Authority has ensured that the terms of this certification are binding on
the Authority, its affiliates, subgrantee(s), and their successors and assigns;
and

7. This Certification may not be altered, modified, or rescinded without the prior
written approval of HUD.
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Cum Draw from LOCCS 343,768 1.058.813 1,605,586 2,152 560 2,669,633
Pet Cum Drawn from LOCCS 4% 12% 9% 25% 32%
tvested as Collateral 485,169 485,109 485,109 485,09
GCumulative irivested as Collateral 485,109 70,218 1455327 1,940,438
Dreawn to Pay 8,526,576 228,736 61,864 51,884 61,864
Cumitabve Deawn ta Pay 513,504 §35,388 647,233 759,097
Cumutative Pot Drawn to Pay T% % 8% 9%
Intecest Duve and Payatle 0% 0% o] 0 0 i
Balanes Avaiiable Less Retainage 0% 8,626,576 7467 963 6,920,950 €374,016 5,827,043
SUBTOTAL SQURCES 224,738 61.864 61.884 61.664
BALANCE NEEDED 491,704 443,889 495,682 447,683
Draw Down Bonds
Dirarsy $.600,600 483,689 495,682 487,683
Cumulative Braw 2519364 3 HE0TE 3512.769
Inteiest Due and Payable 4.843870% 34036% 10,673 12,574 14,683

MSE04c04
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" DEVELOPMENT

DRAWDOWN SCHEDULE:
Frank Bsrry Courts
CFRC= atleast
113 Units 60%
50%
. COMPLETION #OVE INS BEGIN CONSTRUCTION
:Frank Berry Couds PER NEF | . PER NEF COMPLETED:
o Fab-11 Mar-11 Apr-11 Magit 1 dunedt Jut-T1 Augt Sep-11
USES: 5 6 7 8 g 10 11 12
Acauisition .
_Rehab Rentals 485,109 485,109 485,108 _ 4851081 4685109 485100 485,103 485,109
Construction: Contingency 62,921 52,021 62,921 5292 1' _b2.g21 52021 52,921 52,821
‘Architect/Englneer . 8,943 8,943 8,843 8.943§ 8,943 8,943 8,943 . 8,943
iPhase One 1 L
iEnvironmental Testing ¢ 25342
‘Surveys . 16,000
Soft Cost Contngancy 30,182
:Management Improvements .
"Appralsat i :
Market Studies ) : N
{PHA Fees and Cosls
i?Lagal N
iCost Certificatiord/Accounting 6,344 ; 6,032
‘Real Estate Taxes
_Properly Insurance
“Titla & Recording : X 24,000
_PHA Audit ;
Bond issuer Fees . :
-Consleuction Loan Fees i
-Non-Dwelling Equipment i R
iTax Credit (HMFA) Fees
. {Relocation N 68,439
iLease-up and Marksting 66,500
:Furnishings 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
;Admln FRA .
_Interim Loss ' :
.REFLACEMEN'T RESERVE :
Operziing Deficlt Escrow : .
_Affordability Reserve
Syndicatlon Fees .
Escraws :
‘Retzined Developer Feas . i 0
: _Petof Total Developer Fae 0%
. SUBTOTAL } 546,973 5653317 54B973 546,973 576,973 576,973 576,073 615,468
[Construction Loan_(Bond) Interest Due 14,583 16,598 18,104 20,125 24,823 21,911 22,060 22,088
"TOTAL USES 551,556 569,917 565,077 567.108° 698,756 598,884 538,973 837,556
'DEFERRED FEE ' 0
INTERIM INCOME :
PERMANENT DEBT :
ISELLERS NOTE , )
SURTOTAESOUR 0 o a o, L] 0 0 ¢
, iz 561,656 569,917 565,077 567,108; 598,795 568,884 598,973 837,558
. Bag'nning Balance; 8 0 a9 U Q Q 0 2
Pay-in, 8 129,054 1] 0 0 0 [H 0
Pay in as Pct of Total LINTC 0% 4.60% 0% 0%, 0% 0% 0% 0,00%
Balancs + Pay in Q 120,054 b} 0 0 4] [H a
Draw 0 128,054 a 0 0 o Dl 0
Balance 0 0 0 o o 0 ] 1]
Interest Eamed on Balance Q 0 0 [ 0 [H 2 0
0 0 0 ] 0 0 0 0
SUBTOTALSOUROESS ci2g 0 v o v 0 o
BALANCE NEEOED 565,077 567,108 585,766 598,884 568,973 837.586
CFRG FUNDS 2,027438,
Drawn from LOCCS to Pay 51,6864 8,208 61,884 148,884 576973 576.973 576,073 815,468
Crawn from LOCCS as Collateral 485,109 485,100 485,169 3.'-?5.109' o] 9
Total Dravr from LOCCS 546,973 653317 545,973 546,973 576.973 576.973 576473 816,468
Cum Oraw fom LOCCS 3,246,506 3,792,823 4,348,797 4.883.770 5470743 6,047,797 6,624,680 7.440,158
Pct Cum Orawn from LOCCS 368% 45%, 51% 5% 4% % 78% 87%
invested as Coilateral 485,109 486,109 486,108 398,109 G a 0
Cumulative Invested as Coitatersl 2,428,545 2,916,654 3,396,763 3.793.872: 3,793.872 3.783.872 3.793.872 3793872
Drawn o Pay 61,884 £8,208 61,854 148,884° 575,873 576,973 576,973 515,468
Cumidative Drawn to Pay 520,661 889,169 951,034 1,080,808 1,876,871 2.253,845 2,630,818 3,646,286
Cumuiative Pet Drawn fo Pay 10% 0% 1i% 13% 20% 26% 3% 43%
tnterest Due and Payabla G & 4 0 0 o] 5 0
Balance Avallable i ess Retainage 5,280,070 4,728,153 4,179,779 3632808 3,055,833 2.478.859 1.801 856 1,088,418
SuUBTOTAL SOURCES 61.864 197,262 61,864 148,864 576,973 575,973 576,673 815,488
BALANCE NEEDED AG0.8592 A72.654 503,213 418,244" 21,623 21,611 22000 22,088
Draw Down Bonds
Drere 493,692 Jr2.e54 503,213 418,244 21.823 21.911 22.080 22.088
Comutative Draw 4,412,450 4,485.105 4,985.318 5406561 5428384 5460245 5472295 £.494,383
Intarest Due and Payabls 16,699 18,104 20,135 21823 21,8t 2,000 22,038 22,377
TOTAL SOURECES £61.656 569,917 585,077 567.10d 503,766 588,684 598.973 B37.556
TABKSEANE 004501 & %0 0 ° 0 o 0 0
fsil] i 8,133,787 7,300,895 7,869,692 8,488,576 9,097.548 9,935,105




DEVELOPMENT
DRAWDOWN SCHEDULE:

Frank Bertry Courts
113 Units

_Frank Berry Courts

USES;

“Acguisiion
;thab Rantals
\Canstruction: Conlingency
{ArchitecVEngineer
‘Phase One o
Enviropmentat Testing
Surveys
-Soft Cost Contngency
Management mprovements
Appiaisal
;Market Stodies
{PHA Fees and Casts
tegal
iCost Centification/Accountiag
_Real Estate Taxes
_Propedy insurance
_Titte & Recording.
PHAAUL
Bond dasuer Fees
;Construction Loan Fees

. Non-Dweliing Bquipment
\Tax Cradit (HMFA) Fees,
‘Refocation
Lease-up and Marketing
Furnishings
_Admin PHA
Interim Loss
REPLAGEMENT RESERVE
Operating Defisit Escraow
Afferdabifity Reserve
Syndication Fees
[Escrows
‘Retained Developer Fees
. ) Pet of Total Developar Fee
SUBTOTAL

100% QUALIFIED
. NEF INSTALLMENT OCCUPANCY PER
1 & BONDS PAID OFF NEF
H d

i ot Naw-41
; B 14

i

+

5,997

: _oTA4sT
i 10%
f 103,464

Dec-11

'SUBTOTAL

¢ 1,630,600
5821308

. se280
363,278

S

243,667

9,843,004

[Construction Loan (Bond) interest Due

22,177

211,742

TOTAL USES

=1 £

125,641

10,060,746

'DEFERRED FEE
INTERIM INCOME
"PERMANENT DEBT
SELLERS NOTE
A

(23
NEENEEDED

.Fedara} LIHTC

Bag'nning Balanca

Pay-in

Payin as Pet of Towal LIHTC
b Balence + Payin
. Draw

Balance
Interest Earned on Balance
Ending Balance
SUBTATAL SOURCES: SEape
BALANCE NEEDED

: 760,733
- 729,734 0

CFRC FUNDS

0

4 ]
H ) 471,141
3 75149]

ol 1,104,028

1,063,026

i
.&.%gié?s

Bragan from LOCCS to Pay 1.086.418 4.732,704
Draai from LOCCS as Cellatesal 0
Tatat Drawmn from LOCCS: 1,086,418
Cum Braw from LOCCS’ 8,526,578
Pet Cum Drawn from LOCCS 1005
Invesled as Collaterat
Cumutative Iavasted as Collateral 3,793,872
Drawn to Pay: 4,880,255 Y] 0 a 8,626,576
Cumulative Drawn to Pay 8,826,576 8,526,578 8,626,576, 8,528,576
Cumdoiativa Fct Drawn o Pay 0% 100% 100%: 100%
taterest Oue and Payable
Balance Avaiable Less Relalnage
SUBTOTAL SOURCES
BALANCE NEEDED
Draw Down Bonds
Draw
Cumutativg Draw

interest Dye and Payable

*T?I%%gggéime 1M




DEVELOPMENT
DRAWDOWN SCHEDULE:

Frank Berry Courts

113 Units
FINAL
4TH CLOSING:6TH
INSTALLMENT INSTALLMENT
{Frank Berry Courls DRAWS THRU MONTH 16 PER NEF PER NEF
! Jan-12 Feb-12 tdar-12 r Ape=12 TOTAL
USES: 18 i7 8 . 19
-Acquisition 1,036,500] 1,030,500 - - 1,020,600
-Damciition 0 0 - - G
_Rehab Rentals 8,821,208 5,821,308 -, - 5,821,308
-Construgtion: Contingsncy 682,131 582,131 . . 582,131
Architect/Enginear 369,278 09,278 - | - 369,278
Phass One 3,200 3,200 - - 3.200
‘Environmental Testing 50,683 50,683 - - 50,683
Surveys 30,000 30,000 - - 30,000
3ok Cost Contingency 72,388 72,358 - - 72,358
{Managament Improvements 25,000 26,000 .o - 25,000
Appraisal 9,600 9,500 - - 9,500
Market Studles 12,800 12,800 - - 12,800
PHA Fees and Costs 150,000 180,000 - - 150,000
Legal 205,000 184,000 41,000 . - 205,000
Cost Cenification/Accounting 25,376 25376 - - 25,376
_Real Estate Taxes 0 0 -0 - 0
‘Property insurance 57,079 57,079 - - 57,079
Title & Recording 120,000 120,000 .- - 120,000
‘PHA Audit 5,000 5,000 - - £,000
Bond [ssuer Fees 185,000 185,000 - - 185,000
FHAMUD FEES 0 - - Q
Construction Loan Fees 94,624 94,624 - - 94,624
Non-Dwelling Equipment 35,000 35,000 - i - 35,000
Tax Credit (HMFA) Fees 104,000 104,000 - - 104,000
:Relocation 113,000 113.000 . - 113,000
‘Lease-up & Marketing 86,500 66.500 - - 86,500
‘Fumishings 120,000 120,000 - . - 120,000
Admin PHA 305,000 305,000 - - 305,000
Interim Loss o 4 - - 0
REPLACEMENT RESERVE 8 & - - 0
.Qperating Deficit Escrow 480,008 ¢ 480,000 - 480,000
“Affordabilily Reserve 480,872 i+ 480872 - 490,872
:Syndication Feas 48,000 48,000 . - 48,000
‘Escrows 9 a - - ¢
Retained Daveloper Fees 974,667 243,867 533,533 97,487 974,687
Pct of Total Daveloper Fea 25% 65% 10%
SUBTOTAL ) 11,585 875 9,843,004 O 1,845405 97,487 11,685,878
[Constriction Loan {Bond) Infersst Due 21r,742 217,742 4 4 [] 247,742
TOTAL USES 11,803,618 10,060,746 ] 1,645,405 97,467 11,803,618
:RESERVE RELEASE 0 0 9
‘DEFERRED FEE 0% 0 4} 0
"INTERIM INCOME 0 0 0
PERMANENT DEBT 0 v} . 0
SELLERS NOTE 471,141 471,141 i 471,141
SUBTOTAL SCURCES 471,141 4] o ] 471,141
BALANCE NEEDED 9.589,605 0 1,645,408 97 467 11,332,477
-Faderal LIHTC
: Beginning Balance 40,989 40,998, Q
Pay-in 2,805,901 1,104,028 0 1,604,406, 97,467 2,805,501
Pay In as Pet of Total LIHTC 33% 0% 57.18%" 3.47% 100%
Balance + Payin 1,104,028 40,999 1,645 405 97,467
Braw 1,083.029 v} 1,845,405 57,467 2,805,501
Balanca 40,969 40,999 ] o
Interest Eamed on Balance 0% 0% ] o a: ]
Ending Balance 40,959 40,998 i ]
SUBTOTAL SQURCES 1,534,170 G 1,645,405 gv.487 3277.042
BALANCE NEEDED 8.646,576 4 g 0 8,526,576
CFRC FUNDS
Drswn from LOCCS 4,732,704
Draw 8,626,576 8,526,576 4 0 1] 8,526.576
Cumulative Draw 8526576 8,526,576 8,528,676 8,526,576
Cumulstive Pot Orawn 100% 160% 1006% 100%
Interast Due and Payabie 0% 0% 0 & 0 ]
Balzgnce Avalfable Lass Retsinags 30% 5,968,603 ¥ 1]
SUBTOTAL SOURCES 0,060,746 Q 1,645,404 97467 14,603,618
BALANCE NEEDED ¢ o] o ] Q
Draw Down Honds
Draw 5,500,000 1} 0 0
Cumutative Diaw L] o [ 0
fnterest Dua and Payable 6.76% C.5625% 2 3] 1] 0
TOTAL SQURCES 10,060,748 o 1,645,405 97 467 11,803,618
GAP{SURPLUS) k] 1] [H ¢} 0
CUMULATIVE SOURCES 16.080.748 10,060,746 +1.706,154 116032618
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DEVELCPMENY

DRAWDOWN SCHEDULE:
Frank Berry Courts
113 Units
CONSTRUCTION
CLOSING: 15T

Frank Bery Courts INSTALLMENT NEF
' Sep-i0

USES:
Acquisition £59,359
Rehab Rentals
Construction: Conlingency i
Architect/Enginesr . 261,959
Phase One 3,200
‘Environmental Testng ; 25,342
‘Surveys : 15,000
1Soft Cost Contagency ¢ 36,179
Management improvements 4]
iAppralsal : 9,500
‘Market Studies 12,860
PHA Fees ang Costs ’ 55,348
Cost Cerificaion/Accounting 10,000
Property Insurante 67,07§
Tile & Recording 96,000
PHA Audit 4
Non-Dweliing Equipment G
Relocation 44,681
Lease-up and Karketing |
Furnishings .
Admin PHA i 239,856
-TOTAL USES TO BE PAID FROM CFRC FUNDS 1,430,188
PREDEVELOPMENT DRAWS 343,768
BALANCE OF CFRC FUNDS DUE AT CLOSING 1,086,418
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To the Chancery Clerk of Lauderdale County, Mississippi: The property described in
this instrument is located in Meridian, Lauderdale County, Mississippi as deseribed in
Exhibit A attached hereto.

RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:

J. Richard Barry

Hammack, Barry, Thaggard and May
505 Constitution Avenue

Meridian, Mississippi 39301

Phone: (601) 693-2393

PARTIAL RELEASE
DECLARATION OF TRUST AND RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS

THIS PARTIAL DEED OF RELEASE is made as ofthe day of September, 2010, by the
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELQPMENT (“HUD"™), as
successor to the Public Housing Administration and the Federal Public Housing Authority and on behalfof
the United States of America, with respect to the following recitals:

A. HUD or its predecessors entered into certain Declarations of Trust (the “Declarations™), in
which the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian, Mississippi or its predecessors (the “Authority™)
placed in trust for the benetit of HUD or its predecessors, and in which HUD or its predecessors accepted in
trust, certain real properties owned by the Authority, situated in the City of Meridian, State of Mississippi.

B. The dates of said Declarations and the record information associated with gach, are as follows:
(a) Declaration tiled December 31, 1940 in Book 236 at Page 552;
(b) Declaration filed April 6, 1989 in Book 1141 at Page 500;
(¢) Declaration filed October 23, 1989 in Book 1161 at Page 659;

The above described Declarations are hercby collectively referred to as the “Record Documents.”

C. Among the real properties included as security for the Record Documents is the site of the
Frank Berry Courts public housing project, known as Autherity Project Number MS004000020
which site will be leased by the Authority to a private entity for redevelopment and which will be
subject to a new Declaration of Restrictive Covenants affecting only the real property 1o be 50

redevelaped.

D. Pursuant to a Mixed-Finunce Amendment to the Apnual Contributions Contract dated as
ofthe date hereof, HUD approved the redevelopment of the Frank Berry Courts housing project on
the real property identified in Exhibit A. The parties to the redevelopment ol the project desire the

refease of such real property from the encumbrance olthe Record Documents. and HUD has agreed
to such release.

[ RETR R BT  TR @13 RIS
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NOW, THEREFORE, the undersigned, as beneficiary and legal owner of the Record
Docuiments, does hereby RELEASE and QUIT-CLAIM unto the Authority THAT PART of the real
property described in the Record Documents, situated in the City of Meridian, State of Mississippi, as
more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof,

This RELEASE and QUIT-CLAIM also applies to any other agreements and documents
executed prior to this date between the undersigned and the Authority that, similarly to the Recorded
Documents, placed on the real property identified in Exhibit A for the benefit of HUD or its
predecessors, provided, however, that this RELEASE and QUIT-CLAIM shall only apply to the real
property identified in Exhibii A.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same, with all the appurtenances thereto belonginé free,
clear and discharged from the encumbrance of the Record Document.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Partial Deed of Release as of
the date first above written,

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING
AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

By:

Holly Bellino
Its;  Director of Office of Public Housing, Jackson Office

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

COUNTY OF

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for said county and state onthis
day of September, 2010, within my jurisdiction, the within named Holly Beltino, who acknowledged
to me that she is Director of the Office of Public Housing of the Department of Housing & Urban
Development and that in said representative capacity she executed the foregoing instrument on behalf
of the Secretary of Housing & Urban Development afier first having been duly authorized to do so.

Notury Public

RETIEIRTING I B G | i3 il
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EXHIBIT A
Legal Description

BLOCKS 1, 2, AND 3 OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF MERIDIAN AS
RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 3 PAGE 29, LESS AND EXCEPT THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF
LAND AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 2061 AT PAGE 134, SAID TRACT BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF BLOCK 15 OF GALLAGHER'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MERIDIAN, LAUDERDALE
COUNTY, MISSISSIPPL, RUN THENCE NORTH 120 FEET; THENCE EAST 151 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 111.93 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE NORTH LINE OF §TH STREET;
RUN THENCE SOUTH 81 DEGREES 19 MINUTES WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF
8TH STREET, 47.82 FEET; RUN THENCE WEST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF 8TH
STREET, 104 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, LYING AND BEING ON NORTH OF
8TH STREET TOGETHER WITH ALL IMPROVEMENTS THEREON AND
APPURTENANCES THEREUNTO BELONGING.

[erlein] I 4 R Rk
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To the Chancery Clerk of Lauderdale County, Mississippi: The property described in this
instrument is located in Meridian, Lauderdale County, Mississippi as described in Exhibit

A attached herefo.

This instrument was prepared by and, once
recorded, should be returned to:

J. Richard Barry

Hammack, Barry, Thaggard and May
505 Constitution Avenue

Meridian, Mississippi 39301

Phone; {601) 693-2393

NON-DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT

THIS NON-DISTURBANCE AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement™)
is made and entered into as of the __day of Scptember, 2010, by and between the UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through the SECRETARY OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT (“*HUD"), and BERRY COURT ASSOCIATES, L.P,, a Mississippj
limited partnership (*Owner™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Meridian (the “Authority™) and HUD
have entered into a certain Consolidated Annual Contributions Contract (the “ACC™), which
provides for loans, grants and annual contributions to be made by HUD to assist the Authority in
developing, maintaining and operating certain public housing projects; and

WHEREAS, the ACC, on or about the date hereof, has been amended by that certain
Mixed-Finance Amendment (as so amended, and as same may be amended further from time to
time, the “"Amended ACC™), so as to be made applicable to one hundred thirteen (113) public
housing units to be located in a new development to be known as Frank Berry Courts (the

“Brevelopment™: and

WHEREAS, the real property comprismg the Development s Being Teased 1o Owner
pursyant o that certinn Ground Lease between the Authority and Owier dated on or about the
dute hereat (the “Lease™), sawd property being more particularly described m Exhibit A hereto and
being reterecd to herein as the Leased Premises™ and

WHEREAS, HUD has certain rights with respect to the Leased Premises pursuant to the
Amended ACC: and

WHEREAS, i connection with the Developmient the parties hereto desire o enfer inte

this Agreenient on the ternss seb forth befow.

A¥siaToy "3 BN
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NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing premises, Ten and 00/100 Dollars

(510.00) and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

[

6.

Non-Disturbance. In the event that HUD or any transferee from or through HUD
acquires title to, or possession of the Leased Premises pursuant to HUD's exercise of its
remedies in the event of a default by the Authority under the Amended ACC or the
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, or otherwise under applicable law, then so long as
Owner is not in default under the Lease (subject to any applicable notice and cure periods
set forth therein), (i) the Lease shall not be terminated, nor shall the use, possession or
enjoyment of the Leased Premises by Owner be interfered with, nor shall the leasehold
estate granted by the Lease be affected in any manner, except in accordance with the
provisions of the Lease, (i) neither HUD nor such transferee shall take any action that
would interfere with or disturb the possession or use of the Leased Premises or other
vights under the Lease by Owner , except in accordance with the provisions of the Lease,
and (i) the Leased Premiscs shall be subject to the Lease and HUD and any such
iransferee shall recognize Owner as the lessee of the Leased Premises for the remainder
of the term of the Lease in accordance with the provisions thereof,

Attornment. Owmner hereby agrees with HUD that, in the event HUD or its transferee
acquires title to or possession of the Leased Premises pursuant to HUD's exercise of its
remedies in the event of a default by the Authority under the Amended ACC or otherwise
under applicable law, then Owner shall attorn to and recognize HUD or ils transferee as
the lessor under the Lease for the remainder of the term thereof, and Owner shall perform
and observe its obligations thereunder, subject only to the terms and conditions of the
Lease. Owner further covenants and agrees to execute and deliver upon request of HUD,
or its assigns, an appropriate agreement of attornment to HUD and any subsequent
titleholder of the Leased Premises.

No Modification of Lease. Nothing herein contained nor anything done pursuant to the
provisions hercof shall be deemed or construed to modify the Lease.

Title of Paragraphs. The titles of the paragraphs of this Agreement are for convenience
and reference only, and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain,
modify, amplify or aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement,

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Mississippi and, where applicable, the laws of the United States
of America.

Provisions Bindding. The terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and shall
inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and permitted
assigns (including morigagees). respectively, of HUD and Owrner,

[Signatures on following page]

HIeTT6S 300 4 635 el by 2
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
first above written.

HUD:

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
Secretary of Housing and Urban Development

By:

Holly Bellino, Director
Office of Public Housing
Mississippi Field Office

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI )
)38,

COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of Scptember, 2010 by
Holly Bellino who, being by me duly sworn, did say that she is the Director of the Office of
Public Housing in the Mississippi Field Office of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Devetopment, and that he has the authorily to execute under oath and has so executed the above
instrument for and on behalf of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

IN TESTEIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal
on the day and year first above written.

Notary Public

Print, Type or Stamp Name

OWNER:

BFRRY COURT ASSOCIATES, L.P., a Mississippi
limited partoership

By: Berry Court-MichaelsL. L .Cl a
Mississippt a linsited hability company
and its general partner

Ava b Goldman
His: Vice President

AR [ 3 8 an 50} 3
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STATE OF MISSISSIPPI
COUNTY OF LAUDERDALE

Personally appeared before me, the undersigned authority in and for the said county and
state, an this day of September, 2010, within my jurisdiction, the within named Ava I,
Goldman, who acknowledged to me that she is vice president of Berry Court-Michaels, L.L.C,, a
Mississippi limited liability company and general partner of Berry Court Associaies, L.P., a
Mississippt limited partnership, and that for and on behaif of said limited partnership as vice
president of general partner of said limited partnership, and as the act and deed of said limited
partnership as general partner of said limited partnership, and as the act and deed of said limited
partnership, he executed the above and foregoing instrument, after first having been duly
authorized by said limited partnership and said limited liability company so to do.

Notary Public

My Commisston Expires:

Hom

ML S L L3k IS A LT
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EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LEASED PREMISES

BLOCKS 1, 2, AND 3 OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF
MERIDIAN AS RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 3 PAGE 29, LESS AND EXCEPT
THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND AS RECORDED IN DEED BOOK 2061 AT
PAGE 134, SAID TRACT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF BLOCK [5 OF
GALLAGHER'S ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MERIDIAN, LAUDERDALE
COUNTY, MISSISSIPPI, RUN THENCE NORTH 120 FEET; THENCE EAST 151
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 111.93 FEET, MORE OR LESS, TO THE NORTH LINE OF
8TH STREET; RUN THENCE SOUTH 81 DEGREES 19 MINUTES WEST ALONG
THE NORTH LINE OF 8TH STREET, 47.82 FEET; RUN THENCE WEST ALONG
THE NORTH LINE OF 8TH STREET, 104 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
LYING AND BEING ON NORTH OF 8TH STREET TOGETHER WITH ALL
IMPROVEMENTS  THEREON  AND  APPURTENANCES  THEREUNTO
BELONGING,

RENEDLER ST S nis LRSI

Attachment MS004¢01
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Capitat Fuml Recovery Competition Grant Sources and Uses
(PERMANENT FINANCING}

Grantea or Applicant HA: | The Housing Authorily of the Clly of Marldlan
Davelopment Name and Phase: | FRANK BERRYT GOURT.

Unlt Typs: [ Ranlal PubEs Housing [ Renfalnon-PH | HOWPH Assistance | HO wio PH Assistanca | Total Units this Phase
Number of Unlls (enfered on Unit Mix vorkshest): | 113 | . - - 113
PH Cupilal Asslst,

Part At Davalopment Sources Loan/GrantEquily (ARRAJCERC) Private Funds Other Public Funds Tolel
Publle Houslng Gaplial Assistancat Loan (ARRA/GFRC) Loan $ 8088576 - -1% ,066,578
Public Houslng Capital Asslstsnce: Grant Grant s -3 - -1% -
Levy Income Houslng Tax Credit Equily Equity § -13$ 2,805 004 -13 2,805,801
Clhar; st Mortgage N - -Is <
Cihar: Deferred Davelopment Fea f -18 -3 - -
Giher; Sellers Note E - ] 471,143 | 3 471,141
Qther; NE 13 . Z
Oiher; NI e . =
Othen E -5 -8 -18 "
Othar: ] -15 - HE B
Other: E N . B E -
Total Davelopmant Sources {Part A} 5 5056678 § 2 805,801 471141 5 11,333,018

PH Ganpltal Assls,

Part B: Addlilonal Sources {ARRAJCFRG) Private Funds Qliar Public Funds Tolal
Public Housing Capital Asstslance: (ARRA/GFRCY ] 470000 1 $ - -15 470 00
Other: ] BE . N A
Qlher: - - .
Total Addltional Sources {Part B} E 475,600 § - § - § 470,000

Total Sources this Phase (Paris Aand B) g 8528576 $ 2805801 $ 471,141 § 11,803,418

Part A: Devolopment Uses

PH Capitat Assist.

Development Consluclion Costs HUD Bdgt Lise ltem (ARRA/CFRC) Private £unds Other Pubfic Funda Tolal

Resldentla] Consiniction 1450 -{5 N IS -
Residentlal Rehabitatlon 1480 E 4,807,109 { $ =18 1% 4,807,108
Builder's General Requirernanis 1480 8 306,384 | $ . - 306,384
Builder's Overhean] 1480 5 102,128 | § -18 ME 02,128
Bullder's Profit 480 ) ENEEEE S - 3 306,385
Site Improvament 450 B26000 | § - N E 626,000
Olher; Community Facity 470 3 1750001 5 NE HE 175,000
Subtolal; Davelopment Construclion Cosls $ 5,322,004 - $ - & 8,322,008

PH Capital Assist,

Devalopment Soft Costs HUD Bdgt £1ns Hem (ARRA/CFRCY Privale Funds Olher Public Funds Tolal

Acquisitlon of Sile(s) 1440 3 550,359 ] 471,141 § & 1,030,600
Accounling and Cost Gortifieation 1430 3 25378 BE 26376
Appralsal / Mkt Sludy Exoense 1438 5 22,3060 § BE 22,300
Auchilect & Engineer Feas 1430 £ 396,781 3 -1s 369,278
Eavirenmanlial Assessment, Tesling & Claanup 430 E: 53,883 3 BE 53,883
Financing & AppEcalion Expense, Lender 430 - % 24,624 - 04,624
Firancing & Asplication Expense, Tax Credil 1430 E B 04000 [ 8 - 104,000
nsurance, Conslryction Perod 430 3 57,079 ] - 57,079
nlarest, Construcllon & Bridga Loan(s) 1430 § 217,742 | § - 217,742
Legsl Exponse, Davaloper & Lender(s) 1439 3 B 205,000 - 205,000
Markeling & Lease-up Expense 1430 E 111,500 30,180 - 56,600
Permis, Censiruction & Uldity Hookup 1436 L - - -18 -
PILOT & Taxes, Censtruclion Perdod 1438 3] - - =18 -
Survay 1430 30,000 K] 30,600
Tillo & Recordng Faes 1430 52,488 1 120,000
Initla} Opsrating Daficit (Construciion Period} 1430 -1% - 1% -
.| Other Hard and Solt Contingency 1430 $ 147,794 [ § 5,997 | § K 654,488
Other: Reserves (ACC) & Operaling - % 970,872 - 970,872
Other; Fumilshings for Commen Areas 1478 E 75,000 E -1% 120,000
Other; Bond Issusnce Fees § -18 154,850 | $ -18 185 000
Other; Relocation Expense 1485 3 113,000 E - 113,000
Other: Syndicetor Faas 3 Bk 48,000 | - 48,000
Gther:Admin PHA 1410 $ 50,000 £ - 50 000
Other; Developer Fea § -8 914,667 | § - 874,667
Sublolal: Developmenl SoR Cosls 5 1176213 § 1,734,570 § 2,605,902 474 8 5,512,310
Total Uses for Developmeont (Part A) $ 8,058,678 § 2,805,802 § 471,541 § 11,834 318

PH Capital Assisl.

Part B: Addiitonal Uses HUD Bdgt Line ltam {ARRA/CFRC} Private Funds Qther Pubfie Furds Tolal
Community & Supp. Services (HOPE V1 only) 408 ] L - - -
Management Jmprovamants, PHA 408 -1 % BE 3 E -
Admlnistration, PHA 1440 286,000 1 § - -1 285,000
Faas & Cosls 1430 180000 | 5 - =15 180,000
Site Acgulsiiion 1440 ° B E - 2 E: -
Audit 1411 $ -1 BE - -
Non-Dwelling Siructures 470 $ -18 - - -
Common Area Fumishing 475 - -

Domelitton {and asseclated ramediation) 485 ] -1 - -5 -
Relocation Expense 1493 $ 5,000 | RE -18 5,000
Total Addillonal Uses (Part B) E 470,000 § - - § 470,000
Tolal Usas this Phass {Partes A and B) 5 86265676 $ 2805002 $ 41,441 § 12,304,316
Attachment MS004¢c01
11122014

FBG- Fis- FINAL Revision 1




Capital Fund Recovery Competiilon Grant Sources and Uses
(CONSTRUCTION PERIOD)

Orantes or Applicant HA: [ The Heusing Auihorty of 1he Gty of Menidtan

Development Name and Phase: | FRANK BERRY GOURT

Unit Type: | Rentel FubicHouslng | Rentalnon.PH | HOwiPH Asslsfance | HO wio PH Assistance | Tetal Unlts Iis Phase
Humber of Units (entered on Unit Mix vrosksheetl; | 133 | - R N 3
PH Gapltal Asslsl,
Part A; Devalopment Sources Lean/Grani/Equily (ARRAIGFRC) Privale Funds Qlher PubZe Funds Tola)
Publle Houslng Capltal Assistance: Loan (ARRA/CFRG) Loan .. 8,641,740 $ -1§ - 5,841,740
Public HeUsing Capist Asslslanco: Grent Grant -15 -1§ - z
Low income Housing Tax Gredit Gauity Equity s 323,203 - 323,263
Other: TaxExempt Financlng Loan B E 5,600,000 | § - 5500,600
Other;_Deferred Development Fee Loan 3 - E BE -
Selers Nofe Lean 3 474,441 5 401,441
Clher; E - - BE .
Giher; - .15 s -
Gthar . . - .
Othar; - -8 - -
Other; - B n s
Total Bovelopment Sources (Part A} § 584,748 § £323,203 § 471,147 § 11,636,174
PH Capital Assist

Part B: Additional Sources [ARRAJCFRC) Private Funds Dthar Fublic Funds Talel
Pubfe Houslng Capilal Asslslance: {ARRA/CFRCY 470,000 -1% - 470,000
Other: - - . _
Other; R M B <
Total Additional Saurces (Part B] B 470,000 - - % 470,000

Total Sources this Phase {Parts A and B) 2 5,683,663 § B,414,740 § 58232083 § 471,141 5 12,408,174

Part A; Devotopment Usos

TH Caphel Assial.
Developmeant Construction Costs HUD 8dgt Line fem (ARRAICFRO) Privala Funds QOthear Pubkc Funds Tofal
Resldential Construction 1460 $ - -
Residenlal Rehabtitallon 480 $ 153,123 ] 8 3,613,689 | § - 3,801544
Builder's Genere! Requirerments 450 12,200 248,205 . 260,505
Buider's Cvarhaad 460 4100 82735 1§ -5 86,836
Buidar's Profit 460 3 12,360 248205 | § AR 260,505
Sila Improvemant 145¢ 62600018 B E 625,000
Other: Community Facaity 1470 3 715,000 { § ME 75,000
Sublotal: Tevsloprment Constuction Cosls § 181823 § 488716686 % - § 5,069,388

PH Bapital Asslsk.
Development Soft Cosls HUD Bdgk Line Hem {ARRA/CERC) Privels Funds Other Public Funds Tola!
Acaulsifion of Site{s) 440 550,358 | § - 471,141 {8 1,030,500
Accounting and Cost Ceriification 430 3 16,344 -{% 16,344
Appraisal f 1kt Study Expanse 430 5 22,300 | 8 » -1% 22,300
Archliel & Engineer Fass 430 5 360335 [ 5 - -15 360,335
Environmenlal Assessmant, Tesing & Glaanup 330 3 78542 | 5 . 13 35,642
Financing & Application Exp,, Lendar 430 $ -1% 94,624 -1s 84,624
Financlng & Application Expanse, Tax Cradit 430 § B 104,000 - 104,000
Insurancs, Genstructlon Parlod 430 § 57,079 3 B E 57076
Inferest, Constuchion & Brdge Loams) 1430 s 793,000 B E 193,605
Legal Expense, Gavelopar & Lender(s) 1430 E BNE 164,000 A E 164,000
Markeling & Lease-up Expense 1430 E DE - -13 -
Permits, Gonstruction & Uity Hookup 430 ~ - -15 -
PILOT & Taxes, Conslructlon Period 430 - | & - B E -
Sunvey 430 15,000 ] -18 16000
Title & Recording Fees 430 58,000 | § M -18 25,000
Izl Operaling Deficit {Conslruclion Perfad) 430 HE - -13 -
Cther: Cenlingancy 3430 3 §35,928 1% 638,928
Olher: Reserves (ACC) & Operating -8 - -
Clhor Fumishings for Common Areas 5 $ 80,000
Olher: Bond issuanco Foas E 3 185,000
Ciher: Reloceton Expense $

.. Other: Dravin as Collaleral fof Constriicion Boads: . . i §:

Ofher; Syndicalor Faes ¥ - 48,000 =13
Other:Admin FHA 1440 E 50,000 BE =15
Other; Davelepes Fea S - 146,200 [ & ] 146,200
Sublvtal: Devslopment Soft Costs $ 4,800,048 § 5459917 § 835,727 ¢ 471,341 § 8,866,185
Total Uses for Dovelopment {Part A} k) 5085328 $ E84(,740 § 5,823,283 § 47,141 § 14,936174

PH Capltel Asslst,

Part B: Addltionat Uses BUD 8dgt Ling ltem {ARRNCFRC) Prtvate Funds QOthar Publie Funds Tolal
Gommunity & Supportive Services (HOPE Vi onlyy 1408 3 NE B A N
Management Improvements, PHA 1408 ] 26000 1% -1% - 25,000
Administration, PHA 1410 ] 265, -8 2K 255,000
Feas & Costs 1430 160,000 [ § -1$ i3 160,000
Sila Acnulsiion 1440 K -15 A 18 -
Augdit 411 5,000 | § BE | 3 5,000
Nom-Dvreling Struclures 1475 - 3500008 -1% i .. 35,000
Commen Area Fumishing 1475 - ] -8 -
Demoklion (and assedaled remediatian) 1485 -8 -1s -1 -
“Relacallen Fxpenss 1485 - 3 <15 -
Total Addltional Uses (Part B) 3 470,000 $ 3 -8 470,060

Total Uses (s Phase {Parts A and B) 3 5683326 § 8,111,740 $ 6823203 § 471,141 § 12,408,174

Adtachment MS004c01
11722011
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and

Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 4/30/2011
[Part I: Summary
[PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: 2010
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No; MS26P00450110  Replacement Housing Factor No: Capital Fund
Date of CFFP:
[T Original Aunual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 9/30/11 ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended

1 Total non-CFP Funds

2 1406 QOperations $ 423.720.00] § 4 3 o -
3 1408 Management Improvements 3 20,000.000 $ 4 8 -1 8 -
4 1410 Administration $ 211,860.000 § 4 8 -1 3 -
5 1411 Audit 3 1.000.00 5 -

6 1415 Liquidated Damages

7 1430 Fees and Costs hy 68,064.00} $ 4§ 1.3 -
3 14490 Site Acquisition 3 -4 8 -] 3 -1 § -
9 1450 Site Improvement $ -1 8 -1 $ 4 8 -
10 1460 Dwelling Structures $ 558,360.00] § 1§ . -
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable $ 187,900.00] 1 s 4 3 -
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures $ 50.264.00] 3 1 5 -5 -
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment $ 33.182.00] § 41 s 4 3 -
14 1485 Demolition 3 - 3 -

15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration

16 1495.1 Relocation Costs $ 3.00000{ % 4 5 -1 8 -
17 1499 Development Activities

18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA 3 561.250.00 561.250.00] § 561.250.001
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via

System of Direct Payment

19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20) $ -

20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 - 19) $ 2,118,600,00] $ - 561,250.0001 § 561,250.00
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities

22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance

23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs

24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs

Attachment MS004d01 1of7 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 23770226
Expires 4/30/2011
{Part I: Summary .
[PHA Name: Grant Type and Number ) Federal FY of Grant: 2010
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS26P00450110  Replacement Housing Factor No: Capital Fund
Date of CFFP:
[} Original Annual Statement Ll Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 9/30/11 ] Final Performance and Evzluation Report
Eum No. |Summary by Development Account [ Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Amount of line 20 Related to mbn% O?_ma?mnoz gnmmrﬂwm _
m_m:mE_.m O*N:Em UM§ \ ‘ Date \\ Signature of Public Housing Director Date
i

Attachment MS004d0% 20f7 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part Il: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450110
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2010 Capital Fund

9/30/2011
Development | (General Description of Major Dev. Acct | Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No, ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended

MHA Wide Operations 14086 $ 423,720.00

Subtotal $ 423,720.00!3% - $ - $ -
MHA Wide |Staff Training 1408 $ 10,000.00

Computer Software 1408 $ 10,000.00

Subtotal $ 20,000.00|% - $ - $ -
MHA Wide CFP Salaries Including Benefits 1410 $ 211,860.00

Subtotal $ 211,860.00 | $ - $ - $ -
MHA Wod Audit Cost 1411 3 1,000.00

Subtotal $ 1,000.00 | $ - $ - $ -
MHA Wide  |A&E Fees 1430 $ 68,064.00

Subtotal $ 68,064.00 | $ - |8 - | % -

Auquire Property for
MHA Wide |Homeownship 1440 $ -

Attachmet MS004d01 Page 30of7



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor {(CFP/CFPRHF)
Part IIl: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450110
Replacement Housing Factar Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2010 Capital Fund

9/30/2011
Development| General Description of Major Dev. Acct jQuanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
Subtotal $ . $ P -
1450

Subtotal $ - $ - |9% -
MS004-004 |Replace Heating Systems 1460 $ 218,712.00

Replace/repair gutters/fasica &
MS004-004  |paint 1460
MS004-014  |Interior Door Replacement 1460 $ 40,000.00
MS004-010  |Storm Door Replacement 1460 $ 36,000.00
MS004-12A |Storm Deor Replacement 1460 $ 100,000.00
MS004-012A jExterior Door Replacement 1460 $ 158,648.00
MS004-013  |Paint Porch Ceilings/railings 1460 $ 5,000.00

Subtotal $ 558,360.00 $ - $ -
MS004-013  |Replace Appliances 1465 80| $ 60,500.00
MS004-006 |Replace Appliances 1465 53| $ 40,000.00

Attachmet MS004d01 Page 4 of 7



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part Ill: Supporting Pages

PHA Name;

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS28P00450110
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2010 Capital Fund

9/30/2011
Development| General Description of Major Dev. Acct | Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
MS004-014  |Replace Appliances 1465 25(% 20,000.00
MS004-001 jReplace Appliances 1485 89|$% 67,400.00
Subtotal $ 187,900.00 $ - 3 -
Residental Bus Shelter
Modernization: Install metal
benches, metal roof & security
MS004-012A |cameras to modernize residental 1470 $ 25132.00
Modermization: Install metal
benches, metal roof & security
MS004-0128 icameras to modernize residental 1470 $ 25132.00
Subtotal $ 50,264.00 $ - $ -
MHA Wide Computer Hardware 1475 $ 15,000.00
MHA Wide Maint. Vehicles/Equipment 1475 $ 18,182.00
Subtotal $ 33,182.00 $ - $ -
1485
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 50of 7



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part Ii: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS28P00450110

Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2010 Capital Fund

8/30/2011
Development General Description of Major Dev. Acct | Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Criginal Revised Obligated Expended
Subtotal $ - $ - $ -
MHA Wide Relocation 1495 3 3,000.00
Subtotal $ 3,000.00 $ - 15 -
Beond Proceeds issued for
Construction of 72 Units at J.T.
Davis 1501 $ 561,250.00 $ 56125000 (% 561,250.00
Subtotal $ - $ 561,250.00 $ 561,250.00| % 561,250.00
Contingency 1502
Subtotal $ - 3 - $ “ $ -
Grand Total $ 2,118,600.00 $ 561,250.00 | $ 561,250.00
3 -
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 6 of 7



Part lll: Implementation Schedule

Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF})

PHA Name:
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program No: MS26P00450110
Replacement Housing Factor No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2010 Capital Fund

Development Number All Fund Obligated All Funds Expended Reasons for Revised Target Dates
Name/HA-Wide (Quarter Ending Date) (Quarter Ending Date)
Activities
Original Revised Actual Original Revised Actual
MHA Wide 6/12/2012 6/12/2014 H.R. 4194 pgs. 97-98 Obligation of funds -

requirement 24 months from date which funds
became availabie. Expenditure of funds -
requirement 4 years from date which funds
available.

Attachrnent MS004d01



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: 2011
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Progtam Grant No: MS26P00450111  Replacement Housing Factor No: Capital Fund
Date of CFEP:
[] Original Annual Statement L Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: 9/30/11 O Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. {Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations 3 306,343.00f $ $ -1 S -
3 1408 Management Improvements b 10,000.00] $ b -1 3 -
4 1410 Administration 3 153,171.000 § $ -1 3 -
5 1411 Audit 3 1,000.00
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs 5 68.064.00] § $ -1 $ -
S 1440 Site Acquisition $ - 5 $ -1 5 -
9 1450 Site Improvement $ -1 § $ -1 5 -
10 1460 Dwelling Structures $ 257,182.00f § 5 4 3 -
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable $ 145,000.00f $ b 4 $ -
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures 5 -1 $ 3 -4 8 -
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment $ 25206.00] $ S . 4 8 -
14 1485 Demolition 3 -
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs $ 3.000.000 % 3 - $ -
17 1499 Development Activities
i8a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA 3 562.,750.00
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via
System of Direct Payment
19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20) $ ~
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19) $ 1.531,716,00] & 3 41 $ -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs
Aftachment MS004d01 1of7 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.8. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing

Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011

Part I: Summary

PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: 2011

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS26P00450111  Replacement Housing Factor No: Capital Fund

Date of CFFP: )
l........_H_ Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
Performance and Evaluation Report for Peried Ending:  9/30/11 ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Can No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost

Amount of line 20 Related to Energy Conserjvation Measures, _

mﬁ:mE_.m of Executive :mono_. Date Signature of Public Housing Director Date
/ /

Attachment MS004d01 20f7 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part ll: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450111
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2011 Capital Fund

Development | General Description of Major Dev. Acct | Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
MHA Wide  |Operations 1406 $ 306,343.00
Subtotal $ 306,343.00 | $ $ - $ -
MHA Wide Computer Software 1408 $ 10,000.00
Subtotal $ 10,000.00 | $ $ - |8 -
MHA Wide CFP Salaries including Benefits 1410 $ 153,171.00
Subtotal $ 153,171.00 | $ $ - $ -
MHA Wod Audit Cost 1411 3 1,000.00
Subtotal $ 1,000.00 | $ $ - $ -
MHA Wide  |A&E Fees 1430 $ 68,064.00
Subtotal $ 68,064.00| 5% $ - $ -
1440 3
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 3 of 7



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part il: Supporting Pages -

PHA Name;

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS28P00450111
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2011 Capital Fund

Development| General Description of Major Dev. Acct |Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Qbligated Expended
Subtotal - - |$ - $ -
1450
1450
1450
’ 1450
Subtotal - - 3 - $ -
Exterior Water Heater Room
MS004-001 mm._,._o,..mﬁ"o:“ replace Qooa“ roofs, 1480 m\_. 85.000.00
- jceilings, floors, walls, repaint, units
repair steps
MS004013 Paint Exterior 1460 45 50,000.00
Bldgs
MS004013 Locate/upgrade exterior shut off 1460 mm. 71,091.00
valve systems units
MS004014 Locate/upgrade exterior shut off 1460 Nm. 51.091.00
valve systems units
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 4 of 7



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part li: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS28P00450111
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2011 Capital Fund

Developmentj General Description of Major Dev. Acct [Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
Subtotal 257,182.00 $ $
MS004001 Replace Hot Water Heater 1465 90 65,000.00
MS004006 Replace Refrigerator & Ranges 1465 53 32,000.00
MS0040013 |Replace Refrigerator & Ranges 1465 g0 48,000.00
Subtotal 145,000.00 $ $
1470
Subtotal - $ $
MHA Wide Purchase Computer Hardware 1475 7,024.00
MHA Wide Purchase New Maint. Vehicle 1475 1 18,182.00
Subtotal 25,206.00 $ $
1485
Aftachmet MS004d01 PageS5of7



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part Il: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450111

Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2011 Capital Fund

Development | General Description of Major Dev. Acct |Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
Subtotal $ - $ - $
MHA Wide Relocation 1495 % 3,000.00
Subtotal $ 3,000.00 $ - $
Bond Proceeds issued for
Construction of 72 Units at J.T.
Davis 1501 $ 562,750.00
Subtotal $ - $ 562,750.00 $ - $
Contingency 1502
Subtotal $ - $ - $ - $
Grand Total $ 1,531,716.00 $ - $

Attachmet MS004d01

3 -

Page 6 of 7



Part lll; Implementation Schedule

Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)

PHA Name:
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program No: MS26P00450111

Replacement Housing Factor No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2011 Capital Fund

Development Number All Fund Obligated All Funds Expended Reasons for Revised Target Dates
Name/HA-Wide (Quarter Ending Date) {Quarter Ending Date)
Activities
Qriginal Revised Actual Original Revised Actual
MHA Wide 6/12/2013 6/12/2015 H.R. 4194 pgs. 97-98 Obligaticn of funds -

requirement 24 months from date which funds

.|pbecame available. Expenditure of funds -

requirement 4 years from date which funds
available.

Attachment MS004d02



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Numbey Federal FY of Grant: 2012
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS26P00450112  Replacoment Housing Factor No: Capital Fund

Date of CFI'P:
Original Annual Statement LI Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annnal Statement (revision mo: )
[ Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: [ Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. [Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actnal Cost
Qriginal Revised Oblisated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations $ 306,343.000 $ 4 3 -1 $ -
3 1408 Management Improvements $ 10.000.00] § 1§ 1 3 -
4 1410 Administration 5 153,171.00] $ -1 5 41 8 .
5 1411 Audit $ 1,000.00
6 1415 Liguidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs 3 61.496.00] $ 1.8 -1 5 -
2 1440 Site Acquisition $ -1 $ -1 8§ . .
9 1450 Site Improvement 5 150,000.00] $ -1 3 1 8 -
10 1460 Dwelling Structures 3 60,000.001 $ -1 8 -4 3 -
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—TNonexpendable $ 4 35 4 8 -1 S -
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures 3 203,000.00] $ 1 3 -1 3 -
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment 3 25.206.00] $ 4 S -1 3 -
14 1485 Demolition $ -
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs 3 3.000.00] $ -1 § 4 3 -
17 1499 Development Activities
18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA $ 558.500.00
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via
System of Direct Payment

19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of iine 20) $ -
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19} 3 1.531,716.00] § 41 S 1 $ .
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 304 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs

Attachment MS004d01 - T1of8 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report : U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: 2012
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS826P00450112  Replacement Housing Factor No: Capital Fund
Date of CFFP:
B Original Annual Statement Ll Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[L] Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
26 Amount of line 20 W&m& to Energy Oo%mmou Measures _
Signature of Executive Di or Date Signature of Public Housing Director Date

b ot N\\@\\Q\
VA

A\ NS

Attachment MS004d01 20f9 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part Il: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS20P00450112
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2012 Capital Fund

Development|{ General Description of Major Dev. Acct [ Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
MHA Wide [Operations 1406 $ 308,343.00
Subtotal $ 306,343.00 | $ - 18 - $ -
MHA Wide Computer Software 1408 $ 10,000.00
Subtotal $ 10,000.00 | $ - $ - 1% -
MHA Wide CFP Salaries Including Benefits 1410 $ 153,171.00
Subtotal $ 153,171.00 | § - $ - $ -
MHA Wod Audit Cost 1411 5 1,000.00
Subtotal 3 1,000.00 | § - $ - $ -
MHA Wide |A&E Fees 1430 $ 61,496.00
Subtotal $ 61496.00|8% Rk - 18 -
1440 $ -
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 3 0of 9



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part ll: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450112
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2012 Capital Fund

Development| General Description of Major Dev. Acct | Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
QOriginal Revised Obligated Expended
Subtotal $ - 18 - |85 - 18 -
Upgrade basketball court; replace
) goals & overlay asphalt add
MS004-12A fence, security lights, & benches: 1450 L $ 5000000
add landscaping
Upgrade basketball court; replace
) goals & overlay asphalt add
MS004-128 fence, security lights, & benches: 1450 2 $ 50,000.00
add landscaping
Eliminate Soil Erosion; perform
soil erosion testing & perform
MS004-12B  {work in accordance with 1450 1 $ 50,000.00
environmental consulting
firm/A&E
1450
Subtotal $ 150,000.00 | $ - |s - 1$ -
MS004-12A  |Paint Occupied Units 1460 cwmm $ 60,000.00
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 4 of 9



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part II: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450112
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2012 Capital Fund

Development | General Description of Major Dev. Acct |Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
Subtotal $ 60,000.00($% - $ - $ -
1465
Subtotal $ - $ - 3 - $ -
Renovate RAB office; replace
doors, windows, floors, walls,
ceilings; add security locks,
MS004-10D  |security cameras, security service 1470 1 $ 40,000.00
windows; replace furniture, add
central ac/heat system; replace
electrical fixtures
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 50of 9



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part [l: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450112
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2012 Capital Fund

Development
Number
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities

General Description of Major
Work Categories

Dev. Acct
No.

Quanti

ty

Total Estimated Cost

Total Actual Cost

Status of Work

Qriginal Revised

Obligated Expended

MS004-12A

MS004-12B

MS004-12C

Renovate manager;s office & add
security measures to office;
replace doors, windows, floors,
walls, ceilings; add security locks,
security cameras, security service
windows; replace furniture, add
cental ac/heat system; replace
electric fixtures

Renovate manager;s office & add
security measures to office;
replace doors, windows, floors,
walls, ceilings; add security locks,
security cameras, security service
windows; replace furniture, add
cental ac/heat system; replace
electric fixiures

Renovate manager;s office & add
security measures to office;
replace doors, windows, floors,
walls, ceilings; add security locks,
security cameras, security service
windows; replace furniture, add
cental ac/heat system; replace
electric fixtures

Attachmet MS004d01

1470

1470

1470

—_—

—

$

$

$

52,500.00

52,500.00

29,000.00
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part [l1: Supporting Pages

PHA Name:

The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number

Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450112
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2012 Capital Fund

Development} General Description of Major Dev. Acct |[Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended

Renovate manager;s office & add
security measures to office;
replace doors, windows, floors,

MS004-13 émm_m,.om_uu:mm“ add mmo:.:@ “oowm, 1470 S 29.000.00
security cameras, security service
windows; replace furniture, add
cental ac/heat system; replace
electric fixtures
Subtotal $ 203,000.00 - $ - $ -

MHA Wide Purchase Computer Hardware 1475 $ 7,024.00

MHA Wide Purchase New Maint. Vehicle 1475 1 $ 18,182.00
Subtotal $ 25,206.00 - $ - $ -

1485

Subtotal $ - - $ - $ -

MHA Wide Relocation 1495 $ 3,000.00

Attachmet MS004d01 Page 7 of 9



Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)
Part ll: Supporting Pages

PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant:
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: MS29P00450112 2012 Capital Fund
Replacement Housing Factor Grant No:
Development | General Description of Major Dev. Acct |Quanti Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost Status of Work
Number Work Categories , No. ty
Name/HA-
Wide
Activities
Original Revised Obligated Expended
Subtotal $ 3,000.00 $ - $
Bond Proceeds issued for
Construction of 72 Units at J.T.
Davis 1501 $ 558,500.00
Subtotal $- $ 558,500.00 $ - $
Contingency 1502
Subtotal $- |$ - $ - 1%
Grand Total $1,531,716.00 $ - $
$ -
Attachmet MS004d01 Page 8 of 9



Part lll; Implementation Schedule

Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program and Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor (CFP/CFPRHF)

PHA Name:
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian

Grant Type and Number
Capital Fund Program No: MS26P00450112
Replacement Housing Factor No:

Federal FY of Grant:
2012 Capital Fund

Development Number All Fund Obligated All Funds Expended Reasons for Revised Target Dates
Name/HA-Wide (Quarter Ending Date) {Quarter Ending Date)
Activities

Original Revised

Actual Criginal Revised Actual

MHA Wide 6/12/2014

6/12/2016

H.R. 4194 pgs. 97-98 Obligation of funds -
requirement 24 months from date which funds
became available. Expenditure of funds -
requirement 4 years from date which funds
available.

Attachment MS004d02



Capital Fund Program-—Five-Year Action Plan U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 4/30/20011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name/Number Meridian Housing Locality (City/County & State) Original 5-Year Plan Revision No:
Authority/MS004
Meridian/Lauderdale, MS
Development Number and Work Statement | Work Statement for Year 2 Work Staternent for Year 3 Work Statement for Year 4 Work Staterment for Year 5
Name for Year 1
A FFY _2012 FFY __ 2013 FFY _ 2014 FFY _2015 FFY 2016
MHA Wide
B. Physical Improvements 7 YK 630,000 625,579 627,079 627,079
Subtotal &
C. Management Improvements \\\ \\ 0] 0 0 0

D. |PHA-Wide Non-dwelling \\\\\\\\ 5314 5000 5000 5000
Structures and Equipment

E.  |Administration \\\ \\ 153,171 153,171 153,171 153,171

F. Cther \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 31,000 31,000] 21,000] 31,000

G. o%aﬂwa \§ , 153,481 153,716 153,716 155,966

H. Demolition ) ““\\\\\“\“\\\\

L Development

T Capital Fund Financing — oas \\\\\\\\ 558,750 563,250 561,750 559,500
Service

K.  |Total CFP Funds \\\ \\ \\\\\ 1,531,716 1,531,716 1,531,716 1,531,716

L. Total Non-CFP Funds
M, Grand Total 1,531,716 1,531,716 1,531,716 1,531,716

Attachment MS004e01 lofl




Capital Fund Program---Five-Year Action Plan

Part I1: Supporting Pages — Physical Needs Work Statement(s)

Work
Statement for

FFY

Work Statement for Year 2013

2013

Work Statement for Year: 2014

FEY 2014

Year | FFY
2012

Development Number/Name

General Description of Major
Work Categories

Quantity

Estimated Cost

Development Number/Name

General Description of
Major Work Categories

Quantity

Estimated Cost

7

MS00400001/Highway
Village
Renovate Manager's office &
add security measures to
office; eplace doors,
windows, floors, walls,
ceilings; add security locks,
security cameras, security
service windows; replace
furniture, add central ac/heat
systemn; replace electric
fixtures.

40,000

MS004000001/Highway

Replace/repair kitchen floor

89 units

20,000

MS00400001/Highway
Village
Renovate Community Center;
replace doors, windows,
floors, walls, ceilings; add
central ac/heat systen;
replace electric fixtures;
replace fumiture

40,000

MS004000001/Highway
Village

Replace kitchen sinks

89 units

40,000

Attachment MS004e01
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Capital Fund Program---Five-Year Action Plan

\ MS004000001/Highway
MS004000051/Western Village
Gardens
Upgrade basketball ct;
replace basketball goals & 1 50,000 Replace/repair bathroom 89 units 15,000
overlay asphalt; add fence, floor
security lights, & benches;
\ add landscaping
7,
\\ MS004000004/George Reese MS004000004/06,10A.B,C
Courts
194 porches 40,000 . . 19 units 103,216
\ Paint Porch Railings Replace mu\&..oEo Heating
\ units
_
\\ MS00400004/George Reese MS004000003/10D,
Renovate Manager's office &
add security measures to
office; replace doors,
windows, floors, walls,
ceilings; add security locks, 1 50,000 Replace Hydronic Heating 33 units 47,589
security cameras, security units
service windows; replace
firniture, add central ac/heat
system; replace electric
\\ fixtures.
7
MS004000004/Magnolia MS004000001/10F, 11C&D
Courts
106 porches 20,000 . . 38 units 54,495
Paint Porch Railings . Replace H.Hu\&..oEn Heating
\k ) units

Attachment MS004e01
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Capital Fund Program--—-Five-Year Action Plan

MS004000004/Magnolia MS004000004/George
Courts Reese .
55 umits 40,000 15 bldgs 50,000
\ Soffit Repair Repair damaged soffit/fascia

\ MS004000001/4-11C&D

MS0040004/10A B
Repair 13 units 150,600 22 units 35,000
Roofisoffit/fascia/gutters Replace Interior Doors
MS004000003/10D 25 units 100,000 MS0040006001/4-11C&D
W@ﬁmmu. . A . 10 ft 5,000
\ roof/soffit/fascia/gutters Repair Buckling Sidewalks

\\\ MS500400003/11A&B 8 units 50,000 MS004000003/4-11 A&B
Replace . 8 units 15,000
roof/soffit/fascia/outters Replace Interior Doors

\\\ MS00400001/11C&D MS004000003/4-11A&B
e 22 units 50,000 . Qi 10 fi 15,000
\m roof/soffit/fascia/gutters Repair Buckling Sidewalks

Attachment MS004e01 30f6



Capital Fund Program---Five-Year Action Plan

MS004000051/Western
Gardens
\\ Replace Exterior Siding on. 25 bldgs 75,000
& all bldes
, MS00400005 1/ Western
Gardens
Gutter Repair/replacement 25 bldgs 75,000
’ on all bldes
Q\ MS004000052/Eastern
Gardens "
\ Replace Exterior Siding on 34 bldgs 75,279
’ \ all bldes
\\ \\ Subtotal of Estimated Cost $630,000 Subtotal of Estimated Cost $625,579

Attachment MS004e01 4 0f6




Capital Fund Program-—Five-Year Action Plan

Part II: Supporting Pages — Physical Needs Work Statement(s)

Work

Work Statement for Year 2015
Statement for

Work Statement for Year: 2016

FFY __ 2015 FFY 2016
Year L FEY Development Number/Name Development Number/Name Cuantity
2012 Quantity Estimated Cost Estimated Cost
General Description of Major General Description of
Work Categories Major Work Categories
\\ MS004000004/George Reese MS004000051/0akland
Revlace Heatine systems 97 units 200,000 Install privacy/securityfence ! 60,000
P &3y along property lin
MS004000004/George Reese MS004000003/10D
Mt.Barton
Bathroom Renovation -
Replace/repair . 97 units 100,000 replace all wm@doa fixtures 25 units 100,000
gutters/downspouts/fasica & accessories;replace
boards/soffits/siding & paint bathroom doors, window,
building exterior floors, ceilings, lights;
N repaint bathroom
\ MS004060004/George Reese MS004000013/Sowashee
Major Kitchen Renovation;
replace doors, windows, .
walls, floors, ceilings; replace 97 units 103,000 Sorm Door replacement - 162 100,000
cabinets, appliances, front & back
electrical fixtures; repair
Jumbi
& plumbding

Attachment M5004e01 50f6




Capital Fund Pro

ram-—Five-Year Action Plan

_

MS004000004/George Reese

W eplace Interior doors/Paint
Lnits

97 units

224,079

MS004000013/Sowashee

windows

Replsce Windows & storm

165

150,000

\\\\

MS004000003/Mt. View

Repair Damaged Sidewalks

251t

5,000

___

MS004000003/10D
Replace Exterior Doors

55 doors

100,000

z

MS00400051/0Oakland
Heights
Renovate Community
Center; replace doors,
windows, floors, walls,
ceilings; add central ac/he
system; replace electric

at

fixtures; replace furniture

38,000

_

MS004000001/Highway
Village
Replace Interior Doors

89 units

74,079

\\\\\

/77

Subtotal of Estimated Cost

$627,079

Subtotal of Estimated Cost

$627,079

Attachment M5004e01
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Capital Fund Program-—Five-Year Action Plan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 4/30/20011

Part III: Supporting Pages — Management Needs Work Statement(s)

Work Statement for Year: 2014

Work Statement Work Statement for Year 2013
for
Year 1 FFY FFY _ 2013 FFY _ 2014
12

Development Number/Name
General Description of Major Work Categories

Estimated Cost

Development Number/Name
General Description of Major Work Categories

Estimated Cost

& HA Wide 153,481 HA Wide 153,716
§ Operations(1406) Operations(1406)
\ K] HA Wide HA Wide
\\\\ Management Improvements(1408) Management Improvements(1408)
A HA Wide 153,171 HA Wide 153,171
Central Office Central Office
7 Administration(1410) Administration(1410)
\V\\\\\\\\\&_ Audit Cost (1411) 1,000 Audit Cost (1411) 1,000
§ HA Wide 30,000 HA Wide 30,000
& Fees & Costs(1430) Fees & Costs(1430)
\\\\\\\ HA Wide 5,314 HA Wide 5,000
& Maintenance & Computer Equipment(1475) Maintenance & Computer Equipment(1475)
w MS004000018/1.T. Davis Courts 558,750 MS004000018/1.T. Davis Courts 563,250
§ Bond Proceeds Bond Proceeds
D
Y
Subtotal of Estimated Cost 901,716 Subtotal of Estimated Cost 906,137

Attachment MS004e01
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Capital Fund Program-—Five-Year Action Plan

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing

Expires 4/30/20011
Part I1l: Supporting Pages — Managemenit Needs Work Statement(s)
Work Statement Work Statement for Year 2015 Work Statement for Year: 2016
for
Year | FFY FFY 2015 FFY __ 2016
11
Development Number/Name Estimated Cost Development Number/Name Estimated Cost
General Description of Major Work Categories General Description of Major Work Categories
HA Wide 153,716 155,966
Operations(1406)
HA Wide
\\ Management Improvements(1408)
w\ HA Wide 153,171 153,171
Central Office
\ Administration(1410)
Y Audit Cost (1411) 1,000 1,000
X HA Wide 30,000 30,000
% Fees & Costs(1430)
7 HA Wide 5,000 5,000
\N Maintenance & Computer Equipment(1475)
\\ MS004000018/1.T. Davis Courts 561,750 559,500
\ Bond Proceeds

Vi
Y
g
Y Subtotal of Estimated Cost 904,637 Subtotal of Estimated Cost 904,637
Attachment MS004e01 20f2




Meridian Housing Authority
DRAFT
Proposed use of Replacement Housing Factor Funds

l. Site | - The Meridian Housing Authority has existing property on the corner of Valley and 47"
street {across from the Carousel Community Center) which part of the original site for
Victory Village. This site will accommodate a total of five (5) three bedroom houses,
approximately 1,200 square feet each.

Site H - Existing property located on Manning Street, which is property not used during
Carousel Homeownership phase. This existing lot wills accommodate a total of four (4}
three bedroom houses, approximately 1,200 square feet.

Site Il — Planned purchase of home site within 100 feet of Site I, known as the Bonner
Property. The current appraised value is $22,000.

H. Development Method — New construction, single family dwellings with property currently
owned by Meridian Housing Authority, except for Site {il as stated above. All ten {10} of
these units will be place under the ACC with Meridian Housing Authority.

HI. Structure Type — Single Family and/or Townhouses with 3 bedrooms.

v, Schedule:

A. 05/30/2011 - Review existing plans and specifications used for Carousel place from
WRT.

B. 05/30/2011 - Draft Change Order to M3A’s current A&E contract for the building of
these 10 units or do RFQ,

C. 05/30/2011 — Discuss with several local banks about their potential interest in this
project. Loan must be made based on repayment of the receipt of future payments to
MHA from Replacement Housing Factor funds.

11/30/2011 - Submit Development proposal to HUD,

12/15/2011 — Up-date the 2012 Annual Plan with development concept.
01/01/2012 - Issue Request for Proposal for Bank Loan.

01/01/2012 - tssue Request for Proposal for Construction Contractor.

06/30/2012 — DOFA.

T o ™mo

Page 1 0f2
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SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

SOURCES:
Replacement Housing Factor Funds
Year 1 181,562
Year 2 160,826
Year 3 147,208
Year 4 149,415
Year 5 151,769

Construction Loan from local lender -

Term of Five (5} Years {Note 1} 825,000
Operating Reserves from Public Hsg 250,000
TOTAL SOURCES 1,865,780
USES:

Construction of 10 Homes - S150K EA 1,500,000
Purchase of Bonner Property 22,000

Demolition of Existing Strucuture on
Bonner Property 7,500
Survey and Environmental on Bonner 3,500
Legal Fees 25,000
Purchae of Plans and Specifications 2,500
A & E (8% of Hard Costs} 147,200
Close costs on Bank Finance 5,000
Developer Fee (MHA) [8%] 147,200
Contingency 5,880
TOTAL SOURCES 1,865,780

Note 1 - Bank 1oérj will be repaid from future _re_é_e_ipts of Replahémént
Housing Factor Funds in Years 2012 through 2015 :

Page 2 of 2
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450106 2006
Date of CFFP;
Jmuw Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[ Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ’ O Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations
3 1408 Management Improvements
4 1410 Administration
5 1411 Audit
i6 1415 Liguidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs
8 1440 Site Acquisition
9 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Noenexpendable
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.]1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities $ 181,561.00
18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA
18ba {9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via
Systemn of Direct Pavment
19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20}
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19) $ 181.561.00) 8 -1 8 -1 § -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs

Attachment MS004{01 10of3 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and

Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing
OMB No. 2577-0226

Attachment MS004f01

20f3

Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450106 2006
Date of CYFP:
B Original Annual Statement L Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annunal Statement (revision no: )
[0 Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. |Summary by Deyelopment Account /\ N Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
26 Amount of line m\q an%ﬁa to Ener, Ocn%n?&gon Measures / _
Signature of Executive/Dirgctor / Date Signature of Public Housing Director Date
ﬁ@%&) ) o]y

form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB Ne. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Suramary _
[PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Autherity of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450107 2007
Date of CFFP:
:@ Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
L1 Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. [Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations
3 1408 Management Improvements
4 1410 Administration
5 1411 Audit
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs
8 1440 Site Acqguisition
9 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendabie
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities $ 160,826.00
18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via
Svystem of Direct Payment .
19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20)
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19) $ . 160.826.00f § o T 4 8 -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 | Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs

Attachment MS004f01 10f3 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Perforrnance and Evaluation Report
Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and

Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Office of Public and Indian Housing
OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R 00450107 2007
Date of CFFP:
B Original Annual Statement [ Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[0 Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
hmun No. }Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Amount of line 20 Related to Energy Conservation Measuygs ~
Signature of Public Housing Director Date

m_msm»:_,m of Executive Director Date
\& % Vv /1D
/

/

Attachment MS004f01 20f3
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program ) OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal ¥Y of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant Ne: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450108 2008
Date of CFFP:
B Original Annual Statement i Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[1 Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations
3 1408 Management Improvements
4 1410 Administration
3 1411 Audit
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
i 1430 Fees and Costs
8 1440 Site Acquisition
9 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities $ 147,208.00
18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via
System of Direct Payment
16 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20)
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 —19) $ 147.208.00) % 4 3 -1 $ -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs

Atftachment MS004701 10f3 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capitai Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450108 2008
Date of CFFP:
Original Arnual Statement Ll Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[] Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
26 Amount of line ¢ Related to Energy Ooumo.@%ou Measures _

Signature of mxmn:~_<m ectar Date Signature of Public Housing Director Date

_\E [ 12

Attachment MS004fC01 20of3 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450109 2009
Date of CFFP:
B Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[l Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: il Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations
3 1408 Management Improvements
4 1410 Administration
5 1411 Audit
16 1415 Ligquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs
3 1440 Site Acquisition
9 1430 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures
11 14635.1 Dwelling Equipment-—Nonexpendable
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities $ 44.773.00
18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA.
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via
System of Direct Payment
19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20)
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19) $ 44773.00] % 4 3 4 § -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs

Attachment MS004f01 10of3 form HUD-50075.1 (4/2008)




Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
{Part I: Summary
[PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHEF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450109 2009
Date of CFFP:
B Original Annual Statement Ll Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[l Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: Ol Final Performance and Evaluation Report
-Lm:e No. [Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Amount of line 20 Related to Energy Conservation Measures _

m_m:m":qm. of mxmn:»z_ﬁdwo_. i(/%/\ﬁ\cmﬁm Signature of Public Housing Director Date
10/ 1
m\ v /o
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
_WNZ I: Summary
[pHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHEHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450309 2009
Date of CFFP:
B8 Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
_..||_ Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. jSummary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended
1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations )
3 1408 Management Improvements
4 1410 Administration
5 1411 Audit
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs
8 1440 Site Acquisition
S 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwetiling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities $ 104.642.00]
182 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via
Systemn of Direct Payment
19 1502 Contingency (may not exceed 8% of line 20)
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19) 3 104,642.004 § 1§ -1 8 -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance -
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capitai Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Autherity of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450309 2009
Date of CFFP:
Original Annuzl Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[l Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: LJ Final Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
26 Amount of line 20 Related to Energy Conservation Measures _
Signature of Executive Director B Date Signature of Public Housing Director Date

n
VAR /

14 f)ﬁ%é /10 [ 12—
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450110 2010
Date of CFFP:
B Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Aonual Statement (revision ne: )
[l Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. }[Summary by Development Aeccount Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended

1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations
3 1408 Management Improvements
4 1410 Administration
5 1411 Audit
& 1415 Liguidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs
8 1440 Site Acquisition
2 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwelling Structures
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demeonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities $ 151,769.00
18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA
18ba 9000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via

Svstem of Direct Payment
19 1502 Contingency {may not exceed 8% of line 20)
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19) $ 151,769.00] §$ 4 % 41 3 -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0228
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
[PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450110 2010
Date of CFFP:
Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
(] Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: N Final Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
26 Amount of line 20 Related to Energy Conservation MeasupSy : _

Signature of muﬁmﬂm Directo Date Signature of Public Housing Director Date
ﬂ\m% / \ 10 \ MHW
4 v

¢
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and

Capital Fund Financing Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Public and Indian Housing

OMB No. 2577-0226

Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450111 2011
Date of CFFP:
B Original Annnal Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[ ] Performance and Evaluation Report for Period Ending: O Final Performance and Evaluation Report
Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost
Original Revised Obligated Expended

1 Total non-CFP Funds
2 1406 Operations
3 1408 Management Improvements
4 1410 Administration
5 1411 Audit
6 1415 Liquidated Damages
7 1430 Fees and Costs
8 1440 Site Acquisition
9 1450 Site Improvement
10 1460 Dwetling Structures
11 1465.1 Dwelling Equipment—Nonexpendable
12 1470 Nondwelling Structures
13 1475 Nondwelling Equipment
14 1485 Demolition
15 1492 Moving to Work Demonstration
16 1495.1 Relocation Costs
17 1499 Development Activities 120.735.00
18a 1501 Collaterization or Debt Service paid by the PHA
18ba S000 collateralization or Debt Service paid Via

System of Direct Payment
19 1502 Contingency {may not exceed 8% of line 20)
20 Amount of Annual Grant: (sum of lines 2 — 19} 120.735.00F % -4 S -
21 Amount of line 20 Related to LBP Activities
22 Amount of line 20 Related to Section 504 compliance
23 Amount of line 20 Related to Security — Soft Costs
24 Amount of Line 20 Related to Security — Hard Costs
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Annual Statement/Performance and Evaluation Report U1.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Capital Fund Program, Capital Fund Program Replacement Housing Factor and Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Financing Program OMB No. 2577-0226
Expires 4/30/2011
Part I: Summary
PHA Name: Grant Type and Number Federal FY of Grant: RHF
The Housing Authority of the City of Meridian Capital Fund Program Grant No: Replacement Housing Factor No: MS26R00450111 2011
Date of CFFP:
Original Annual Statement L] Reserve for Disasters/ Emergencies Revised Annual Statement (revision no: )
[0 Performance and Evaluation Report for Peried Ending: ] Final Performance and Evaluation Report

Line No. |Summary by Development Account Total Estimated Cost Total Actual Cost

Amount of line 20 Related ﬁﬁwuﬁ.mw Conservation Measures _

126
Signature of Execytive Directo _umﬁm Signature of Public Housing Director Date
N/ \“\ 1o \\ \\U\\
vi .
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Use of a Chemical Agent — Policy Statement
In today’s complex; society, certain employees of the Meridian
Housing Authority (MHA) at times are confronted with situations
where, in order to protect their personal safety, control must be
exgrcised to overcome physical aggression and neutralize an assault,
Control may be achieved through verbal communications such as
advice, persuasion, and warnings. As a last resort, a use of force
beyond wverbal communications may be necessary. The MHA is
autfiorizing certain employees to utilize a chemical agent when
verbal communications have failed in the situation at hand, It
should be noted that-analysis-may-not-involve- [engiﬁy deliberations.
Due to the urgency of nherent i sucﬁ szLuat;om; the decision to

the dignity due any ﬁumcm b'emg, to tﬁe extent that such tredtment
is allowed by the subject’s actions. MHA employees shall maintain a
professional attitude at all times. They shall not be argumentative or
engage in acts that might incite a subject to become physically
aggressive. MHA employees shall never invoke the use of a chemical
agent unless the use is reasonable and necessary for the specific
situation. Such reasonable and necessary use of a chemical agent
may be used to:

o Neutralize an unlawful assault upon the employee or
another.
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The use of the chemical agent will end immediately when the
aggression ceases and has been overcome. |

Employees invoking the use of a chemical agent must be able to
articulate the need and justification for the use of a.chemical agent.
. Full disclosure of the circumstances tequiring the use of a chemical
agent shall be thoroughly documented in @ written report completed
in conjunction with the Incident Report generated by the police. The
employee shall make every attempt to identify others that may fave
been a witness to the situation that lead to the use of a chemical
agent and request they remain on the scene until the police arrive,

As soon as fiumanty possible, employees invoking the use of a
chemical agent shall-makg-an-emergency-call for assistance to the
Meridian Police @epa ment., (M@@)and 3 mform the MHA's
Housing Opemtzon& ] i ice of the FExecutive
Director, Only trained emp[byees of MHA can 64 authorized to Ge
armed with and deploy @ chemical agent, The on[y such chemical
agent shall be provided by the MHA.

It should be noted that the best justification for the use of the
chemical agent must result from a criminal offense of aggression
committed by the suspect which will result in an arrest by the police.
MHA employees may not have the ability to detain a suspect until
the pofice arrive. Therefore the employee should make every dttempt
to have enough information on the suspect to have an arrest warrant
Siled on the suspect should fe leave the scene before the pofice arrive.
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